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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 3, 1999

ROBERT A. BITTENBENDER
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Govemnor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the Citizens of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania displays our
continued commitment to sound and effective fiscal management and to financial reporting based on generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This CAFR includes the Commonwealth’s independently andited general
purpose financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. It will provide you and the financial
community with all the information required to assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations
and the management of its financial resources.

Pennsylvania continues to share in the benefits of a long period of uninterrupted national economic growth. In May
1999, Pennsylvania’s unemployment rate was 3.8 percent, the lowest rate in nearly thirty years. Gaing in
employment have helped contribute to the increase in persomal income in Pennsylvamia. Seasonally adjusted
personal income in Pennsylvania is estimated to have increased by 4.6 percent between the first calendar quarters of
1998 and 1999. While not as large as the 5.5 percent increase for the nation, the gain and a strong stock market
helped push up Pennsylvania personal income tax collections by 7.2 percent for fiscal year 1998-99 over the
previous fiscal year. Strong revenue growth and responsible fiscal management have combined to greatly improve
the financial condition of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has used its recent strong fiscal performance to
increase its reserves and to fund modest tax cuts targeted to economic development and consumer savings. The
result of these policies will be a stronger Commonwealth and an improved competitive standing for new jobs.

On the budgetary basis, the Commonwealth’s General Fund at June 30, 1999 ended the fiscal year with a $703
million unreserved/undesignated fund balance, prior to reserving $255.5 million for transfer to the Tax Stabilization
Reserve (Rainy Day) Fund. The unreserved/undesignated fund balances, after the transfer, on the budgetary basis
was $447.5. With the transfer for the 1998-99 fiscal year, the balance in the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund
increased to $941 miflion. The increased balance in the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund and the irproved balance in
the General Fund convinced 2 national bond rating agency to increase the Commonwealth’s general obligation bond
rating during the 1998-1999 fiscal year. This is the second consecutive year in which the Commonwealth’s bond
rating improved. .

In addition to the significant contribution to the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund, the following are some of the
financial, programmatic and legislative accomplishments of the 1998-99 fiscal year:

Economic development continues to be a long-term commitment of the Commonwealth as evidenced by the
significant amount of funds appropriated for loans and grants to employers. Among these loans and grants was $40
million transferred from the General Fund to the Ben Franklin/Industrial Resource Centers Partnership Fund to
create jobs through the development and application of technology and advanced production techniques. Also, $33
million of loans and grants for infrastructure development of industrial sites were made from the General Fund. The
Machivery and Equipment Loan Fund provided $14 million in low interest loans and the Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority provided $65 million in loans to local industrial development agencies to stimulate
economic activity. The Opportunity Grants Program, funded by the General Fund, provided $35 million for grants to
attract and retain businesses. Team PA, a program within the General Fund, in conjunction with the Business
Resource Center and the Business Retention Program, provided $9 million along with additional funds from private
sector partners to work with businesses to Tesolve issues and create and retain jobs in Pennsylvania. This $9 million
includes a $3.5 million contribution to the Catalyst Stage Program which will receive $10 million over three years to
- provide venture capital financing to new businesses. The Small Business First Fund, which is supported by the
General Fund, streamlined loans for small businesses and disbursed more than $15 million in low interest loans.



General Fund tax cuts, authorized by passage of Act 1999-4, saved Pennsylvania taxpayers an estimated $241.0
million. Savings occnrred in a number of areas. There was an expansion of the personal income tax exemption for
low-income taxpayers and elimination of the income tax on gains realized from the sale of 2 home. In addition, there
was a reduction in the capital stock & franchise tax, extension of the net operating loss recovery period for the
corporate net income tax, a jobs tax credit and minor tax changes including selected exemptions from the state sales
tax.

Pennsylvania is also working to create jobs in other ways. Recognizing that success begins with a well-trained work
force, the Commonwealth provided funding from the General Fund for customized job training and supported the
opportunity to capitalize on the global marketplace to operate and expand Pennsylvania's international trade in the
amounts of $29 million and $5.6 million, respectively. Marketing Pennsylvania as a tourist destination and business
place was funded at $20 million.

The Commonwealth continued its commitment to its communities by providing $16 million from the General Fund
for the Housing and Redevelopment Program to rebuild neighborhoods and to rehabilitate low-income housing.
Additional funds were provided to expand local efforts to promote tourism. The Community Development Bank
received $2 million from the General Fund and is expected to receive over $30 million in private funds. It provides
capital for community development lending to support the needs of smail businesses and nonprofit organizations.

Education is essential to Pennsylvania’s future. The General Fund provided nearly $3.6 billion to our public schools
through the Basic Education Funding. Total fimding for basic education was over $6.1 billion, including funding for
-special education, pupil transportation, teacher retirement and social security, and special programs to address the
needs of economically and educationalty challenged students. In addition, over $1.6 billion was provided for higher
education institutions and students.

The Commonwealth continued the technology initiative known as Project Link to Learn. This initiative is helping to’

bring global computer resources into Pennsylvania's classrooms and enabling schools to participate in advances in
computing and communications. Over $48 million in third-year funding was provided for -the acquisition of
computers and network connections in our schools. This brings the three-year total investment to $132 million. This
initiative will provide for the development of the community-based Pennsylvania Education Network.

In addition, $13.4 million was provided for the second year of a new program in which schools that improve their
academic performance are rewarded with additional funding. This builds upon the $10.4 million that was provided
in 1997-98 for the initial year of the program.

The Department of Corrections increased its institutional capacity by 1,491 beds with the opening of a correctional
facility in southeastern Pennsylvania and the addition of cellblocks at several other correctional institutions.

The Commonwealth continved its comprehensive welfare reform program based on individual and family self-
sufficiency. The program incorporates the changes made by Congress in passage of the Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act and those changes authorized by the General Assembly in Act 35 of 1996.
The program provides time limited cash assistance for families and other support to enable individuals to get and
keep a job. Federal support includes two block grants: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families and Child Care
Development. State and Federal expenditures for these programs and Medical Assistance amounted to $8.2 billion in
the 1998-99 fiscal year. Approximately 38.5 percent of the total cost of assistance to the economically needy is
fanded by the General Fund, with the balance provided by the Federal government. A Medical Assistance
Intergovernmental Transfer provided additional funds totaling $721 million during the 1998-99 fiscal year.

During the 1998-99 fiscal year several major laws were enacted that created new programs and/or modJﬂed existing
programs. The followmg summarizes some of these changes:

—  Act 1998-92 enacted the Keystone Opportunity Zone Act which authorized the Department of Community and
Economic Development to establish up to 12 Keystone Opportunity Zones (KOZ). The KOZs will be virtually
free of State and local taxes for a period of 12 years in an attempt to stimulate local economies within the zones.
The act and all tax benefits associated with it will expire on December 31, 2010.
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Act 1998-100 made changes to the Job Enhancement Act to increase the Job Creation Tax credits by $5 million,
from $15 million to $20 million, along with other minor changes to the act effective for the 1998-99 fiscal year.

Acts 1998-126 and 1998-127 amended Title 42 (Judiciary) and Title 23 (Domestic Relations) respectively to
bring the Commonwealth into compliance with the Federal Adoption and Safe Families Act {ASFA).

Act 1998-129 enacted a program to provide higher education to children of firefighters and police officers who
have been killed in the line of duty. The cost of this program will be absorbed by the State-related and State-
owned institutions, which these children may attend without paying tuition and housing costs.

Act 1999-1 reenacted the Capital Facilities Debt Enabling Act as a free-standing act and increased the tap on
the amount of Redevelopment Assistance Capital projects from $850 million in bonds issued to $1.2 billion in
outstanding bonds. The act also added a chapter on Sports Facilities Financing. Several minor changes in match
requirements and eligibility for Redevelopment Assistance Capital projects were also made.

Act 1999-12 transferred certain judicial employees from county to State employment to establish a unified
Judicial system. A total of 165 employees were transferred to the Commonwealth payroll.

Act 1999-21 provided for the deregulation of the natural gas industry in Pennsylvania and completes the repeal
of the gross receipts tax on natural gas effective January 1, 2000.

Act 1999-22 enacted the SciTech and GI Bill Scholarship Program. This provides grants to individuals entering
into the field of science and technology. The SciTech scholarship is $3,000 per year for the second through
fourth year of study and the GI Bill scholarship is $1,000 per year for corzmunity college or two-year technical .
institute.

In summary, the general purpose financial statements show that commitment to fiscal discipline has resulted in
continued financial improvements, allowed the Commonwealth to lower taxes and to continue funding programs
that enhance economic development, provide equity in education and meet critical human service needs.

Sincerely,
Robert A. Bittenbender

Secretary
Office of the Budget



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 1, 1999

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Bittenbender:

- I am pleased to present this Comprehensive Annmal Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial position and operations of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This report, which includes the
General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS), was prepazed by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations, pursuant
to the power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the
Budget by Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984.

The GPFS contained in this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE). They were jointly audited by the elected Auditor
~ General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Ernst & Young LLP, a nationally recognized public accounting firm.
Their Independent Auditors’ Report is incleded in this financial report.

I believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed to
fairly report the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as measured by
the financial activity of its varions fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Govemnor, the members of the
General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to fully understand the Commonwealth’s operations and
financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and faimness of the presentation, mu::li.ldlnﬁr ail
disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating results by
fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules; certain
narrative information describing individual fomds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic and demographic data
about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility

-for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth is a primary govermmnent. The primary government, or PG,
includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonweaith. The PG also
imcludes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations that are not legally separate. In addition to the
PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented component units. Component units include all
legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would cause the financial staterments to be misleading or
incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s
governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization io
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered.
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Based upon the financial accountability criteria, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the Notes
to Financial Statements, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented-component units, except the
State Employes’ Retirement System, which is included in the Cornmonwezlth’s primary government as a blended component
unit:

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership —Governmental Fund

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority-—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund

Public School Employes’ Retirement System—TFiduciary Fund

State Employes’ Retirement System—Pension Trust Fund

State Public School Building Authority—Governmental Fund

State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The anmual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their
specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the agency level
by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure
categories include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed charges.
An encumbrance system is used to provide budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve part of an
appropriation until the actual Liabilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do not
exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that unencurnbered
appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the new fiscal year.
Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in the Commonwealth’s
governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance. Funds reserved for
appropriations catried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time any remaining
balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise extended for some
other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance carried forward from
one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated item.

Accounting records of most departments under the Governor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptrolier Operations.
Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liquor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for the
payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor General, and
the Legislature and Fudiciary, likewise, maintain separate accounting systems. '

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on 2 budgetary basis by fund, agency and
appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment requisitions
and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At fiscal year end, both revenues and expenditures are
adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals and deferrals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions are
executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and that the
financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountzbility. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the
Department of Revenue’s records of cash receipts.



THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPFS)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GFFS m
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary
basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on the
modified acerual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The
College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting guidance
and reporting practices applicable to governmental colleges and universities, as outlined in the American Instifute of
Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of Colleges and Universities, and pronouncements issued by the
GASB.

In measuring financial position and operating resuits on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as compared to the
budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available to finance current
obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are generally reported when goods and services are received
and a liability incurred, rather than when cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPFS as of a
fiscal year end include amounts that actually will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial data at the time the financial
statements are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of credits and refunds, and accounts payable and
accrued expenditures for which a Hability has been incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Six conmsecutive years of national economic growth have helped propel job growth in Pennsylvania. The seasonally
adjusted unemployment rate for the Commonwealth in the first six months of 1999 averaged 4.3 percent, equal to the
national unemployment rate for the United States. In 1998, jobs in Pennsylvania increased by 7.0 percent over the previous
- year with many job gains occurring in the high technology and pharmaceutical industries. The gains in employment in
Pennsylvania and a strong stock market contributed to a 4.5 percent growth in personal income. While not equal to the
national growth rate of 5.7 percent, personal income growth did surpass the average of the Mid-Atlantic States (NY, NJ, PA).
Slow population growth, particularly in the 25 to 44 year cohort, will make job gains difficult for the state in the coming
years. State-funded programs have been implemented to encourage young adults, especially those working in the high-tech
industries, to come and remain in the state.

For the past several fiscal years, the national gross domestic product (adjusted for inflation) has increased by more than
3 percent per year. Gains of this magnitude were above the increases assumed in revenue expectations included in the
Commonwealth budget. Faster economic growth than anticipated generated tax revenues above budget estimates. Most
economic forecasts for the national economy anticipate a slowing of ecomomic growth. A more modest rate of consumer
spending increase, rising interest rates due to actions by the Federal Reserve, impending shortages of labor, and sluggish
foreign trade will be the principal causes of the expected slower growth. Slower economic growth had been expected in prior
years but the national econory continued to record strong gains. One distinct difference the current period has from previous
years is that the Federal Reserve’s current policy is 2imed at restraining the economy. This policy change will reinforce other
trends that will produce slower economic growth. It is expected that Pennsylvania’s economy will continue to mirror national
economic trends.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal point of any assessment of Pennsylvania’s financial
position. It accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere
and for the major portion of Commonwealth expenditures. Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and sales
and use taxes, constitute approximately 61.6 percent of the General Fund budgetary basis revennes. Major fund expenditures
are for general government, protection of persons and property, public health and welfare, public education, conservation of
natural resources, economic development, transportation and transfers to debt service funds on 2l obligations except those
incurred for highway or other special revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated within
its adopted General Fund budget, as amended, is presented in the “Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis),” included in the GPFS.




Budgetary Basis: At June 30, 1999, the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary
basis) of $447.5 million in the General Fund. This compares to a budgetary basis fund balance of $265.3 million, as restated,
at June 30, 1998. The budgetary basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was the result of revenue
collections totaling $29,541.1 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $29,221.8 million, less other net financing
uses totaling $137.1 million. Included in the $29,221.8 million appropriation authorizations are $357.0 million of state
supplemental appropriations and $350.0 million in Federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the fiscal year.

The following table shows the General Fund’s actual year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and increases or
decreases {expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/
Undesignated Increase
At June 30 Fund Balance (Decrease)
1995 (Restated) $ 4370 $ 1348
1996 (Restated) 158.5 (278.5)
1997 (Restated) 4023 245.1
1998 (Restated) 2653 (137.0)
1999 447.5 182.2

Modified Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1999 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $2,863.4
million, an increase of $904.5 million from the $1,958.9 million fund balance at June 30, 1998. Total assets increased by
$1,024 million to $5,997.6 million. Liabilities increased $119.5 million to $3,134.2 million. These changes and others are
reflected in the General Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows.

General Fund

Summary Comparative Balance Sheet (GAAP Basis)
{Amounts in Millions)

Increase
June 30, 7999  June 30. 1998 (Decrease)
Assets
Cash and temporary investments ... ......coweeemcecersenens $3,7747 $ 2,693.0 $ 1,081.7
Receivables, net................. eetemmeenernreneans 983.0 970.5 . 125
Due from other funds/component units/governments.............. 1,239.9 1,072.0 167.9
Food stamp coupons - 2380 (238.0)
Other assets ..ococeceveeeeeeeeccrererereneneas - d 1)
Total Assets... $ 59976 $ 49736 $.1.024.0
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities........ccereeerrnenes $23932 $ 19738 5 4194
Duee to other funds/component units/governments ............e.-... 696.7 7744 (77.7)
Deferred TEVENUE .....vveecricariscccsereres s rsinsnsnssesessesscssesansnsens 443 266.5 (222.2)
Total Liabilities ,....coorveeecene ' - reseesasrssananaan 3.1342 3.0147 119.5
Fund Balance
Reserved ..ooeeerecrercrerrnecerressvsernecnas - 1,627.7 3173 1,3104
Unreserved: :
Designated .....c.cccocecveeenvenerences reeemencranerresarasarasarerane 180.5 1,144.0 (963.5)
Urdesignated .- 1.055.2 497.6 557.6
Total Fund Balance .........ccccaerecercrnrseeerrnscessseanens 2.863.4 1.958.9 904.5
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance .........coeceeerserernrmssssseneeeessens 859976 §49736 $ 1.024.0



GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT _
The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, which includes the 4
‘Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. These funds account for most general operating Jfl }
revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1999 increased by $1,360 million to $5,151.8 million =

from a $3,791.8 million balance, as restated, at the beginning of the fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund balances at ‘
TJume 30, 1999 amount to $1,639.1 million as compared to a $659.0 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance 2 year ago. o
Comparative summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (amounts in millions) o
follow. : '

" General Governmental Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt Service g]
and Capital Projects Funds totaled $35,877 million. This represents a 7.1 percent increase over the previous year. Taxes \
constituted 56.0 percent of general governmental revenues; intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds, constituted
29.4 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended

[—— _i Increase : ‘,
Revenue Source June 30, 1999 June 30, 1998 (Decrease)
TaXeS.cnernne . - $ 20,105 $ 19,044 $ 1,061 .
Licenses and fees ... recesmsmissirs e sssssssssssssssissssessseseass 1,019 1,004 15 5
Intergovernmental reeresssesusseseeasmebebetetanessettesasaserearensnsasenins 10,564 9,669 895 o
Charges for sales and SEIVICES .-....ovevernsnasuness 2,057 1,698 359 P
Investment income rnesranes . 259 226 33 O
LOMETY TECEIPLS cvrerevnnmcensermmssssssssressssmssssssasersssasssessessssesasmrecrarsais 1,659 1,684 (25) o
Lease rental principal and INEIest ...cevveceevcsenessrsrstsenscnsnsennass 2 2 - ‘
Other , eeeesesesesssesesssaeeeee 212 176 36 o

TOtA]l REVEIIIES «ooceeeeerisnnresasnessersreressss sessmsasassersssssassrnsmsnesnssentes - 8 35877 $ 33503 $ 2374

Intergovernmental revenues increased $895 million primarily because of an increase in the awthorized Federal
reimbursement amounts for medical assistance and long-term care programs.

Tax revenue increased $1,061 million due primarily to an increase in employment and an improvement in the economic
condition of the Commonwealth.

I'_ Fiscal Years Ended —I .
Increase ;

“Taxes by Type June 30, 1999 June 30,1998 (Decrease)

Personal INCOME . ....couvecrevreresrrssrsrarsssssssssssssmmeassssransnarsnsans suansasn $ 6418 . $ 6,017 $ 401 -;
Sales ANA USE.....u.enreereerresremmesar sosrssmememsssesmensesmsstsasas emeemesressasemans 6,699 6,228 471 o
Corporation teeessnsanes e eanasnesresneresasnnns 3,803 3,725 78

Liquid fuels. ttrisessssarsaisberssarueernseanstesanessnrenearas 753 784 (30 P

BT <. eeeeeeetsseessssrrssaseseensassasanssrssransneacssstosssrssnesnansassssansases ' 2432 2.290 142 o
Total Tax REVENUE. ...cccermreremererseassrersenarsstoissssisssrsnssansasassanenss $ 20105 § 19044 g 1061




General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects Funds totaled $34,520 million, an increase of $2,227 million over the previous year. Of the total
amount expended, public health and welfare accounted for 44.4 percent, public education for 22.7 percent and transportation
for 10.6 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended
Increase
Expenditure Function June 30, 1999 June 30 1998 (Decrease)
General SOVEIMMIENL . ...c.c....cecereeereeentristasasmeeeeememsre s ssrcnsons 5 2,723 $ 2,587 5 136
Protection of persons and property ... evveeceveereeesieeeceeceevans 2,785 2,613 172
Public health and welfare..........loeeeee et 15,320 14,342 978
PUblic @AUCAHON ... coe e ceerreseeree e snee it eecemccrassse seseseenenens 7,843 7,715 128
Conservation of Datural FESOUTCES......rveeerermeererers e csseeeecnnsrne 436 396 40
Economic development and assistance........ouuvememersemseeescssennes 469 339 130
R 11T 1) 7o) 1 OO 3,654 3,243 411
Capital OULlAY ....coveee e en st enas 583 360 223
Debt service: .
Principal fehrEmEnt........ooverrraererssermrensessesensisisssssce e eeeserssaonss 444 4335 9
Interest and fiscal charges S ereemesstsssaetestennans , 263 263 - -
Total eXPenditures......ccoccsrvcursissssssninissererererere st sesesnsmsmssssesass 3 343520 3 32,293 2.227

Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $978 million or 6.8 percent over the previous fiscal year.
Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance
comprise a major portion of the public health and welfare expenditure increase.

Expenditures for transportation increased by $411 million or 12.7 percent over the previous fiscal year, due mamly to an
increased effort to repair and maintain a greater number of road miles during this fiscal year. .

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS— GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The discretely presented component unit governmental fund type includes the Pemnsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority, the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership, the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority and the State Public School
Building Authority. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1999 increased $7 million to $633 million from a $626 million
balance at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Revenues of the component unit governmental fimds totaled $369.8 million at June 30; 1999, Lease rental principal and
interest revenue of $321.4 million represents 86.9 percent of total revenues.

Ex;;enditmes of the component-unit governmental funds totaled $904.1 million at June 30, 1999. Of the total amount
expended, capital outlay was $479.7 million or 53.1 percent of total expenditures and debt service principal and interest
expenditures were $367_5 million or 40.6 percent.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the
electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed one
and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five fiscal
years. The certified constitutional debt limit at September 1, 1999 was $37.2 billion. Outstanding capital project debt at
September 1, 1999 amounted to $3.9 billion.

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate approved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1999 was $5,254 million. Total debt service
transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999
amounted to 3903 million.



During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2000 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances
amoupting to $969 million, an increase of $116 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $853 million during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This forecast reflects the need to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, highways, bridges, mass transportation and water supply systems. Debt principal
retirements of $479.3 million are forecast during fiscal 2000. The table that follows shows total outstanding long-term
indebtedness for general obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most recent fiscal years.

] Outstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1993 $ 5,041
1994 5,100
1995 5,041
1996 5,062
1997 4,842
199§ 4,841
1999 5,254

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the last four months of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending Fune 30, 2000, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including Federal
fands, are expected to increase by 2.8 percent and 3.8 percent, respectively. Although the 1999-00 fiscal year executive
budget includes the issuance of $560 million of tax anticipation notes, the Cornmonwealth currently has no plans to issue any
notes for this fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial paper issuances (expressed in millions) during
the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund tax anticipation notes were not issued for the periods
shown and-are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issued

Fiscal Year For the Account : as a Percent of

Issue Ended of the - General Fund

June 30 General Fuad Tax Revenues
1996 $ 500 3
1997 550 3
1998 225 1
1999 - -
2000 (Estimated) 560 3

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit Commonwealth monies, excluding
certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Amounts deposited are not
required to be segregated by fund.
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In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest Commonwealth monies that are in excess of dajly needs of
the varions Commonwealth Funds. Virtually all excess amounts are invested in the Treasury Short-Term Investment Pool
(STIP). The STIP includes the following types of investments, with related weighted average maturity and percent of total
STIP investments, at June 30, 1999:

Weighted Average
Maturity
Investment Type (days) " Percent
Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or Equivalent) ...........o.ccovvrevecveresrsnn. i4 13.1
United States Treasury and Agency ObLZAtONs ......coveeeeeescmcemerremesiseseesicsesieseessanne 285 15.2
RePUICHASE AZTEEINEIIS. ...cuesseeesneasenssascssssesscisstssocacrecscasmsssessessssasserassassensssnssrsnssssanss 4 68.5
Certificates of DEPOSit ....ccovemevcecerecrneerensrrnsranns chetsicnem st te e tesear s st teneateta 56 14
Corporate Bonds aBd NOES ..o eeeeeeeeee et e e ssssmeca teseeresessereresesesessemsosses 1,365 0.3
OB ettt crsrr e esss ranssmeraras s s nsnsannnon 77 =15

100.0

Total STIP investments amounted to over $7.6 billion at June 30, 1999. All STIP investments are reported as
temporary investments by participating Funds. The STIP earned $318 million during the fiscal year, at an average yield of
4.94 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and properiy losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983. The
Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits and tort Liabilities, including automobile, employe
and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage is
obtained for property losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage for
property losses less than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
program. ' ’

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS .

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects fumds. Completed projects and
construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounied for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group. Construction in progress at June 30, 1999 amounted to $654 million. Authorized but unissued general
obligation bonds at June 30, 1999 totaled $27.9 billicn.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government
The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan programs for
economic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth

enterprise funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1999 of $325.8 million, which represents an increase of $81.3
million from the $244.5 million of retained earnings reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, incinding expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and ar investinent trust fund, reported total
fund balance of $29,088 million, compared to $25,047 million in the previous year. Total fund balances of the expendable
trust fimds increased by $389 million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $4,131 million at June 30,
1999. The State Employes’ Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $24,123 million, an
increase of $2,812 million from the previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits. The
INVEST Program for Local Governments, the investment trust fund, reported a fund balance of $834 million at December
31, 1998 it’s fiscal year ended, as compared to $537 million in the previous year.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turnpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
carnings at June 30, 1999, totaling $1,954 million, which represents an increase of $38 million from the $1,916 million, as
restated, of retained earnings reported the previous year.

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported a
fund balance of $48,975 million at June 30, 1999, which represents a $4,118 million increase over the $44,857 million fund
balance in the previous fiscal year.



The total fund equity for the College and Univérsity funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education, a
discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1999 was $450 million, compared to $430 million at June 30, 1998.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
 fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June 30,
1999 amounted to $4,882 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the
Commonwealth’s general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors’ Report submitted herewith, was performed jointly by
the Department of the Auditor General and the independent public accounting firm of Ernst & Young LLP. It was performed
pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code of 1929 and
in the Govemor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after thexr
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Govermnment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annbial

Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. This represents the thirteenth consecutive year the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvaniz as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1999 conforms to the GFOA. standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the varions Commonwealth agencies whose time and
" dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment to you to maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth,

Sincerely,

v u

Harvey C. Eckert
Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget
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Sl ERNST&YOUNG LLP

» Central Pennsylvania Practice Pk
Commerce Court, Suite 200
N = 2601 Market Place ‘ P
Department of the Audntor General ' Harrisburg, PA 17110-9359 ti
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ' ' : Ny =
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120-0018

Independent Auditors’ Report

~ The Honorable Tom Ridge, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania L

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth

~ of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the

- financial statements of certain component units, which represent 78 percent of total assets
of the Trust and Agency Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, | .
and 100 percent of the discretely presented component units. We also did not jointly n
audit the financial statements of one enterprise fund which represents 2 percent of total o
assets of the enterprise funds. The financial statements of these component units were
audited by other auditors, including Ernst & Young LLP acting separately, whose reports

 thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for those component units, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors. Emst & Young LLP has audited separately 4 percent of total assets and 5 - 5
percent of total revenues of the discretely presented component units. )

[ Pe—— J“

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An andit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as !
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the L
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial o
position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania at June 30, 1999, and the resuits of its ,
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the fiscal year then ended, vl
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.



As discussed i Note B, the Commonwealth adopted GASB Statement 32, “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans.”

The year 2000 supplementary information on page 72 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and we did not andit and do not express an opinion
on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain
procedures prescribed by professional standards because disclosure criteria specified by
GASB Technical Bulletin No. 98-1 as amended are not sufficiently specific to permit us
to perform procedures that would provide meaningful results. In addition, we do not
provide assurance that the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is or will become year 2000
compliant, and the Commonwealth’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in
whole or in part, or that parties with which the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania does
business are or will become year 2000 compliant.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules
listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all -
material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not andit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this
report and, therefore, express no opinion thereon.

Y 2 A R

November 5, 1999
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES : : ¥
~ 'All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and :
Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 g?»k
e
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) )
Total Total }
Fiduciary  (Memorandum {Memorandum )
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only) Only) .
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary Component Reporting . ]
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government Units Entity : l
. REVENUES:
‘Taxes. $ 18,162,547 § 1,897,199 % - 5 45,530 4824 % 20,110,100 § - § 20,110,100 T
R L AL T N — - - - - 1,458,773 1,459,773 - - 1,459,773 P
License and fees 147,053 872,205 - - 81,152 1,100,408 - 1,100,408 i
Intergoverntnental 9,462,123 1,101,302 - 30 49,336 10,612,791 327 10,613,118
" Charges for sales and SETVICESwo.rrrmrrecreen 1,812,082 224021 - 21,273 - - 2,057,375 10,327 2,067,702
Investient income 157,591 83,711 2,557 14,6665 313,393 571,918 25,253 597,171 - ;
Lottery revenues, - 1,659,305 - - - 1,659,305 - 1,659,305 L. }
Lease rental principal and interest................ ' - - 1,827 - - 1,827 321,435 323,262
Orher. 115,966 75,117 164 17,180 89,764 302,191 12,430 314,621
TOTAL REVENUES cecorisemissstsssassnsornen 29,861,359 5,912,860 4,548 98,679 1,998,242 37,875,688 369,772 38,245,460 :
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General govemment..... 1,231,556 1,490,575 - 786 23,220 2,746,137 - 2,746,137 —
Protection of persons and pmperty 2,764.332 15,240 - 1,697 71,130 2,856,399 10,466 2,866,865 2 1
Public health and welfare... 14,591,847 728,563 - - 1,503,639 16,824,049 - 16,824,049 { f
Public education 7,841,624 1,108 - - - 7,842,732 2,771 ' 7,845,509
Conservation of natural resources...... 138,417 250,187 . - 47,987 - 436,601 - 436,601
Economic development and assistance........ 388,709 9,467 - 70,829 - 459,005 43,678 512,683 ' }
Transportation 372,348 3,139,299 - 142,122 - 3,654,269 - 3,654,269 i
Capital outlay. 38,473 41,449 - 502,941 - 582,863 479,661 1,062,524 ;
Debt service:
Principal Tetirement ........mmrssssssseaemsracss i - - 3,675 - 11,394 455,069 197,557 652,626 -
) Interest and fiscal charges....ccmumsminimrereees - - 262,667 2 - 262,669 169,930 432,599 : g
TOTAL EXPENDITURES S, 27,367,806 5,679,898 706,342 766,364 1,609,383 36,129,793 904,069 37,033,362 L )
" REVENUES OVER (UNDER) -
EXPENDITURES 2,493,553 232,962 {701,794) (667,685} 388,859 1,745,895 (534,297) 1,211,598 i i
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): ' n
Bond proceed - 19,294 - 237,545 - 856,839 497,515 1,354,354
Refunding bond proceeds............ ereesrasasas - - - - - - 215,005 215,005 .
OQperating transfers in—Note H...... - 106,667 335,237 903,081 - - 1,344,985 549,442 1,804,427 N
Operating transfers out—Note H.ocownnrnienes (821,131) (471,610) o1 - - (1,292,832) (545,442 (1,842,274)
Operating transfers from primary !
government—Note H.... - - - - - - 40,400 40,400
Operating transfers to component i
units—Note H (781,636) - - - - (781,636) - (781,636)
. Payment to yefunded bond escrow agent.... - - - - - - (211,526) (211,526) L
Capital lease and installment purchase
cbligations. 20,499 8,336 - - - 28,835 - 28,835 - ]
: ;
. NET OTHER FINANCING P
SOURCES (USES) {1,475,601) (108,743) 502,990 © 837,545 - 156,151 541,394 697,585 L
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES o
OVER EXPENDITURES L
AND OTHER USES 1,017,952 124,219 201,196 169,360 388,859 1,902,086 7,097 1,909,183 L
FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED, )
JULY 1, 1998 — NOTE C 1,958,881 1,575,282 195,651 62,006 3,742,325 7,534,155 625,966 8,160,121
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS—
NOTE H (113,413) (39,850) - - - (153,263) ~ (153,263)
FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 1999.......... $ 2,863,420 3 1,659,661 % 396,847 $ 231866 § 4,131,184 § 92820978 3 633,063 S 9,916,041

- See notes to financial statements. —
g




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

i (Expressed in Thousands)
‘! General Fund Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
: Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds § 17478300 3 18,190,330 b 712,030 3 1,054,981 §  1,078224 5 23,243
Lottery receipts. i - - - 394,639 899,691 5,052
Liguor store profits transfer. 50,000 50,000 - N - -
Licenses and fees, 72,640 81,212 8,572 752,967 769,242 16,275
Investment income.. 83,965 124,200 40,235 45,907 60,565 14,658
Unclaimed property, net of claim payments.......ecuecseeone.s 41,985 41,178 (807) - - -
Fines, penalties and interest 23,600 27,941 4341 33,080 30,314 (2.766)
Departmental services. 1,669,226 1,669,226 - 40,861 40,861 -
Miscellaneons. 59,150 . 67,794 8,644 33,868 33,428 {440)
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 19,478 866 20,251,881 773,015 2,856,303 2,912,325 56,022
Federal Programs 9,957,143 9,289,272 (667,871) 814,605 720,957 {93,648)
TOTAL REVENUES. 29,436,009 29,541,153 105,144 3,670,908 3,633,282 {37,626)
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs: .
General government. 1,759,293 1,725,106 34,187 507,885 487,415 20,470
Protection of persons and property...... 2,509,687 2,484,240 25,447 303,146 300,741 2,405
Public health and welfare 7,003,588 7,002,888 700 653,727 627,414 26,313
Public education 7,892,776 7,862,869 29,907 1,556 1,182 374
Conservation of naturz] resources............. 130,385 130,156 229 1,000 966 34
Econotic development and assistance... 357,593 357,586 7 149 149 . -
Transportation 383,414 369,720 13,694 1,529,277 1,520,081 9,190
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS. 20,036,736 19,932,565 104,171 2,956,734 2,937,948 58,786
Federal Programs 9,957,143 9,289 272 667,871 | 814,605 720,957 93,643
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 29,993 879 29,221,837 772,042 3,811,339 * 3,658,905 152,434
) REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES... {557,870) 319,316 877,186 {140,431) (25,623) 114,808
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior-year lapses. 118,356 118,356 - 42,011 42,011 -
Transfer to Tax Sabilization Reserve Fund........ereceennsocee. - (255,448) (255,448) - - -
ey Increase in budgeted revenues, 773,015 - (773,015) - - -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES cc.crvvrrsesesesse 891,371 {137,092) (1,028,463) 42,011 42,011 -
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
: OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES --NOTE M 333,501 182,224 (151,277} (98,420) 16,388 114,808
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS), AS
RESTATED, JULY 1, 1998 ~— NO'IE C. —rrvrrere 265,312 265,312 - 427,095 427,095 -
UNRESERVED/UNDESI{GNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUNE 30, 1999 $ 598,813 $ 447,536 g (151,277) $ 328,675 3 443,483 3 114,808

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES

All Proprletary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services
Jnvestment income,
Interest on notes and loans.
Other.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. coccvesnssiasianennse

' OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services
Interest expense.

Depreciation.

Provision for uncollectible CCOUNTS...-.eurieemememssssssinsasncs

Otber.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES..c.inrrremeernsse

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}.mmmsasnscssrrmsnsrasascoss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investiment income.
Interest exp
0il company franchise tax.
Other revenues
Other expenses

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET.

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS...

OQPERATING TRANSFERS:
Qperating transfers cut—Note H.....
Operating transfers from primary govemm:nt—No:e H.

GPERATING TRANSFERS, NET.

-

INCOME BEFORE
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS wccccomemererrsmsmimsstssssss

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt...........

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,
JULY 1, 1598

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER INorussicissisisssssens

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,
JUNE 30, 1999 i

i0

“Total
Proprietary Fund Types (Memorandum Total
Only) (Memorandum
Internal Primary Component Only)
Enterprise Service Government Units Reporting Entity
3 929,097 5 189,192 $ 1,118,889 $ 746,278 5 1,865,167
182,519 - 182,919 70,606 253,525
5,501 - 5,501 375,680 381,18t
339 24 363 16,544 16,907
1,117,856 189,816 1,307,672 1,205,108 2,516,780
958,751 178,169 1,136,920 913,540 2,050,460
15,843 - 15,843 330,825 346,668
5,292 9,307 14,599 143,943 158,542
12,069 2 12,071 19,228 31,259
(948) - (948) 3,177 2,229
991,007 187,478 1,178,485 1,410,713 2,589,198
126,849 2,338 129,187 (201,505) (72,418)
6,384 1,002 7,386 36,079 43,465
- - - (79,895} (79,895)
- - - 41,891 41,891
600 12 512 3,563 4,175
(361) {328) (689) (75,919) {76,608)
6,623 686 7,309 (74,281) {66,972)
133,472 3,024 136,496 (275,886) (139,390)
(52,153) - (52,153) - (52,153)
- - - 314,666 314,666
(52,153) - (52,153} 314,666 262,513
81,319 3,024 84,343 38,780 125,123
- - - (620) (620)
81,319 3,024 84,343 38,160 122,503
244,530 64,305 308,835 1,915,804 2,224,635
- 11 11 - 11
$ 325,849 3 67,340 3 393,189 $ 1,953,964 5 2,347,153
—- See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All Proprietary Fund Types and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

Total
{Memorandum Total
Proprietary Funds Oaly) {Memorandum
. Internal Primary Component Only)
Enterprise Service Government Units Reporting Entity
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss). 5 126,849 3 2,338 3 129,187 3 {201,605) 3 {72,418)
Adjustments to recencile operating income (10ss) t net cash provided by
{used for) operating activides:
Depreciation 5,292 9,307 14,599 143,943 158,542
Net armortization - - - 9,579 9,579
Provision for uncollectible account 12,069 2 12,071 19,228 31,299
NONOPELALING TEVEIHUES. v rvessrresersesssossessssmsssessessemesrrases essssasscsaemesseesessssssssessoms 600 12 612 3,563 4,175
Noneperating expense: - (70) (70) (75919) (75,985)
Reclassification of investment income (182,919) - (182,519) (70,606) (253,525)
Changes in assets and liabilities:.
Receivables (4,891) 131 (4,760) (210,573) (215,333)
Due from other funds. 4.976) (2,037 {7,013) - (7.013)
Due from primary governinent - - - (37) [£3)]
Due from component units, - 15 15 19 “@)
Due from other governments. i (514) {513) 48,617 48,104
Inventory. 5,721 405 6,126 (54) 6,072
Other current assets (1,767) 1 (1,766) (258,158) (259,924)
Agcounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,981 (813) 11,168 18,706 29,374
Due to other funds (4,765) 297 {4,469) - (4,469)
Due to primary government. - - - (1,977 (1,977)
Due to component units. - 4 4 19 23
Due to other governments. 31 4 35 127,717 127,752
Deferred revenue 301 &7 214 (42,348) (42,134)
Insurance loss Liability. (84,145) - (84,145) - 184,145)
Tuition benefits payable 25,350 - 25,390 - 25,390
Securities iending program obligations 119,494 - 119,494 - 119,494
Other current Habilities (2,324) - {2,324) 45,649 43,325
TOTAL ADYUSTMENTS (104,908) 6,657 (98,251) (242,670) (340,921)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES........ 21,941 8,995 30,936 (444,275} {413,339)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: vvcurerances
Repaymeunts under advances from other funds {100) - (100) - {100)
Proceeds from issuznce of debt obligations - - - 513,199 513,198
Principal paid on debt obligations - - - (300,098) (300,098)
Operating transfers from primary government - - - 314,666 314,666
Operating transfers out (52,153) - (52,153) - (52,153)
Increase in contributed capital 11,530 - 11,530 - 11,530
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. (40,723) - (40,723) 527,767 487,044
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations - - - 590,199 590,199
Principal paid on debt obligations - - - (156,527) (156,527
Interest patd on debt obligations. - - - (79,805} {79,895)
Increases in contributed capital 36,052 - 36,052 124,921 160,973
Decreases in contributed capital (5,000) - (3,000) (2,076) (7,076)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 9,219 (14,239) (23,458) (327,319) (351,277
Proceeds from sale of capital assets. - 923 923 - 923
Oil company franchise tax - - - 41,891 41,891
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. 21,833 (13,316) 8,517 190,654 199,211
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments. (8,347,539) (81,84%) (8,429,384) (4,608,878) £13,038,262)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 8,201,137 85,255 8,286,392 4,232,456 12,518,848
Investment incoine. 144,171 993 145,164 107,121 252,285
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.......... (2,231) 4,403 2,172 {269,301 (267,129)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 820 82 902 4,385 5,787
CASH, JULY 1, 1998 13,177 328 13,505 71,723 91,228
CASH, JUNE 30, 1999, $ 13,997 § 410 A 14,407 by 82,608 1] 97,015

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

— See notes to financial statements. —
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'STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS o
Pension Trust Fund For the Year Ended December 31, 1998 ]i
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands) ﬂ
State -
Employes' s |
~ Retirement h
System o
ADDITIONS: o
N
Net appreciation in fair value of investrnents. $ 1,212,355 3
Pension contributions: :
Employee : 221,618 S
Employer. 310,501
Investment income 2,296,272 =
TOTAL ADDITIONS 4,040,746 _ E
1
DEDUCTIONS: i
Benefit payments 1,050,870 ‘.
Refunds of contributions ' 11,285 !
Investment expenses 148,783 _
Administrative expenses 18,221 ]
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS . 1,229,159
———— Frid
B
L
Net increase 2,811,587
Fund balance reserved for pension benefits: ’ !
JANUARY 1, 1998 21,311,771
N
DECEMBER 31, 1998 $ 24,123,358 }
[
Ed
[
HI

— See notes to financial statements. —
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
Investment Trust Fund _ For the Year Ended December 31, 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
INVEST
Program
For Local
Governments
5 41,276
371
Net increase in net assets resulting from OPETAHONS wv.eevouvruv et e s eeeeeneeenas 40,905
Net investrment incorne distributions t0 PArtICIDANES. ...evee . eeeesseeeeceeeeeesoseeenmescecessens {40,900}
Share transactions (at net asset value of $1.00 per share):
SDATES PUICHASEM. ..cu.veusirsrecsense s tecsssreeeaemermsrrastssesssrerasanssessanssamsbbes shost somemmeesnsenssensesmsens 2,462,376
Shares issued in lieu of cash dIStIBUHONS. ... vverereeseensisere s ese seeonneseeneeeasemssnesas : 32,591
Shares redeemed. ... oo e eeevrrre s rssesasns (2,198,448}
Net increase in net assets from share transactions " 296,519
Net increase in net assets. 296,524
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 1998 537,178
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 $ 833,702

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET D

Discretely Presented Component Units N June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o
(Expressed in Thousands) _ :
College Total o
: Fiduciary and {(Memorandum
Governmiental Proprietary Fund - University Only)
Funds Fuonds Note 1 Funds Component Units
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets: .
Cash—Note D. i 2,822 5 72,894 $ - 3 46,330 5 122,046
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D 294 9,714 - - 10,008 i 1 :
Ternporary invest Note D 223,496 1,412,802 1,440,997 197,685 3,274,980 ; J :
Long-term investinents—Note D 416,263 1,241,211 50,793,776 409,137 . 52,860,387 e
Receivable, net: :
A 52 19275 - 30,770 50,097 ;
Accrued interest, . 1,925 79,322 - - 81,247 }
Notes and loans—Note G 1,365 6,231,718 - 31,643 6,264,726 "
Lease rental—Note G. 3,701,550 15,861 - - 3,717.441
Pension conibutions. - - 251,487 - 251,487
Investment proceeds - - 782,843 - 782,843 L
Othet. 735 - 218228 - 3,645 222,609 i
Due from other funds—Nots H 417 - - 194,652 195,069 !
Pue from primary government—Note H - 6,347 1,340 - 7,687
Due from component units—Note H - 142 - - 142 [
Bue from other governments-Note B 112 2,351 17 - 2,430 : !
Inventory. - 6915 - 4,591 11,506 o
Fixed assets—Note E. L. 3,930,790 18,552 953,522 ' 4,502,564
Less: accumulated dep - (1,853,986) {12,438) (303,215) (2,169,639)
Other assets 19 328,092 - 34,806 | 362917 ]
Other Debits: _ {
Amounts available for retirement of otker bonds. 91,084 - - - 91,084 J
Amounts to be provided for the refirement oft
Other bonds 3,701,584 - - - 3,701,584
Other general long-term cbligations. 243 - - - 243 o
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS § 3,141,991 3 11,503,448 $ 53494802 § 1,603,566 $ 74,743,808
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS L
Liabilities: . L
Accomnts payable and accrued lisbilities 3 10,845 3 222,768 3 269736 § 126373 3 620,722 Lo
Investment purchases payable - - 1,026,774 - 1,026,774 E
Obligtions under securities lending, - - 3231012 - 3221012 T
Due 1o other funds-—Note H 417 - - 194,652 195,069
Dite 10 primary povermment—Note H. - 32,530 1,975 4,774 35,279 o
Due 10 component units—Note H. - 142 - - 142 : l
Dhre to other g 2,922 256,981 - - 259,903 P
Deferred revenue. 3,701,719 598 - 40,140 3,742,457
Notes payable—Note J - 436399 - - 436,399 o
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J - 946,000 - - 945,000 %
Other Lizbilities. 114 334,100 - 407,482 741,696 1
Bonds payable—Note K 3,792,668 . - - 3,792,663 Lo
Revenue bonds payable—Note K. - 5,668,054 - - 5,668,054
Capital Jease obligations—Note K 243 - - 379,925 380,168
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,508,928 - 7.897572 4,519,497 . 1,153,346 21,079,343
Equity and Other Credits: -
Contributed capital-~Note H - 1,651,912 - - 1,651,912
Investment in fixed assets. - - - 250,209 290,209 .
Retained eamings: ; i{
Reserved—Note C. - 1,267,244 - - 1,267,244 f
Unreserved - 686,720 . - 686,720
Fund balance:
Reserved for: .
Encumbrances 6,557 . - 35317 41,874 .
Pension benefits. - - 48,975,306 - 48,975,306 i
Loans receivable. - - - 34,675 34,675
Endowment and similar funds - - . - 15,740 15,740
Restricied fund balance 2,657 - - 34,653 37,310
Other—Note C. 4,768 - - 156,547 161,315 E .
Unreserved: -t
Designated for:
Capital projects. 503,148 - - - 503,149 e
Debt service: :
Retirement of other bonds. 91,084 - - - 91,084
Other. 3,392 - - - 3,392
Undesignated (deficit)—Note C 21,456 - - (116,921 (95,465)
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS. 633,063 3,605,876 48,975,306 450,220 53,664,465
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS cvcvscsinnes § 8,141,991 § 11,503.448 $ 53494803 § 1,603,566 § 74,743,808

— See notes to financial staternents. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units " June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

i Pennsylvania
: State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets: . .
Cash—Note D k) 430 5 1 $ - b 2,341 s 2,822
Cash with fiscal F-1-023 ¢ - SRR - - 204 - 204
Temporary investments—Note D 58,985 13,004 3,614 147,893 223,496
Long-term investments—Note D 28,110 - - 388,153 416,263
Receivables, net:
Accounts....... 4 - 48 - 52
Accrued interest 484 61 - 1,380 1,925
Notes and loans—Note G . 1,365 - - - 1,365
Lease rental—NOE G e ececerrcareres sseersanssvensrevesssensens 345,623 - - 3,355,957 3,701,580
Other... - - - 735 735
Due from primary government—Note H.....cceervecrcresarenenn 417 - - - 417
Due from other governments. - - 112 - 112
Other assets - - 19 - 19
Other Debits: _
Amounts avzilable for retirement of other bonds......ceveee...... 1,843 - - 89,241 91,084
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
Other bonds... 345,627 - - 3,355,957 3,701,584
Other general long-term obligations 243 - - - : 243
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS .ireeesresresssserssnas 5 783,181 $ 13,066 3 4,087 5 7,341,657 $ 8,141,991
: LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
) Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. cmeeincececeennceee 3 2,604 g 4721 % 299 3 3,215 5 10,845
Due to other funds 417 - - - 417
Due to other governments. - 2,922 - - 2,922
Deferred revenue. 345,623 - - 3,356,096 3,701,719
: Other liabilities 106 - 8 - 114.
Bonds payable—Note K - 347,470 - - 3,445,198 3,792,668
i Capitat lease and other genetal long-term obligations............ 243 - - - 243
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 696,463 7,649 307 6,804,509 7,508,928
Fund Batance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. - 6,557 - - 6,557
Restricted fUnd Dalance.. v erersemseemrresmersscmsisssssssssse sssens 2,657 - ‘ - - 2,657
(01,1 - - - 4,768 4,768
Unreserved:
I Designated for:
" Capital projects 60,010 - . 443,139 503,149
’ Debt service:
Retirement of other bonds. 1,843 - - 89,241 91,084
Other. Co- - 3,392 - 3,392
Undesignated 22,208 (1,140) 388 - 21,456
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. 86,718 5417 3,780 $37,148 633,063

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.ccrneee. $ 783,181 3 13,066 3 4,087 § 7,341,657 % 8,141,991

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

- Governmental Funds -
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
-Intergovemmental.............

Pennsylvania

Charges for sales and services...........
Investment income

Lease rental principal and interesh.. o o rsmsmmsrsrsssressssarsraces
OMHET it issner e s s s se s sner s e s s e

7 . TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Protection of persons and property

Public education

" Economic development and assistance

Capital outlay

Debt service:

_ Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds

Refunding bond proceeds.

Operating transfers in-—Note H

Operating transfers out—Note H.

Operating transfer from primary government—Note H..............

Payment to refunded bond ¢scrow agent

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES.

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1998

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1999

State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
5 - $ 327 $ - s - $ 327
1115 - 8,246 966 10,327
4,721 795 231 16,506 25,253
35218 - - 286,217 321,435
5,768 - 173 6,489 12,430
46,822 1,122 8,650 313,178 369,772
- - 10,466 - . 10,466
1,662 - - 1,115 2,777
- 43,678 - - 43,678
42,760 - - 436,901 479,661
29,848 - - 167,709 197,557
14,101 - - 155,829 169,930
88,371 43,678 10,465 761,554 904,069
{41,549) (42,556) (1,816) (448,376) (534,297)
44,080 - - 453,435 497,515
33,895 - - 181,110 215,005
47,404 - - 502,038 540,442
(47,404 - - (502,038) (549,442)
- 40,400 - - 40,400
(33,359) - - (178,167) (211,526)
44,616 40,400 - 456,378 541,394
3,067 (2,156) {1,816) 8,002 7,097
83,651 7 7,573 . 5,596 529,146 625,966
$ 86,718 $ 5,417 3. 3,780 $ 537,148 $ 633,063

— See notes to financial statements, -—
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvaniz Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Inirastructure
Commission Development . Finance Assistance Investment
{May 31, 1999) Autkority Apgency Apency Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash—Note D. 3 62,095 3 - $ 2,876 3 7,910 3 13 3 72,894
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D... - - - 3,008 6,706 9,714
Temporary invesments—Note D... 169,118 136,667 407,549 448,447 251,021 1,412,802
Lorg-term investments—Note ... 732,535 98,954 401,434 8,238 - 1,241,211
Receivables, net:
Accounts, 6,004 - - 63 13,203 - 19,275
Acerued interest. 9,116 3,420 - 64,118 2,668 79,322
Notes and loans—~Note G - 60H,239 2,703,483 1,834,537 1,092,459 6,231,718
Lease rentals—Noe G - 15,861 - - - 15,861
Due from primary government—Noze H......... 6,347 - B - - 6,347
Due from component units—Note H...., - - 45 - 97 142
Drue from other govemnmens—Note B.. - - - 2,310 41 2,351
Inventory. 6915 - - - - 6,915
Fixed assets—Note E 3,780,411 - 8,111 141,877 391 3,930,790
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,811,110) - (3,015) {39,618) {243) {1,853,986)
Other assets, 31,930 10,321 13,726 254,901 17,214 328,092
TOTAL ASSETS 5 2,993,361 $ 866,462 $ 3,534,327 5 2,738,931 $ 1,370,367 5 11,503,448
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Lizbilities:
Accounts payable and accrued lizbilities....vveceeiccrens. 8 100,260 $ 367 3 51,136 3 66,448 5 4,557 3 " 222,768
Due to primary government—Note H.... 4,608 - : 16 90 27,816 32,530
Duze 10 component units—Note H.......... - - 97 - 45 142
Due to other sovernments. - - - 256,976 5 256,981
Deferred revenue - - - 598 . 598
Notes payable—Note I. - - 6,049 430,350 . 436,399
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J..vcvrcenssinsonse - - - 946,000 - 945,000
Other liabilities. 17,439 10,776 252,855 53,030 - 334,100
Revenue bonds payable—Note K. 1,543,481 378,053 2,720,851 837,785 187,884 5,658,054
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,665,788 389,196 3,031,004 2,591,277 220,307 7,897,572
Equity:
Contributed capital—Note H 247,480 327,840 1,960 - 1,074,632 1,651,912
Retained earnings:
Reserved-~Note C 1,080,093 - 124,470 62,681 - 1,267,244
Unreserved - 149,426 376,893 84,973 75,428 686,720
TOTAL EQUITY 1,327,573 477,266 503,323 147,654 1,150,060 3,605,876
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY . § 2,993,361 3 866,462 ‘$ 3,534,327 ¥ 2,738,931 $ 1,370,367 3 11,503,448

-— See notes to financial staterents. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSiES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
‘Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Yéear Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sates and services.
Investment income
Interest on notes and oans....
Other.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.ccocemvarennrsene

OPERATING EXPENSES:
~ Cost of sales and services
Interest expense,
Depreci ion
Provision for wicollectible ACCOUNTS- wevvuruversemessssnssiens
Other.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES —ovsscsssminranes

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) reerrecesssssnsnns —

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income.
Interest expense.
il company franchise tax.

Other revenue
Other expense:

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET.cwmcemsenrasene

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS.

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
QOperating manslers from primary govemment—
Note H.

INCOME (1.0SS) BEFORE

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS o iccossmmsemirmssarrarares

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.......

NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1998ccuscrersmnemre

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1999.cccrererrrersse

— See notes to financial statements. —
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Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania: Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1999) Authority Agency Agency Authority Taotal
$ 350,565 K] - $ 136,964 3 256,002 $ 2,747 3 746,278
- 11,376 29,946 19,848 9,436 70,606
- 20,702 186,757 148,472 19,748 375,680
12,700 725 2,757 362 - 16,544
363,265 32,803 356,424 424,684 31,932 . 1,209,108
190,179 3,226 138,379 579,622 2,134 913,540
- 21,845 175,551 121,826 11,603 330,325
132,866 - 325 10,712 40 143,943
- 1,221 16,468 - 1,539 19,228
- 2,577 600 - - 3,177
323,045 28,869 331,323 712,160 15,316 1,410,713
40,220 3,934 25,101 (287,476) 16,616 (201,605)
36,079 - - - - 36,079
{79,895) - - - - (79,895}
41,891 - - - - 41,891
- - - 3,563 - 3,563
- - - (75,919} u (75,919)
(1,925} - - (72,356) - (74,281)
38,295 3,934 25,101 {359,832) 16,616 (275,886)
. - - 314,666 - 314,666
38,295 3,934 25,101 (45,166} 16,616 38,780
- - (620) - - (620)
38,295 3,934 24,481 {45,166) 16,616 38,160
1,041,798 145,492 476,882 192,820 58,812 1,915,804
§ 1,080,093 $ 149,426 3 501,363 3 147,654 5 75,428 b3 1,953,964

3
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating i (loss).

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Net amortization.
Provision for uncollectible account

"
Nor

Nonoperating exp
Reclzssification of itvesmsnt HOOME. ..o eoseemsemmomsons
Changes in assets and Liabilities:
Receivable
Due from primary g
Dhie from componest units.
Due from other governments
Inventory.
Other current assets
Accounts payable and
Due to primary government.
Due to comp
Due to other govi s,
Deferred rov
Crther current lizbilities.

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES. oo ennee

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligati
Principal paid on debe obligation
Operating transfers from primary SOVEMMENL. ... vecreracrsrens
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES,

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Ismeance of debr obligations. oo cereene
Principal paid on debt obii
Interest paid on debt obligations.
Increase in comtributed capital
Decrease in contribarted capital
Acquisition and construction of capital ASSELS..cmmcmerereannn
Proceeds from sake of CapItal AS5ELS.ererrsmrnrrressmsermrarsmirensrenes

d liabilities

units,

Oil company franchise tax
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES o eeersemiesinses

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of i
Proceeds for sale and maturitics Of MVESIIEALS. ..cvmmreresensenss
In income.
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES.

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH.oooooooo
CASH, JULY 1, 1993

CASH, JUNE 30, 1999

Therewmnommrialinvesﬁng,mpimlorﬁmneingacﬁﬁﬁswhichdidnotmﬂtinmhmceipuormhpaymentsduringmeﬁscalym.

~— See notes to financial statements. —
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Pennsylvaniz
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pepnsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1999 Anthority Agency Agency Anthority Total
5 40,220 5 3,934 5 25,101 $ (287.476) s 16,616 5 (201,605%
132,866 - 325 10,712 40 143,943
8,579 - - - 9,579
- 1,221 16,468 - 1,539 19,228
- - - 3,563 Co- 3,563
R - - (75.915) - (75,919)
- (11,376 (29,546) 19,848} (9,436) {70,606)
(5,633) 35,180 (88,791) (135,164) (16,165) (210,573}
(37 - - - - B37D
- - G - (12) (19)
- - - 47,715 202 48,617
(54) - - . - (59)
(17,601) 183 {768) {237,636) (2,336} (258,158)
26,442 (125) 265 (8,144} 268 18,706
38 n ] (23} (1,985) (1,977)
- - 12 - 7 1%
- - - 121,15 2 127,717
- . - (42,342) ()] (42,348)
6,994 (537) 40,059 (907) - 45,649
152,594 24,545 (62,349) {330,278 {27,182} {242,670}
192,814 28,479 {37,248) (617,754) {10,566) {444,275)
- - 255,956 257,203 - 513,19%
- (20,795) {222,709 {56,594) - {300,058)
- - - 314.666 - 314,666
- (20,755) 33,287 515,275 - 527,767
588,359 - - - 1,844 590,159
(145,762) - - - (10,765) (156,527)
(75,895) - . - : . (79,895)
30,933 20,060 - - 73,988 124,521
- - - - (2,076) (2,076)
(307,101) - (2,543) (18,053) (122} (327,819)
41,391 - - - - 41,891
128,421 20,000 (2,543) {18,053) 62,869 190,694
(1,260,123) (64.235) , (477,685) {2,626,570) (180,205) (4,608,878}
898,277 22,850 454,359 2,733,108 123,851 4,232,456
36,079 11,376 20,946 19,848 5,872 107,121
(325,767) (30,059} 6,620 126,387 {46.482) (269,301
(4,532) (2375) 116 5,855 5,821 4,885
66,627 2,375 2,760 5,063 898 77,723
$ 62,005 3 - $ 2,876 $ 10,918 5 5,719 3 82,608
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
Pension Trust Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,1999 ]
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Public School Employes' Refirernent System
! [
Postemployment Healthcare i i
[ ] L
Premium Health Options ) :
- Pension Assistance Program Total 0y
i1
ADDITIONS: |
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of INVESINENTS ... ervcvmeeereeeersrerss 5 4,101,773 $ 337) - § - $ 4,101,236 o
Pension contributions: .
Employee 535,640 - . 110,867 646,507
Employer. . 511,405 12,955 - 524,360
Other sources 2,535 65 - 2,600 P
Investment income : 1,557,205 4,063 803 1,562,071 ¢ |
TOTAL ADDITIONS _ ‘ 6,708,558 16,546 111,670 6,836,774 1
|
DEDUCTIONS: i
Benefit payments 2,283,596 31,658 110,772 2,426,026 T
Refunds of contributions 20,110 - - 20,110
Investment expenses 234,628 20 - 234,648
Administrative expenses 24,248 684 2,854 27,786
Net account, transfers..... 10,247 - - 10,247
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 2,572,829 32,362 113,626 2,718817
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 4,135,729 (15,816) (1,956} 4,117,957 .
Fund balance reserved for pension and postemployment healthcare benefits:
JULY'1,1998.. . 44,775,703 76,135 5,511 44,857,349 :
'JUNE 30, 1999 §. 48911432 3 60,319 $ 3,555 $ 48,975,306 <

-
]
1

— See notes to financial statements. — . '
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 COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Unrestricted Restricted Total
REVENUES:
Tuition and fees $ 416,119 $ - 3 416,119
Govemnment grants and contracts:
State and local 2,370 69,340 71,710
Federal 2,214 75,908 78,122
Private gifts, grants and contracts 5,496 8,140 13,636
Investment income. 20,515 185 20,700
Decrease in the fair value of investments (2,340} (4) (2,344)
Endowment incorte. 95 512 607
Activities of educational departments. 8,745 - 8,745
Other sources 14,114 521 14,635
Auxiliary enterprises 148,330 - 148,330
e TOTAL REVENUES 615,658 154,602 770,260
. EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EXPENDITURES:
Educational and general:
Instruction 433,461 6,998 440,459
Research 867 2,391 3,258
Public service. £,672 20,947 29,619
Academic support. 94,643 4,187 98,835
Student services. 81,761 4,591 86,352
Operations and maintenance of plant 88,513 262 88,775
Generzl institutional support 136,856 4,142 140,998
Student aid 10,996 109,239 120,235
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAI 855,774 152,757 1,008,531
Auxiliary enterprises 126,636 277 126,913
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 982,410 153,034 1,135444
MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
Renewal and replacement 46 - 46
: Retirement of indebtness 5,086 - 5,086
: Loan funds matching grants. 319 - 319
Other. 37,728 110 37,838
P TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS. 43,179 iI10 43,289
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY
TRANSFERS 1025589 153,144 178,733
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND DEDUCTIONS: '
Operating transfers from Primary Govermment—Note H 416,262 1,557 417,819
Other transfers (22,887 - (22,887)
. Deductions - 2,151) (2,151
Pl OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER
: TRANSFERS AND DEDUCTIONS, NET 393,375 (594) 392,781
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES 3. 864 3

— See notes to financial statements. —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A—FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Primary Government

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government (PG). The PG
includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth. The
PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which are not legally separate.

Component Units -

In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented component units.
Component units inclede all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would
cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability
include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to,
or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered. The following organizations
are included in the financial reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The SERS is a public employe retirement
system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting board members and, on a very limited
basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS to provide pension benefits to PG employes. The PG
makes essentially all employer contributions to the SERS; PG employes make almost all of the employe
contributions to the SERS (virtually all PG employes are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible. for all of -
the SERS pension obligations. The SERS is a blended component unit because it provides services and benefits
almost exclusively to the PG. '

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority
(HEFA) (Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited obligation revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities for school districts and public and private
colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely from lease rental payments from the schools. Upon
completion of the lease payment requirements (and satisfaction of bondholders), the title to the constructed or
acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints 2ll nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA goveming boards; mine high-ranking
members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is able to impose its will. The PG
Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal
dependency). Although neither the PG nor the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease
rental payments from schools), the PG may take certain actions to satisfy the SPSBA and the HEFA bondholders.

Ben Frankli/IRC Partnership (Partnership) (Governmental Fund Type) — The Partnership assists business
through interaction of technology development, modemization and training programs. Industrial resource centers
and technology centers, established through the Partmership, also increase the competitiveness of businesses.
Operations of the Parership are funded by state appropriations and private contributions; the Partnership may not
issue debt. The Partnership works closely with the Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED).
The PG appoints all fifieen voting members of the goveming board. All Partnership expenditures must be
appropriated annually by the General Assembly.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) {Governmental Type) — The IFPA assists m the prevention,
discovery, investigation and prosecution of insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through assessments paid by the
insurance industry and through certain criminal and civil fines, penalties and awards.

The PG appoints six of seven voting members of the IFPA governing board; the Attorney General serves ex-officio
as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the Section on Insurance Fraud in the
Office of Attorney General; this indicates a financial benefit/burden. The IFPA. is not fiscally dependent on the PG.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHEAA makes
grants and loans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending institutions and post-secondary
schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA grant program; the PHEAA issues 1evenue
bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also
services student loan portfolios for lending institutions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA. A significant
PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the PG is not obligated for the
PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The PHEAA is fiscally dependent,
as the Governor must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund T ype) — The PHFA makes loans to eligible
individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs benefit low and moderate-income
individuals and families. '

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will. The Governor is

required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA whenever a deficiency exists in the

 capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to avoid a default on the PHFA debt. This represents 2 PG
moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The Govemnor must approve the issuance of the PHFA debt.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA collaborates with
local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or expand the work force, assist
targeted economic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made at lower-than-market interest rates; the
interest rates are based on local unemployment and other economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to
finance the loan program. Loan repayments are used for debt service payments. The PIDA operates closely with the
‘DCED. :

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has provided
contributed capital; “excess” PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The PG is not obligated for the PIDA
debt, but the PG could take certain actions io satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PENNVEST
makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities, businesses and nonprofit organizations for
the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST
obtains funds through Commonwealth general obligation bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds,
‘the Federal government and contributed amounts from Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the
PENNVEST debt service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with the Department of Environmental
Protection.

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments. By issuing
general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed capital, the PG creates a
significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST debt, but the PG could take certain actions
to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) {Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created to construct,
maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth. Activities are financed through user tolls and the
issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through user tolls. The PTC works closely with the
Department of Transportation.

The PG appoints all voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all contracts related to
turnpike construction and supervise construction. When all the PTC bondholders have been satisfied, the PTC assets
revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve the issuance of all the PTC debt. The PG is
not obligated for the PTC debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Public School Employes® Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The PSERS was created to
administer and provide pension benefits to public school empioyes in Pennsylvania. The PSERS covers almost all
such employes. Employer contributions are made by covered, elementary and secondary school employers with the
PG reimbursing each employer at least half their required annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

employes of higher education institutions and state-owned schools are shared equaily by covered employers and the
PG; all covered public school employes also make contributions.

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by active or retired
public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to making sigrificant contributions to
the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and other pension benefits. This represents a compelling
PG financial burden.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was created to provide
instruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen universities and an administrative
headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants and PG subsidies.

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trustees of universities; three
must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to the SSHE. The PG is not obligated
for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsyivania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA)—The PEDFA was created to lend money
primarily to businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth. The PEDFA issues revenue bonds
to fund specific projects only and repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-
recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received by the Authority from the
funded projects. Financial statement information for the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves
conduit debt.

The PG appoints all sixteen board members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated for the PEDFA
debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of PEDFA revert to
the Commonwealth,

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA)—The PEDA was created to promote the development of
energy sources within the Commonwealth. The PEDA issued revenue bonds and lent the proceeds to fund three
specific projects. Loan repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered NOD-TECOUrSE, as
the PEDA is not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received from the funded projects. The PEDA has not
issued any debt since 1990. Financial statement information for the PEDA is not reported because its only activity
involves conduit debt.

The PG appoigts all nineteen board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must approve the issuance
of Authority debt. The PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy
bondholders.

Financial Reports

The Commonwealth sponsors the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an external investment pool, which is
reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Audited financial statements for the INVEST Program and for component
units are available by writing to the Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations, Room 207 Finance Building,
Harrisburg, PA 17120,

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG appoints all eleven
governing board members but is not financially accountable, as there is mo imposition of will, no financial
benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS. Local governments are the only participants in the
PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are variations among different municipal pension plans. Local
participating governments are financially responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth
provides accounting services to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG appoints all seven
governing board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will and no financial
benefitburden. The ATPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG. The operation of the ATPA is funded by an annual
assessment paid by companies providing automobile insurance in the Commonwealth. The PG processes cash
receipts and disbursements for the ATPA.

27



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reperting Entity (continued)

Joint Venture

The Commonwealéh, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
(PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employe labor unions. The PEBTF establishes
and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare benefits. A governing board administers the PEBTF, one-
half of whose members are each appointed by the Commonwealth and the various umioms. Neither the

' Commonwealth nor the unions control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally
shared. The Commonwealth unilaterally pays for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based on
the terms contained in collective bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financially responsible for making
contributions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an equity interest or any ongoing financial
interest in the PEBTF. Aside from its obligation to make periodic, established contributions, the Conumonwealth is
not responsible for any obligations of the PEBTF.

Excluded Organizations

Schootl districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary governments, as they
are governed by popularly elected officials.

Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered as potential
component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These schools may receive significant
PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint 2 voting majority of governing board members,
nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations. Although various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly
influence these organizations, the PG does not conirol day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not
fiscally dependent on the PG.

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University, University of
Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and Temple University, were considered as potential component units. The PG
appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the govemning board at each university and provides significant
operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence of the PG appointment of a voting majority and the lack
of fiscal dependency, these universities are excluded from the financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity,
with a2 self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related Habilities and
equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the Commonwealth, funds are
established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commonwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the primary
government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The General Fund js the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from other funds, for
the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public organizations
(other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis,
including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State Workmen’s
Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 and the State Stores Fund for its
fiscal year ended June 29, 1999, '

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental 1units, on a cost-
_ reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These include
Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund, an Investment Trust Fund and Agency Funds. The State
Employes’ Retirement System, 2 Pension Trust Fund, the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Expendable
Trust Fund, and the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, are included for
their fiscal years ended December 31, 1998.

Account Groups

General Fixed dssets Account Group—Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or constructed for use
by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds,
Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—Accounts for all long-term obligations of the
Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University Funds.

The Component Units include Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and College and
University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but are considered part of the reporting entity.
The College and University Funds are as follows:

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities, which
comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with the accounting guidance and reporting
practices outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Colleges and Universities, and other applicable guidance. Accordingly, the College and University Funds
are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds—Unrestricted and University Designated—Account for economic resources of the
institution which are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
universities and have not been designated by the govemning body for any other purpose.

Current Funds—Restricted—Account for resources received from donors or other outside agencies
that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds—Account for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds—Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds and quasi-
endowment funds.

Endowment Funds—Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a condition of the
gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity for
investment. Investment eamings may be added to the principal or expended for restricted or
umrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds—Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of which may be
expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular event.

 Quasi-Endowment Funds—Account for resources that the governing board of an institution, rather
than an outside source, has determined will be retained and invested. Since this is an internal
designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend the principal of these funds at any
time.

Plant Funds—Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional properties and to
service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed assets and the source from
which the cost is funded. .

Agency Funds—Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of an agent for
distribution to designated beneficiaries. :

Component Units—Account for certain legally separate affiliated organizations for which the Board is
financially accountable.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revemue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency funds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only cwrent assets and
current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases
(i.e., revemues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available spendable resources. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust funds are recognized in the year that they
become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal year-end) to pay current fiscal year liabilities. The
Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue sources that are both measurable and available:

Sales and use taxes, cigareite taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods and
services.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the fiscal year
the goods or services are received and the related fund Hability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for principal
and interest on general long-term obligations are recogmized when due unless resources have been provided for
payment early in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal
year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when the items are used. Expenditures for claimns,
judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions are reported as the amount accrued during
the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Budgetary
encumbrances are not reported as expenditures.

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the flow of
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus all assets
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuved)

and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net
total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the fiscal year camed and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Under GASB
Statement 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That
Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt the Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989,

The College and University Funds, a component umit, are reported using the “financial flow” (spending)
measurement focus and the’ accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with existing authoritative
accounting and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary): The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit a budget
annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly may add,
change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retains veto power over the
individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce individual appropriations, but
may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be overridden only by a two-thirds majority of each House of the
Geperal Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by the General
Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the Govemor, plus (less)
the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for constitutionally authorized debt
service payments.

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Worlanen’s Compensation Adnumsu‘atlon
Banking Department
Milk Marketing

Budgetary expenditure control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authority level).
Encumbrances and expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between or within
departments and any supplemental appropriztions require both executive and legislative branch approval
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become avaﬂable for appropriation in the
subsequent year.

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $707 million in supplemental appropriations approved
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted
budgets. Controls over spending in such Special Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive
authorizations) established by the Govemnor. The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize
expenditures for various capital projects. Appropriations for capital projects normally remain in effect until the
completion of each project unless modified or rescinded. Note T provides more information on budgetary
compliance.

On the budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revehue accruals are recorded at fiscal year end for the
General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and use taxes and
personal income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to the Motor License
Fund, which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but not collected at fiscal year end. Also, estimated
encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages,
travel, and utility costs payable against current year appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent year.
Over estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the subsequent year and under estimates are charged to
subsequent year appropriation authority.
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (continued) : A N

Budgeted rtevenues in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates while
expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented on the
budgetary basis (see Note T). Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation of the .
differences between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M. _ J

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth funds are pooled by the

Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for receipt and 1
disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial institutions to I
guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit. o

Cash Equivalents: No investments which could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the b
Statement of Cash Flows; therefore, net changes in cash only are displayed. ' |

Investment Pools: The Fiscal Code provides the Treasury Department with investment comtrol over most
Commonwealth finds. The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated internal investment pools to ensure
safety and maximize efficiency, liquidity and yield for Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report
amounts invested in such pools as temporary and/or long-term investments; the pools themselves are not financially
reported. The Treasury Department maintains an external investment pool, the INVEST Program for Local o
Governments, which separately issues audited financial statements, and is reported as an Investment Trust Fund. o

Temporary Investments:. The Treasury Department manages the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP); practically
all individual funds which are part of primary government are participants in the STIP. The Treasury Department “
accounts for each participating fund’s equity (considered “shares”) in the STIP on a daily basis. “Share” balances of
participating funds fluctuate considerably during the fiscal year, based on the timing of cash receipts and '
disbursements in the participating fund, and are reported as temporary investments. The STIP is considered an

internal investmnent pool. '

Several individual funds may directly own investments in specific securities.. Such investments which are expected
to be realized in cash within twelve months or less are reported as temporary investments. Temporary investments
are reported at fair value (typically using published market prices) except for nonparticipating interest-bearing
contracts, which are reported at cost.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported as long-term -

investments. Long-term investments are reported at fair value, except for certain nonparticipating interest-bearing

" contracts, which are reported at cost. Fair values are based on published market prices, quotations from national B
securities exchanges and securities pricing services, or by the respective fund managers for securities which are not :

-~ actively traded. Other investments are valued based on appraisals or the present value of projected future income. a

Investment Income: Investment income includes interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and the change in the =
fair value of investments, if any, during the fiscal year. =

Due From Other Governments: This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government
for various department programs. _ :

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenues oy
when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred. v

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College and
University Funds. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for Proprietary and :
weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types, inventories are accounted for P
on the purchases method.
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed
assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on general
fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were acquired or
constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the Commonwealth’s General
Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed by the SSHE subsequent to June 30,
1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE debt are also reported in the Commonwealth’s
General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment is used to conform to the enabling legislation for
the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Penston Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated historical
cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
lives are used:

BUIlAIDES...ciiesesirmstsermreresereseesasesesesecetanesesracresrasesrstatsasarssasasnsnsssnssnie 10-50 years

Improvements other than buildings........oocececeeeammescrrrrrerseeee e 5-50 years

Furniture, machinery and equipment werreesaseennanre s steaanns 3-25 years
Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over the
estimated useful life of the assets,

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital
benefits, employe disability and tort claims. Note O provides disclosures for self-insurance liabilities.

Compensated Absences: Employes earn annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid. A
maximum of 45 days may be camried forward at the end of each calendar year. Employes are paid for accumulated
annual leave upon termination or retirement.

Employes earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. A maximum of 300 days may be carried forward
at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employes that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid in
accordance with the following schedule: _

Days Available. - Percentage Maximum
at Retirement - Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 {(in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13

Accumulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds and
Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary, Pension
Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year earned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service costs
over varying periods not exceeding 20 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal
budgetary mtegration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Governent.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred to as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was created in July of
1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits, and promote
greater contimzity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax stabilization reserve is not
to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revemues of the General Fund. Revenue is provided through an executive
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

authorization appropriated by the General Assembly for iransfer to this fund. Whenever the Governor determines a
need to transfer moneys from this fund, a request for an appropriation is made to the General Assembly. An
appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members of the General Assembly. Also, Act 35
of 1991 provides that in any fiscal year in which there is a surplus of operating funds in the General Fund, as
certified by the Budget Secretary, fifteen percent of such surplus shail be deposited into this fimd. In addition, the
proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets of the Commonwealth are also to be deposited mto this fund.
For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is reported as a fund balance reservation in the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers)—Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
“Operating transfers in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers out” by the disbursing fund.
Legally required transfers between primary government and component unit organizations are reported
when incurred as “Operating transfers from component unit” by the recipient organization and “Operating
transfers to primary goverument” or “Operating transfers to component unit” by the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund for
another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as 2 reduction of expenditures in the
reimbursed fund. i

Residual Equity Transfers—Nonroutine or nontecurring iransfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance.

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions)—Charges or collections for services rendered by one
fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the
disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1999 is presented in Note
H. '

New Accounting Pronouncement: Effective January 1, 1998 the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Statement 32,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.” This
standard requires that the Comumonwealth’s Deferred Compensation Fund be reported as an Expendable Trust Fund;
the Fund was previously reported as an Agency Fund. Note C includes a disclosure on the reclassification.

Total—Memeorandum Only: The “Total (Memorandum Only)” columns represent an aggregation of the combined
financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical purposes.
These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available to or used by
the Commonwealth. Interfind eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of the totals.
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NOTE C—FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS

Deficits: The Disaster Relief Fund, the Workmen’s Compensation Supersedeas Fund and the Home Investment
Trust Fund, Special Revenue Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $21,769, $8,476 and $688 (amounts in
thousands), respectively, at June 30, 1999,

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$399,809 at June 30, 1999. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported 2 fund balance of $126,318 at June 30,
1999. Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $549,858, designations for Capital
Projects of $81,817 and a deficit unreserved/andesignated fund balance of $399,809, for a total combined fund
balance of $231,886 (amounts in thousands) at June 30, 1999.

The Minority Business Development Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reporied deficit retained eamnings of $31,083
(amount in thousands) at June 30, 1999.

The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of
325,125 (amount in thousands) at June 30, 1999,

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, reported a current funds unrestricted fimd
balance deficit of $269,397 (amount in thousands) at June 30, 1999,

Restatement: The wnreserved/undesignated budgetary basis fund balance for the General Fund has been restated
from $265,377 at June 30, 1998 to $265,312 at July 1, 1998 to account for $65 (amounts in thousands) in spending
autbority which was increased subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998,

Reclassification: The Deferred Compensation Fund was previously reported as an Agency fund type, with total
assets and liabilities of $545,468 as of its fiscal year end of December 31, 1997. Effective January 1, 1998, in
accordance with GASB Statement 32, the Deferred Compensation Fund is reported as an Expendable Trust fund and
reports fund balance of $544,737 (amounts in thousands). '

Reservations and Designations: Reservations represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a
spectfic future use or are not appropriable for expendituxe.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $74.8 million, is applicable to 2 demand loan to the State
Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $2.3 million, both Enterprise
Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million and the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund for $4.3
million, both, Special Revenue Funds. For its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 the State Workmen’s Insurance
Fund has reported an advance from the General Fund in the amount of $2 million.

The amount reserved for advances in the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is applicable to a
$3 million advance to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund.

The $329,014 reported as “Reserved for other” in the General Fund at June 30, 1999 pertains to the following
(amounts in thousands):

Restricted TeVenRe ... e iverers i arereene 3 155,696
Continuing programs... tressentearann et aneas 126,760
Judicial carryover appropriations ........ceeeerereereeseenns 32,613
Other 1eceivables..... e vsesee e serensien 13,945

Total General Fund. ... ceneaeas 3_329.014

The $31,754 reported as “Reserved for other” in the Special Revenue Funds at June 30, 1999 pertains to the
following (amounts in thousands):

Land reclamation.....c.cceceererrreresseesesssscsmseersssssnasas $ 22242
Pharmaceutical assistance PrOZIAINS .....eeveereseerrseens 3,064
RecTeation Programis ... eeccesesnsiseisasserisssaearssseasnns 2,037
ReCYCIIRE PIOZIAMIS....coveecrerrerarensssisiensesesssassesmssnnsaesen 1,467
Oher PIOETAIDS...cccucevsceccsse e nsassses e meses soseees 2,944

Total Special Revenue Funds .........ocoeeevoeceeccnennenns $ 31754
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NOTE C—Fund Balance/Retained Earnings (continned)

The $833.7 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the Trust and Agency Funds pertains to pool participants of
the INVEST Program For Local Governments, an Investment Trust fund, at its fiscal year ended December 31,
1998,

The $4.8 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority, a
discretely presented governmental fund component unit, pertains to trust indentures.

The $156.5 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely presented
component unit, at June 30, 1999 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in subsequent fiscal periods.

Reserved retained earnings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principalty for reserves for contingencies for
the Rehabilitation Center Fund and equipment replacement reserves for other enterprise funds. Reserved retained
earnings reported for Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprictary Funds are provided principally for the
retirement of revenue bonds relating to the Pepnsylvania Twrnpike Commission, student loans relating to the
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, and housing programns relating to the Pepnsylvania Housing
Finance Agency. At June 30, 1999 the Commonwealth has included the following reservations of retained earnings
for the Enierprise Funds and the Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds (amounts in thousands):

Discretely

Presented
Primary Component

Government Units

Rehabilitation Center Fund...... . $ 3,059 3 -
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission . - 1,080,093
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .............. - 62,681
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZERCY «.ocvicccsmisnsnsens - 124,470
Coal and Clay Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund ................... 2,328 -
State Workmen's Insurance Fund _ 3 -
Total...ooaeeeeeaeen . . § 5392 $ 1267244

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources. At June
30, 1999 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “Designated-—Other” for the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds (amounts in thousands):

General Fund: )
Group medical and life insurance . § 68,708
Job creation tax credits veremeneeetrenseaneans 37,083
Judicial COMPULET SYSIEMT ...omecerrmesi e e ceenenense 29,436
Agency construction PIOJECTS ...urrvrerirrirrsrerssresrsresnrsnes 27,765
OMBET.....covereermvrsereseensnsrcessasmemssssce s simmmmme setemnmsabns sasens 17,498
Total General Fund.........cccoviiiiininincsscnstsssisssisscssases $__180.490
Special Revenue Funds: : .
State Lottery ..... SUPORTN by 275

In addition, the Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported $2,565 thousand as
“Designated—-Other” for future worker’s compensation self-insurance claims.

The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority, a discretely presented governmental fund component unit, reported
$3,392 thousand as “Designated—Qther” for future program grants.
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NOTE I — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Authority for deposits and investments:

‘The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301, 301.1 and 505 of the
Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343, No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must
be held in insured depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The
Treasury Department may ivest in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with
maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One” by Moody’s Investors Service or the
equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Investors Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvania banks
or savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by Federal obligations; banker’s acceptances; and
up to a maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any type of investment (other than common
stock) not otherwise specifically authorized. The Treasury Departrnent manages the Short-Term Investment Pool
(STIP) whereby amounts from practically all Commonwealth Funds are invested on a temporary basis. The
objectives of the STIP are safety, liquidity and yield and all investments are made in accordance with the preceding
statutory authority. Throughout the fiscal year, the STIP participates in reverse repurchase agreements; Treasury
Department policies require that the maturity date of reverse repurchase agreements match the maturity date of the
underlying securities

The deposit and investment policies of certain component units are established by authority other than the Fiscal
Code. Enabling statutes generally provide deposit and investment anthority for component units. Further, specific
bond and trust imdentures, as well as formal governing board resolutions, provide deposit and investment
requirements. Allowable investments of component units do not significantly differ from those investments of the

. Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Employes® Retirement
System and the Public School Employes® Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in common and
preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years. These
two Funds also participate in a securities lending program, sponsored by the Treasury Department, and utilize
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. Specific disclosures about Pension Trust Fund investments are
included in this Note.

Deposits:

The Treasury Depariment controls the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included in the
primary governroent. Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of
their own funds, typically through a trustee. The following summaries present the amount of primary government
and discretely presented component unit (Commonwealth) deposits which are fully insured or collateralized with
securities held by the Commonwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits which
are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
Commonwealth’s name (Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the
pledging financial institution or the pledging institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s
name {Category 3) at June 30, 1999 (amounts in thousands).

Primary Government
Total Carrying
Categorv 1 Category 2 Catepory3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash $ 63,013 $ 17,760 $ 8,107 $ 88,880 $ 111,758
Cash with fiscal agents thrernace e 2,683,516 - 3,190 10,364 2,697,070 2,695,963
Certificates of deposit and related items............... 128,828 - 14,415 143,243 143,243

The above-listed $143,243 in certificates of deposit and related items is reported as part of primary govemnment temporary

investments at June 30, 1999. To provide increased income while maintaining safety and liquidity, the Treasury Department

routinely enters into overnight repurchase agreements typically funded through “float” for outstanding checks. At June 30, 1999
. the Treasury Department used $514 million of available cash for overnight repurchase agreemenis. These securities are
. registered in the Commonwealth’s name and are not reported in the financial staternents.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Total Carrying

Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash $ 71,874 $ 26,460 § 52,320 $ 150,654 £ 122,046
Cash with fiscal agents - - 727 10,008 10,735 10,008

o 37



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Investments:

The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units
(Commonwealth) categorize investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s
agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or its agent, but not in the
Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence
of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership interests in mutual funds, mortgage loans,
real estate and venture capitel. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed by the
Commonwealth and the related carrying amount of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1999 (amounts in

thousands).

Primary Government

All primary government investments susceptible to credit risk are in Category 1.

COMIMETCIA] PAPET-.-..coremuremsiarensrassrarassmeassessssoisnssassm s s er s e st astassts s s 5 1,021,449
Common and preferred stock.......eenveenee 8,118,417
Corporate bonds and NOLES ..vrirrsesssrerccerrcresssssisine st nrs s ss s st s ssssss e asnass 2,909,664
International fixed INCOME......ovvmimereescoremraresrnnccnniins . 25,276
RepUIChaSe AZFELIMEIS ..vvnvrurrsrrerinssasusssssmmimmssrssrmssrorinssssssessssssssssseoss 5,891,405
State and municipal ObliZatioNS....ower e e rsasesas ) 298,237
LS. Treasury ObliZations . c..ic e rercscemsrssssessnsssssmssrmsisssnsssrrremsss s cossatasassssanasasns 3,591,274
U.8. Government agency obligations.... 1.024.888
“Total categorized MVESIMERLS w.vurrreesncumrrmmrasersssssrsssmesmsssssrsses oo ssssns s 22,880,610
Add investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Mutual funds owned by the Deferred Compensation Fund at December 31, 1998 ... 707,178

Investments owned by the State Employes’ Retirement Systemn (SERS)
at December 31, 1998:

Mortgage loans . 225,841

Mutual funds...... eesessetese AR AR R SRR e 7,302,435

Pennsylvania Treasury short-term investment pool 729,864

Real estate 1,990,929

Securities lending colliateral T 802,958

VENUIUIE CAPHEL --.cerrecmomermsecorsssssnsassseasssnsraseasamessssrassssss ass asssnss sersssvessemss st bt 1,104,281
Securities lent by SERS at December 31, 1998:

U.S. Treasury securities e ememmesessasmassesessresrenersaraimcniesbsasasrnss 422,943

Corporate bonds and notes 126,737

Common and preferred stocks.. 272,910
Investments owned by the Statutory Liquidator Fund at June 30, 1999: _

ATIIIIIIES +veemeeeeemeeevenscosmemeoneomsssstaresassasassamsneentenmactettaEsssramesataRese s Rt sesnerensdshea e s dereson 2,286

Loans 12,585

Mortgage loans 4,150

Partnership interests, subsidiaries and related items 724
Securities lending collateral held by the Workmen’s Compensation Security

Trust Fund at Jure 30, 1999 344,715
Securities lending collateral held by the State Workmen’s Insurance '

Fund at December 31, 1998... .o wrreesissinsssssnsansimsnsmsssssssssmsssmnsasmasssssssasasasaras ssranss 406,703
Securities underlying reverse repurchase agreements at June 30, 1999......covneeue. 147,223
Amounts invested by discretely presented component units in Pennsylvania

Treasury short-term investment pool at June 30, 1999 (337.760)
37,147,352
Certificates of deposit and related items......... 143,243
Total temporary and long-term investments...... $ 37,290,595

The above-listed $143,243 in certificates of deposit and related items are reported as investments at June 30, 1999,

but are treated as deposits for a determination of the level of credit risk associated with them.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

The State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 97 percent of the common and
preferred stock, 89 percent of the corporate bonds and notes and 57 percent of the U.S. Treasury obligations
reported in the above summary. The Treasury Short-Term Investment Pool owns 87 percent of the repurchase
agreements in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for
investments during the year ended June 30, 1999.

Financia! Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) enters into foreign exchange contracts, such as forward and spot
contracts, to hedge foreign currency exposure. Some foreign currency options also are used for this purpose. The
SERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are used pritarily to enhance performance
and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to enhance performance are fully collateralized,
eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The SERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance
by counterparties to financial instruments. As the SERS generally enters into transactions only with high quality
mstitutions, no losses associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments have been
incurred. Legal risk is mitigated though careful selection of brokers and an extensive process of review of all
documentation. The SERS is exposed to market risk—the risk that future changes in market conditions may make
an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed within risk limits set by management by buying or
selling instruments or entering into offsetting positions.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of
another country at an agreed upon price and settlement date. At December 31, 1998, the SERS had contracts
maturing through December 31, 1999, to purchase or sell foreign currency. The $7,706,723 of total foreign
currency comtracts outstanding at December 31, 1998, consist of “buy” contracts, which represent the U.S. dollar
equivalents of commitments to purchase foreign currency comunitments of $4,162,798 and “sell contracts, which
represent U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to sell foreign currency commitments of $3,543,925 (amounts in
thousands). Net unrealized losses on foreign currency contracts were approximately $35.6 million at December 31,
1998,

Discretely Presented Component Units
Category 1 Category 2 Categorv3 Total

Asset backed SECUMTHES .c.ocevcneeeeecveneneeeseererenanans 3 - $ 62,791 g - § -.62,791
Commercial paper. - 133,789 13,579 147,368
Common and preferred stock 25,218,596 3,086 28 25,221,710
Corporate bonds and notes 3,328,827 44,146 - 3,372,973
Guaranteed investment CONMTACES ... cucurememescnrcsnnns - - 3,538 3,538
Intemnational qUItIEs .....c.ccccoemrvemeerseessreressenssnmssans 8,012,807 - - 8,012,807
International fixed income........................ 1,301,420 - - 1,301,420
Investment agreements - - 131,418 131,418
Mortgage-backed securities 3,302,366 71,229 - 3,373,595
Repurchase agTeements ... ......covuermeemememsssenesrone 176,225 420,625 213,525 810,375
State and municipal obligations.......cc.ce.cceeerrneeneens 193,015 - 62,360 - 255,375
U.S. Treasury obligations 79,591 538,387 - 617,978
U.S. Government agency obligations................... 2,847,261 233,469 . 401 3,081,131
Various short-term investments...........o.ceeesneeecees 474 572 6773 i - 481,345

Total categorized INVESHTIENLS v.vveeremneveceenereneene $ 44934680 $1.576.655 62.4 46,873,824
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Invesiments (continued) o

Investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:

Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority at June 30, 1999:

Guaranteed INVESIMENT COMITACES -vovecearieeeertrsasiistaranisserrsssts ressassamsseammramtsamsas st et eemoranes tassstassinen 1,181 . }
Money MArket FUNAS .....covivrrer reeeeemesieersss sttt st s s sssast shsa s s s e s s s e s 7,892 £
Pennsylvania Treasury INVEST POOL..ooiriicirisinmcmmmecenssss s s s 41,024

Investrents owned by the Higher Educational Facilities Authority at June 30, 1999: ' il

Guaranteed investment contracts ........ 403,371 B
Money market funds 78,871
Investments owned by the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership in Pennsylvania Treasury '{.
short-term investment peol at June 30, 1999 . v e e 13,004
Investments owned by the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority in the Pennsylvania
"Treasury short-term investment pool at June 30, 1999 3,614 T 'é‘
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in ‘
Pennsylvania Treasury short-term investment pool at June 30, 1999.....ceerserrenerens e 541 .
3
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1999: o
Investment agreements 49,387 o
MUIUR] UGS, consrrmesenrnrssnrressrsssorner oo s OR— 83,787 i
Pennsylvania Treasury short-termn iVeStment POOL. . o emrsracanessrmscrsnse et 3,943 i
Investrments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at June 30, 1999:
Money Market SUNAS. ..oviimsimrmsrsessmssesess e s sbss s s e e s s s e 129,839 !
sl
nvestments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority at June 30, 1999: o
IVIEUA] FEHAS e eatevseerisiseesnsrmssareussrmrssensensas semsms sebstsasmetstaessasarens sonms ressnba s ememsesessasms nennrnsssemeames sanee 96,315 ..
Pennsylvania Treasury short-term investtnent pool.... teueerasreraenrenaanyenas 114,792 3
Investrments owned by the Public School Employes® Retirement Systern at June 30, 1999: f
Farmland investments teetessimesssreateteneneaetseet et se i bR AL LSRR SRR SRR RAFRRRRA S EEAMA SRR YO YR SIS SRR ET T 74472
Invested with Permsylvania Treasury DEPartiment...........couursisssssssesemsenmssmsesssmssesasnas sasrossassassees 1,140,093 i3
Mutual fands.......omecreeceeemeeecssasssssisssssnsmsss sassssossrsrsnss smsnass 1,227,386 _
Private placements...... 16,438
REA] ESLALE ...evevevereeriaccemcememsceintnbomssensasansmeamemenasuens saremormseamrareeatenbaee ks b4 S SRR LA AR R R AR RS R Rs pRnm R e s 1,704,095 .
SECUTTtiEs 1endInG COALETAL...r.vv.r.umusrressrsescreremareeressssessesseaseereseocecscecrcees 3,221,012 T
Venture capital............ 818,436 o
Investments owned by the State System of Higher Education at June 30, 1999: :
Mutual funds and other investments S — 32,050 o
Total temporary and long-term IVESHNENTS........cuu.coveercuriareerersesversenrsensestessassassss $56,135.367 1l

The total amount invested by discretely presented component units in the Pennsylvania Treasury short-term
investment pool and reported as temporary investments at June 30, 1999 is $135,894 thousand; also, the
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency did not report $201,866 thousand, which is invested in the
Pennsylvania Treasury short-term investment pool at June 30, 1999, as temporary investments.

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS), a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent
of the common and preferred stock, 99 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 100 percent of intermational
equities, 100 percent of international fixed income, 98 percent of mortgage-backed securities, and 78 percent of
U.S. government agency obligations reported in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory
-authority or contractual provisions for investments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments {continued)

Financial Insiruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Public Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) enters into a variety of financial contracts, which include
options and futures. The PSERS also enters into foreign exchange positions, such as forward and spot contracts to
hedge foreign currency exposure. The PSERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are
used primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Confracts used to enhance
performance are fully collateralized, eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. Short-term investments and
cash equal to or greater than performance obligations under these contracts are maintained at all times. The PSERS
is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to financial instruments. As the PSERS
generally enmters into transactions only with high-quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty
popperformance on derivative financial instruments have been incurred. Legal risk is mitigated through careful
selection of executing brokers and review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that
future changes in market conditions may make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed in
accordance with risk himits set by senior management, by buying or selling instruments or entering into offsetting
positions.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS’s involvement in the various types
and uses of derivative financial instruments and do not measure the PSERS’s exposure to credit or market risks and
do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference
to the notional amoumnts and the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS’s denvatlve financial
instruments at June 30, 1999 (amounts in thousands):

Futures contracts iong and SHOM ..o 5 4,676,490
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts, ST0SS «.o.vessseesiecenans 3,414,160
Options—calis purchased ................... vernmsssseses e soraseseneean 10,900
Options—puts purchased 13,320
Options—calls sold 46,396
Options—Puts SOId e 47976

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a
specific financial instrument at a predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based
on a notional (undezlying) principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures
contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a counterparty will not
pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk. Initial margin requirements on futures contracts
are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying
security at a set price during a period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the
underlying security if the option purchaser chooses to exercise. The PSERS generally uses exchange listed index,
currency stock and futures options.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of
another country at an agreed-upon price and setflement date. The contracts reported above primarily include
forwards. The $3,414.2 million of foreign cumrency confracts outstanding at June 30, 1999 consists of “buy”
contracts of $1,829.7 million, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase foreign
currency commitments, and “sell” contracts of $1,584.5 million, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of
comumnitments to sell foreign currencies.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) in part
to maximize yields. These securities are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a drop in
interest rates. The fair market valve of CMOs at June 30, 1999 is $1,173 million.
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NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Securities Lending Program

The following funds or organizations participate in a securities lending program established by the Treasury
Department: State Lottery (a Special Revenue Fund), State Workmen’s Insurance (an Enterprise Fund), Workmen’s
Compensation Security Trust (an Expendable Trust Fund), Statutory Liquidator (an Agency Fund), the State
Employes’ Retirement System (a blended component unit Pension Trust Fund) and the Public School Employes’
Retirement System (2 discretely presented component unit Pension Trust Fund). The Fiscal Code provides the
Treasury Department with numerous custodial responsibilities; the securities program is an integral part of the
custodial function. A contract between the Treasury Department and its custodian, acting as lending agent, provides
that the custodian lends securities owned by the participants to independent brokers, dealers and banks, acting as
borrowers.

Lending agreements between the custodian and the borrowers require that the custodian receive collateral from the
borrowers in exchange for the securities lent. For securities lent which are not denominated in United States doltats
or whose primary trading market is located outside the United States, the fair value of the collateral received must
be a least 105 percent of the fair value of the securities lent. For all other securities lent, the fair value of the
collateral received must be at least 102 percent. Securities lent consist of both domestic and foreign equity
securities and United States Treasury and foreign debt obligation. Almost all collateral received consists of cash; a
very small portion of collateral received consists of letters of credit, United States Treasury, corporate and/or
foreign debt obligations. Collateral is marked to market daily. Additional collateral from bommowers is required if
the fair value of the collateral received declines below lending agreement requirements. The lending agent cannot
pledge or sell collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. Accordingly, neither collateral securities
received from borrowers nor the related obligations to borrowers are reported.

To the extent collateral received consists of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with

reinvestment guidelines approved by the Treasury Department. Either the participant or the borrower may terminate
lending agreements on demand. Lending agreements are typically of very short duration - usually ovemight.
Therefore, the duration of lending agreements does not generally match the maturities of the investments made with
cash collateral. The resulting rate risk is mitigated by the lending agent’s ability to realiocate lending agreements
among program participants.

The program requires that the lending agent indemnify the Treasury Department for all claims, liabilities and costs
resulting from the lending agent’s negligence or intentional misconduct. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999
{December 31, 1998 for the SWIF and the SERS), there were no faihures by any borrower to return securities lent ox
‘pay distributions thereon. Also, there were no losses resulting from a lending agent or borrower default and there
were no Treasury Department restrictions on the amount of the loans that could be made.

At Jape 30, 1999 (December 31,-1998 for the SWIF and the SERS), there was no Treasury Department or
participant credit risk to the borrowers because the fair value of collateral received was greater than the fair value of
the securities lent, consistent with the lending agreements outstanding. The carrying amount and fair value of the
securities Ient are (amounts in thousands):

State Workmen’s INSUTANCE ....o.cceceecrecereeresnanans $ 438,974
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust ........... 400,982
State Employes’ Retirement System...........c........ 822,590
Public School Employes’ Retirement System...... 3,294,889

Neither the State Lottery Fund nor the Statutory Liquidator Fund had outstanding lending agreements at June 30,
1999.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE E— FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1999 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented
l I Component Units
College
Internal General Fixed and
Enterprise Service Assets Proprietary Fiduciary University
Funds Fupds Account Group Funds Fund ‘ Funds
Land...ccoomsiecvieenacnee. 8 323 5 6 $ 257,946 $ 107,318 3 - § 11483
Buildings ..cc.covrveracae 3,834 4,711 3,065,696 463,995 - 465,164
Improvements other
than buildings ........... 12,613 3,037 265,998 83,673 - 63,362
Machinery : '
and equipment .......... 71,496 77,739 606,327 191,031 18,552 361,928
Turnpike
infrastructure............. - - - 2,548,199 - -
Construction in
PTOBTESS «comereervervmnes 926 - 654.351 536,074 - 51585
Total . $ 89192 $ 85513 3§ 4850318 $_3.930.790 18552 $ 953522

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 aze as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance -
June 30, June 30,
1998 Additions Retjrements 1999

Land................ . - § 255807 3 2,313 3 174 $ 257946
Buildings. 3,040,935 48,508 23,747 3,065,696
Improvements other than buildings....... 256,431 . 10,844 1,277 265,998
Machinery and equipment ..........coueeneee 552,065 75,730 21.468 606,327
4,105,238 137,395 46,666 4,195,967
Construction in progress........couewcveenine 403146 307475 56,271 654,351

Total general fixed assets.....co.ceveue.. $ 4508384 § 444871 $ 102937 4,850.31

Interest costs of $627 thousand were capitalized for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commissior, a discretely presented
component unit Proprietary Fund, for their fiscal year ended May 31, 1999.

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 including appraisal and
historical cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are reported at
‘cost or, for donations or confiscations, at fair market value. At June 30, 1999 the amount of general fixed assets
related to the initial valuation amounts to $1,881 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1999 includes profect
information as follows (amounts n thousands):

Expended Through June 30, 1999

Amounts Amounts
Project Previously Not Capitalized Authorization
Authoerization Capitalized . ToDate Available

Department of Corrections Institutions.......co.eceveieeeen, $ 615091 § 165,179 5 289,346 5 160,566
Capital Complex .....oococeeeee. 551,285 296 166,179 384,810
Colleges and Universities 158,125 18,003 92,827 47,295
Veterans Homes and Military Ammories c...eeeeenee.e. 86,537 26,717 48,300 11,520
Depariment of Public Welfare Institutions ................. 57,657 4,019 36,239 17,399
Other.. 75,152 20,328 21.460 33364
Total. earerermsmsaannar ot teiee s ananannean $1.543.847 §_ 234542 $ 654351 $ 654954
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NOTE F— INSURANCE LOSS LIABILITY

The reported insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, is
primarily based on historical claims experience. One of the assumptions used to determine the reported liability
amount include a 5.5 percent discount rate. There is uncertainty as to whether the reported liability will be
supported by future claim experience, including payments; this uncertainty must be considered when evaluating the
reported insurance loss liability.

For the two calendar years ended December 31, 1998, the following summary provides information on prior year
reported insurance loss liability, incurred claims and payments, and current year reported msurance loss liability
(amounts in thousands};

Year Ended Prior Year r——Incurred Claims—l — Il’ayments—;| Current Year

December 31 Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability
o $1,375357 $ 104,871 $ 12,637 3 12,324 $ 189,329 $1,291,212
. 1,474,757 159,158 (19,020) 18,744 220,794 1,375,357




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE G— TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable at June 30, 1999 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
Sales and USE.....cicieiier e eree e eees et rareees 5 595859 § 27260 § - $ 623,119
Unemployment compensation - - 308,401 308,401
Personal income.....ceoecvvceceecrnrnsnnnnnees 224,578 - - 224,578
COTPOTALION . .ot cee e e ravererrsareae sreaeresnas 74,336 - - 74,336
Liquid fuels.. - 58,309 - 58,309
OHRBE et eereecresemee s tesssssesmsirnans e neemenrassemeen 17334 ___ 85379 - 102,713

§ 912107 $ 170948 3 __308401 3 1391456

Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1999 consisted of the following (émounts in thousands):

Discretely Presented
Prima vernment Component Units
College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  Proprietary  University
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Mortgage loans ........... enessasssaenshbe e ir e cantensanecs 3 - 8 - $2871354 § -
Student 08NS c.ecicere e e e e e - - 1,849,290 36,654
Business development loans................ . 56,540 113,021 624,477 -
Water and sewer system loans 16,101 - 1,093,998 -
Volunieer fire company loans.............. - 88,780 - -
Other notes and 10a0Ss ......oeveeeeeesssssnseceseremanesscenens 5,951 10,103 - -
78,592 211,904 6,439,119 36,654
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accomnts............. ‘ 18.109 26.397 207.401 5011
Notes and loans receivable, net... ..o veeeeevisnserconenn. 5. 60483 3 185507 $6231.718 3 31.643

Discretely presented component unit governmental funds reported $1,365 thousand of loans to school districts at
June 30, 1999.

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reports amounts related to
construction projects for educational institutions funded through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, the
principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease reptal payments and deposited in the related
Capital Debt Fund, a Debt Service Fund. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to
the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease
rental receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to the principal lease payments to be received are recorded
in the Capital Debt Fund. At June 30, 1999 the total minimum lease payments to be received were $2.8 million
and the present value of the lease payments was $2.5 million, the difference representing interest of $.3 million. The
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority, discretely
presented governmental fund component units, finance construction projects for educational istitutions through the
1ssuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of lease
rental payments related to the project. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the
educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrapgements are classified as direct financing leases. For
discretely presented governmental fund component units, total minimum lease payments were $6 billion, the present
value was $3.7 billion and interest was $2.3 billion at June 30, 1999. The Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority, a discretely presented proprietary fund component unit, reported a lease rental receivable with total
minimum payments of $30 million, present value of $16 million and interest of $14 million at June 30, 1999.
Minimum lease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1999 are as follows (amounts in thousands):
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NOTE G— Taxes, Loans and Lease Rental Receivables (continued) !
Discretely Presented Discretely Presented
Fiscal Year Ending Primary Governmental Fund Proprietary Fund oy
June 30 Government Component Units Component Units %S’i
$ 469 $ 265,766 b 634 )

267 269,581 634 .
244 274,349 _ 634 N

244 271,538 634 )
244 T 266,879 634 -
P

NOTE H—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS __ E]

A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1999 is as '

follows (amounts in thousands): : .

DUE FROM DUE TO . i;
FUND TYPE/FUND OTHER COMPONENT OTHER COMPONENT .
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Funps Units Funps UNniTs

General 3 44325 3 3.961 3 112.801 b3 102 a 5

Special Revenue: N
State Lottery Fund .....oeevrecemnem e e - - 6,252 .

State Racing Fund.....c..ceeeeecsseresesersssesesennecsnnssenecnses . - - 10,246 - o
Hazardous Sites Clean-up FUnG. ...o..e.recorsseseereersis 22,764 - 29 . F
Motor License Fund 3,920 37 14,282 3,629 L
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund........ecorememeeeeeceeesenens 33 - 4,425 -
Phammaceutical Assistance Fund 5377 - 1 -
Agricultural Conservation Easement Fund ............... 9,966 - - - 2l
Public Transportation Assistance Fund............e.. 3,299 - 407 - o
Other Funds 2,908 3 5.836 - -
48 267 40 41478 3.629 )
Debt Service: a
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority L
Redemption Fund ..o e senecnes - 27,308 - - ‘
Other Funds ..., e etteassesa e reas e s 45 - 15 -
: 45 27,808 15 X oy
ital Projects: o ’
Capital Facilities Fund.... 13,329 - 61 - L
Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund.. 4,302 - - -
Land and Water Development Fund.....cceceenneeee - - 2 - -
17,631 - 69 - 5

Enterprise; : F
State Stores Fund 308 - 17,248 -

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund 914 - 2,556 - .
Rehabilitation Center Fund 4,179 - - - u
Small Business First Fund 2,500 - - -
Other Funds .. 30 - 2.548 -

7,931 - 22352 - -

Internal Service: i
Purchasing Fund 9,441 614 679 4 C
Manufacturing Fund 3913 2 90 - ‘

. 13.354 616 769 4

Expendable Trust: A
Unemployment Compensation Fund........c.covvvrererenns 2,189 . 250 - - P
‘Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund....... 42,541 - 252 - /
Deferred Compensation Fund - - 63 -

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund......... - - 42,558 - -
44,730 250 42873 - T

Pension Trust; _ L
State Employes’ Retirement System.......ccocomusmssanenns 3,919 7.106 26 -

Agency: [
Local Sales and Use Tax Fund 11,585 - 94 - b
Allegheny Regional Asset District Sales and o

Use Tax Fund 14,778 - 15 -
Liquid Fuels Tax Fund . 3,029 - 260
Other Funds . 537 - 348 - ]
29933 - 717 =,
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ........cc.ee. 210,135 3 39,781 $§ 221,100 § 3735 A




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS DUE FROM DUE TO
Other Component Primary Other Component  Primary
Funds Units Government  Funds Units Government
GOVEINIMENTA] ..o rmsan s $ 417 8 - $ - 3 417 & - 8 -
Proprietary:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
AUHOTILY oo et iercra s smssmareasssnens - 97 - - 45 27,816
Pennsylvania Tumnpike Comnmission " - - 6,347 - - 4,608
Other FURAS c.overeerversesieseereresessssssassssssea semssenees - 45 - ~ 97 106
- 142 6,347 - 142 32,530
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement System... - - 1.340 - o~ 1.975
College and -University 194,652 - - 194,652 - 4.774
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS...coceevvererenenenssans 3195069 § 142 $ 7687 35195069 S 142 § 39279

The amount of total interfund receivables of $452,814 thousand does not agree with total interfund payables of
$459,325 thousand at June 30, 1999 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined
balance sheet at June 30, 1999. The amount shown for the Permsylvania Turnpike Commmission, a discretely
presented proprietary fund component unit, is as of its fiscal year end of May 31, 1999. The amounts shown as
interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Tiust Fund, the INVEST Program for
Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, and the
Deferred Compensation Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, are as of their fiscal year end of December 31, 1998. The
following presents a reconciliation of interfund accounts reported at June 30, 1999 and those amounts wh1ch would
have béen reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end (amounts in thousands):

Due from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999 ........ooeemveenceee. 5 405204
Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999, . ... - 7,687
Due from component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 36,1999 ... 39923
Interfund receivables — Combined Balance Sheet ..............ooeueee.ee.. 452,814
Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission decrease in receivables from
June 1, 1999 10 JUNe 30, 1999, orreeecemsereteesnesnssarsensssssnsesemrerasssassees s sasensn (2,714}
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund increase in receivables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 ...t sstsnssess st sec e rens s rseene . 307
State Employes” Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 ... - 8.396
TOTAL INFTERFUND RECEIVABLES ... cereeermeeeseenens . § 458803
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999 ................oovmeeeeneee. £ 416,169
Due fo primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999................ 39,279
Due to component units - Combired Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999 .......coveeeeeee. 3.877
Interfund payables-— Combined Balance Sheet , 459,325
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission decrease in payables from '
June 1, 1999 to June 30, 1999 . ‘ 24}
INVEST Program for Local Governments increase in payables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 ..o 33
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in payables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 .. et 1,637
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 (2,180)
Deferred Compensation Fund increase in payables from
January 1, 1999 through June 30, 1999 ... e reemcrme e ssmemss e e eee e resesseneaen 12
TOTAL INTERFUND PAYABLES ........... § 4583803

47



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

At June 30, 1999 the Geperal Fund has reported Advances to Other Funds of $74,808. Specifically, this amount has
been advanced as follows: $66,000 to the State Stores Fund, $2,300 to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, both
Enterprise Funds, $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, and $4,333 to the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, both
Special Revenue Funds. These amounts have been reported by the respective owing Funds as Advances from Other
Funds, except for the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, which has reported an advance of $2,000 for its fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998 (amounts in thousands). _

At June 30, 1999 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has reported an advance to other
funds of $3,000 (in thousands). This amount was advanced to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund,
which has reported an advance from other funds of $3,000 (amounts in thousands).

A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 is as follows (amounts in
thousands): ' '

OPERATING TRANSFERS
FrROM TO
: COMPONENT COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT . IN UNITS Oout UNITS
General $ 106667 8 - 21,13 781,63
Special Revenue: _
State Lottery Fund - - 283,876 -
State Racing Fund - - 10,213 -
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund ; - - 14,000 -
Motor License Fund ; - - 144,226 -
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund : 26,574 - - -
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund 286,501 - - -
Water Facilities Loan Fund - - 5,395 -
Industrial Sites Clean-up Fumd 12,000 - - -
Other Funds 10.162 - 13.900 -
335237 - 471,610 =
Debt Service: .
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund «...coeoeoverissimmasinsnnes 14,496 - . - -
Water Facilities Loan Redermption Fund 12,982 - - -
Capital Debt Fund 798,970 - - .
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption Fund - 27,009 - - -
Local Criminal Justice Sinking Fund 15,738 - - -
Agricultural Conservation Easement Sinking Fund 6,866 - - -
Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund 4435 - - -
Disaster Relief Redemption Fund 7,633 - - -
Permsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund oveeeecsveees 6,596 - - -
Volunteer Company Loan Sinking Fund 3,188 - - -
Other Funds 5.168 - 91 -
—-203.081 = 91 -
Enterprise:
State Stores Fund - - 51,485 -
Small Business First Fund - - 668 -
= - 52,153 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 1,344.9 ) - 1.344 § 781636
FROM To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY PRIMARY
COMPONENT UNITS IN GOVERNMENT our GOVERNMENT
Govemnmental Funds § 549442 $ 40400 $ 549442 § -
Proprietary:
Permsylvaniz Higher Education Assistance Agency - 314.666 - _
College and University Funds - 426,57 - -
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS 549,442 $ 781.636 $__545442 3 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary govemment and discretely
presented component units—during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 are summarized as follows (amounts in
thousands): :

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Increases in contributed capital—primary government - g 47,582
Decreases in contributed capital—primary OVEITIMERL ......oc.evemveeeeeresseeemseseeeennes (5,000)
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units........ 124,921
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units {2078
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary

government and discretely presented component Units. ........coeeveeevreneuvoncrnersrerses § 165427

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental residual
equity transfers out of $153,263 and an internal services residual equity transfer in of $11 (amounts in thousands);

Net residual equity trARSTErS ...t ceeeeeee e e evesesavaans 5 153,252
add: general obligation bond proceeds received directly by
the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ........ove.vveeccereceecemceeenen. 7,131
less: amount reported by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure investment Authority
as grant revenue or reimbursement for certain administrative costs .......ou...... (2,723)
less: program grants disbursed by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
INVESIMENT AULROTILY 1rnverroversneccssrsssenassase sossuseaneess sresrasessanssassssenssarn arssasassnse (2,076)
add: federal funds received by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.................. 2,933
add: federal funds received by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Fund........ ... 6,847
add: other increase to the Rehabilitation Center Fund 52
add: other increase for the Purchasing FUnd......coeeeve e ceeescneecceseesae s 1t
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
govemnment and discretely presented COMPONENt UNIS. ..o.o.veureeusvanaversmmenssses e sensnsene by 165,427

Assigned Investment Income: Certain funds, as follows, receive investment income which is assigned to another fund for legal,
contractual or other reasons. Interfund transfers are reported by those funds which assign/receive investment income for other
than legal or contractuzl reasons (amounts in thousands).

Assigning Fund Receiving Fund Reason Amount
Liquor License General Legal/contractual b3 89
Liquid Fuels Tax Motor License Legal/contractual 490
Land and Water Development Land and Water Development

Sinking Legal/contractual 98
Remining Financial Assurance Land and Water Development

Sinking Other 110
‘Water Facilities Loan PA Economic Revitalization

Sinking Other 101
Fire Insurance Tax State Insurance Legal/contractual 1,052
Fire Insurance Tax Municipal Pension Aid Legal/contractual 289
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- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

. PENSION SYSTEMS

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
Commonwealth and public school employes. Commonwealth employes are members of the State Employes’
Retirement System (SERS), a blended component unit. The SERS is the only blended component unit in the
financial reporting entity and it is the only pension trust fund included in the primary government. Public school
employes are members of the Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS), a discretely presented
component unit. The PSERS is the only Fiduciary Fund reported as a discretely presented component unit. Both the
SERS and the PSERS issue stand-alone financial statements which are available to the public. Written requests for
financial statements should be directed to the foliowing addresses:

State Employes’ Retirement System Public School Employes’ Retirement System
Executive Office Bureau of Cormnmunications

P.O. Box 1147 P.O.Box 125

Harmsburg, PA 17108 Harrisburg, PA 17108

STATE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement
system established to provide pepsion benefits for employes of state government and certain other organizations. At
December 31, 1998 there were 107 employer state agencies and other organizations participating in the SERS. The
SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service.
Employes who retire at age 60 or with 35 years of service, if under age 60, are entitled to 2 normal (unreduced)
annual retirement benefit. Members of the General Assembly and certain employes classified in hazardous duty
positions can retire with full benefits at age 50 with at least three years of service.

The general annual bepefit for full retirement is 2 percent of the member’s highest three-year-average salary
multiplied by years of service. Members of the legislature who were members of the SERS before March 1, 1974 are
entitled to 2 benefit of 7.5 percent of average salary for each year of legislative service. State police troopers are
entitled to an annual benefit equal to a percentage of their highest annual salary (excluding the year of retirement).
The anoual benefit is 75 percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and 50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of
service. The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions. Act 41 of 1998 permitted
certain participants with at least 30 years of service to retire without a reduction in benefits from July 1, 1998
through June 30, 1999,

Funding Policy: The SERS Board has the authority to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at
actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The active plan member
contribution rate is 5 percent of covered payroll for most employes; higher contributions are required for certain
members of the General Assembly and judges and district justices who elect higher contribution rates. All member
contribution rates are determined by Commonwealth law. During each of the three years ended December 31, the
annual required employer contributions (amounts in thousands) and the related percentage of that amount actually
contributed are as follows:

Year ended December 31 Annual Required Contribution Percentage Contributed

1997 $ 324,093 100.0
1996 373,902 _ 100.0
1995 376,692 102.1

During the year ended December 31, 1998 employer contributions amounted to $310,501 thousand; the SERS did
not perform an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 1998 and did not report an annual required contribution for
the year ended December 31, 1998. At December 31, 1998, the SERS disclosed no long-term contracts for
contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are
reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continned)

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value. United States government obligations, corporate and
foreign bonds and notes, and common and preferred stocks, including collective trust fund, are generally valued
based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchange and securities pricing services.
Securitics that are not traded on a national security exchange are valued by the asset manager or third parties based
on similar sales. Mortgage loans are valued by the asset manager using the present value of future cash flows. Real
estate is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised,
at the present value of the projected future net income stream. Venture capital and alternative investments are
valued based on amounts established by valuation committees. Foreign exchange contracts, which are not Teported
in the statement of plan net assets, are marked-to-market daily with changes in fair value recognized as part of
investment income. The investment in the Commonwealth Treasury short-term investment pool is reported at cost
plus allocated interest, which approximates fair valee. Collateral received under the Commonwealth Treasury
securities lending program is reported at fair value.

Investment Concentration: The fair value of individual investments at December 31, 1998 that represent 5 percent
or more of plan net assets are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Barclays Global Investors N_A-
Equity Index Fund P—113,172,095 Units...oceeee e eseemesas $ 5,149,244
70/30 Enhanced U.S. Tactical Asset Allocation Fund—36,116,702 units .. 1,291,186

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES®’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The PSERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system established to
provide pension and other benefits for public school employes. At June 30, 1999 there were 660 participating
employers, generally school districts. The PSERS provides retirement, death, disability and health care benefits.
Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service. Members are eligible for full monthly retirement benefits
upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least one year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (c)350r-
more years of service regardless of age. Act41 of 1998 permitted school employes with at least 30 years of credited
service to retire without a reduction in benefits from April 1 through June 30, 1999.

Benefits for full retirement are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary multiplied by years
of service. The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions. '

Funding Policy: The Public School Employes’ Retirement Code provides that the PSERS Board has the authority
to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of
annual covered payroll. The active plan member contribution rate for employes hired before July 22, 1983 is 5.25
percent of covered payroll; for employes hired after July 21, 1983, the rate is 6.25 percent. Member contribution
rates are determined by Commonwealth Iaw.

Effective July 1, 1995, employers defined as school entities (school districts, area vocational-technical schools, and
termediate units) are required to pay the entire employer contribution. School entities are partially reimbursed by
the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the Commonwealth’s share as determined by the income aid ratio (as
defined in Act 29 of 1994), which is at least one haif of the total employer contribution. For employers which are not
school entities, the employer contribution is paid equally by the employer and the Commonwealth to the PSERS; no
Commonwealth reimburserent occurs.

Daring each of the three fiscal years ended June 30, the annual required employer contributions (in thousands) and
the related percentage of that amount actually contributed are as follows:

Fiscal year Annual Required ' Percentage

Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
1999 $513,940 100.00
1998 $718,431 100.00
1997 $796,205 100.00

At June 30, 1999, the PSERS disclosed no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The PSERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incured, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

" related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are
reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is “the amount that the PSERS can reasonably
expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale.” Short-term securities are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, unless they
have a published market price or quotation from national security exchanges and securities pricing services, in
which case they are valued at the published market price. Fixed income and common and preferred stocks are
generally valued based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchanges and securities
pricing services. Securities which are not traded on 2 pational security exchange are valued by the respective find
manager or other third parties based on similar sales. Real estate and farmland are primarily valued based on
. appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised, at the present value of the projected
future net mncome stream. Venture capital, private placements and limited partnerships are valued based on amounts
established by independent advisors. Futures contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and options are marked-to-
market daily with changes in market value recognized as part of net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of
investments. Initial margin requirements for such financial instruments are provided by investment securities
pledged as collateral.

Investment Concentration: At June 30, 1999 there were no investments in any one organization that represented 5
percent or more of plan net assets.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth funds certain health care berefits for retired employes (that meet specified length-of-service
and age requirements) and their eligible dependents. These benefits are provided as a result of negotiated union
contracts and through administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as
paid, which totaled $195 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Approximately 84,000 individuals were
covered by these benefits during the fiscal year. ‘

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, including disability life insurance and certain
benefits to beneficiaries of state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount expended for these benefits
was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND PEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Commonwealth issued General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes,
Sertes 1997 A (notes), pursuant to a resolution adopted on February 18, 1997, in anticipation of the issuance of
general obligation bonds of the Commonwealth. No general obligation bonds to retire the notes were issued during
the 1996-97 or the 1997-98 fiscal year. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 general obligation bonds were
issued to retire a portion of the notes. The notes bear interest at varying rates, not to exceed 9 percent per annum.,
Bond anticipation notes outstanding at June 30, 1999 reported by the Capital Facilities Fund, a capital projects fund,
and the Disaster Relief Fund, a special revenue fund, are $15.2 million and $21.7 million, respectively.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component unit, has reported
$946.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $430.3 million of notes payable consisting of student loan
financing of $380.7 million, other lines of credit of $42.2 million and other notes and bonds payable of $7.4 million
at June 30, 1999 as follows (amounts in thousands):

Demand student loan revenue bonds payable, due 2018-2027, ata
weighted average interest rates of 2.68 and 3.80
percent at June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively. ..., $ 946,000

Student loan financing notes payable, due in 2000-2007, ata
 weighted average rates of 5.35 and 5.95 percent
at June 30, 1999 and 1998, 1e5peCtively......cveecrrreaceverernermosncs 380,747

Other lines of credit, due 2000-2005, at a welghted average interest
rates of 5.87 and 5.47 percent at JTune 30, 1999
and 1998, 1eSpectively.... ..ot 42,200

Other notes and bonds payable, due 2000-2009, at a weighted
average interest rates of 5.80 and 5.76 percent

at June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively....cccocecresniseverencrnssenre 7403
17| D - . rerermemternnersnas $ 1376350

The note and bond indentures among other things require PHEAA to comply with various covenants including
minimum parity levels as defmed, student loan and investment yields, and program expenses. The demand bonds
payable are subject to purchase, at par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on demand of the bondholders upen seven
days prior irrevocable written notice. Under the irrevocable letters of credit issued by the Student Loan Marketing
Association, the trustee is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase-price of the bonds delivered to it.
The letters of credit are valid from 20601 through 2027. The PHEAA is required to pay annual commitment fees
ranging from 12 to 45 basis points on the stated amount of the letter of credit coverage. At June 30, 1999 total letter
of credit coverage was $1.6 billion.

All student loan financing notes payable, demand student loan revenue bonds payable and student loan revenue
bonds payable are collateralized by student loans and investments. At June 30, 1999, $2.17 billion of debt is
collateralized by $1.85 billion of student loan principal and related interest receivable, and $446.0 million of
investrnents. The other notes apd bonds payable are collateralized with operational assets. Amounts due under the
lines of credit are collateralized with accounts receivable and student loans. As of June 30, 1999 the PHEAA has
$255.3 million of available credit under student loan financing arrangements and $6.0 million available under other
lines of credit.
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'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J— Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued) ' o

Stated maturities of notes and bonds payable for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1999 and through l

maturity are as follows (amounts in thousands): b
Demand !
Student Loan Student Loan Other . J
Year of Revenue Financing Notes and

Maturity Bonds Payable Notes Payable Bonds Payable ?i
2000 $ - $ 63323 $ 3,003
2001 - 282,424 1,810 -
2002 - - 846 *
2003 - - 653 L

2004 - - 146
2005-29 ———346.000 35.000 945 N
Total $ 946000 $ 380747 $ 7.403 L

Notes and bonds payable, as well as all other debt, are limited obligations of the PHEAA. PHEAA has no taxing
power and the Commonwealth is not obligated to pay principal, redemption price, if any, or interest on any of the
PHEAA’s debt.

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund component unit, maintains a line of credit »
with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which it may borrow up to $15 million to fund its multi-family

housing program. The line of credit bears interest from the date of issuance at a rate equal to the current vield on )
two-year Treasury Notes plus 20 basis points. At June 30, 1999, $1 million is owed at a range of 4.47 to 6.98 |
percent against this line of credit. Total reported notes payable at June 30, 1999 for the PHFA is $6 million.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 1999 and changes for the fiscal year ended
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

GENERAL LONG-TERM

OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:
Capital Facilitie:
Disaster Relief
Land and Water Development ... vwveeeer
Nursing Home Loan Development.
Project 70 Land Acquisition .......
Volunteer Companies Loan ....ecvvciicanans
Vietmamn Conflict Veterans

COmPENSAHON e ecerereeeereeesveeremeeeennsanns

Water Facilities Loan ...oeooeiceeeeanee
Permsylvania Economic Revitalization
Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Keystone Recreation, Park and
Conservation
Refunding Bonds

Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues:
Instaliment Purchase Obligations ...........
Capital Lease Obligations.......cccoeeceeeeeenee
Obligations Under Master Lease

Agreement—EQUIpment ... eersrnasrnees
Obligations Under Master Lease—

Prison Facililies . ... recrimmmemsersesnnanse
Self-Insurance—Note O ..
Cormpensated Absences...............
Catastrophic Motor Vehicle Losses........
Other

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP ..

Issue
Dates

1570-99
1973
1970-94
1983
1970

. 1982-08

1970-74
1983-97
1991-95

1985-98

1991-98
1992-98

1994-98
1991-97

Maturity Boads
Interest  Dates Authorized Balance Balance
Rates Through But Unissued Julv1.,1998 Additions  Reductions Jume 30, 1999
447-10.16% 2019 § 27,454,150 $ 2,486,340 $ 824,000 § 262,515 § 3,047,825
491-548% 2003 131,908 30,025 - 5,505 24,520
4.29-7.07% 2014 300 56,435 - 12,090 44345
8.20% 2002 31,000 3,790 - 1,665 2,125
6.26% 2000 - 1,450 - 720 770
4.84-10.75% 2018 - 26,140 - 1,790 24,350
536-6.11% 2003 3,000 6,540 - 2,305 4235
4.89-8.26% 2017 11,500 119,320 - 6,605 112,715
5.04-6.60% 2015 14,000 37,445 - 4,550 32,895
4.72-6.90% 2018 275,000 260,340 7,000 15,350 251,990
447-6.60% 2018 - 59,095 19,000 3,260 74,835
4.47-6.60% 2018 11,000 162,980 3,000 6,685 159,295
484-6.60% 2018 . 47,460 - 1,880 45,580
5.12-660% 2011 ____ - 1543924 _ 2065 118,755 1.428.134
27.931.858 4841324 855,965 443 675 5253614
- - - 18,231 28,301 12,842 33,690
- - - 55,976 285 2,008 54,163
- - - 18,265 - 11,510 6,755
- - - 681,150 - 27,670 653,480
- - - 595,024 95,446 100,951 589,519
- - - 606,627 308,599 289,136 626,090
- - - 142,898 69,761 28,560 184,159
- - - 531,578 204.470 247465 488.583
= 2,649.749 706.862 720,172 2 439
3 27931858 § 7.491.073 1.562.827 §$ 1163247 § 7.890.053

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented component unit organizations at June 30, 1999 (May 31, 1999 for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (amounts in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Bonds Payable from Lease Rentals:
Penmsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities AUROMLY ....cconeeeecrecrnesscsnesrneas
State Public School Building Authority..
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Revenue Bonds Payable from User
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
ASSISANCE AZENCY -romrrrrerrrrerssmrineersasarns
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency..
Pennsylvania Industriat Development
Authority
Pennsylvaniz Tumpike Cormrrission ......
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority .

Less: Bond diSCOUDIS ... eucracnsrssarcrssseass
Deferred costs of refunding ....v.....

TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

1969-9%
1986-99

1994-96
1991-98

. 1990-98

2.70-2.63%
2.60-7.88%

6.45%%
2.88-11.60%

4.73-7.00%
2.50-6.60%

4.00-7.15%

2031
2021

2026
2030

2014
2028

2014
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3 3070660 $ 635242 % 260,704 § 3,445,198
343326 21.837 77.693 347470
3413986 717.079 338,397 3.792.668
837,785 - - 837,785
2,716,387 253313 222353 2,749,349
394,470 - 20,660 373,810
1,127,930 588,355 134,975 1,581,310
5 38.045 47,510 186.900
5,272,937 881,715 425,498 5,729,154
53,083 9,239 9,862 32,460
7,543 1.621 524 8,640
5,212,311 370,855 415112 5.668.054
§_9.460.722

$.8626207 31587934 § 753,509



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continuned)

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full fajth and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds
accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The total “Additions” of $855,965 for General Obligations Bonds Payable from Tax Revenues at June 30, 1999, as reported
in Note K, differs from total bond proceeds of $856,839 for Governmental Fund Types, as reported in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, by $874. This difference includes premium on bonds
issued of $10,839, less bond proceeds for mon-governmental funds of $7,000 and less principal accretion for capital
appreciation bonds of $2,965 (amounts in thousands).

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of certain bond issues. Additional cash with
fiscal agents is held by the Federal government for unemployment compensation claims.

The balance outstanding at June 30, 1999 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for Refunding Bonds
includes $16.2 million ‘of accreted value for capital appreciation bonds. No principal or interest is payable on the capital
appreciation bonds until maturity.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following (amounts in
thousands):

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims.......ccoveverveane $ 284113
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) 136,700
Litigation=--NOtE P ... ceremeeeccrsienesssscsrrssmssreasras vess sessssssesessranenns 66,634
Arbitrage Rebate TaX.....ccovueuremmirereeesesnnmsinnenm reeeenncnasssasssonas 1,136

: §__ 488,583

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen's
Compensation Law to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurance carxiers. The PURTA provides for a
tax on utility realty property whereby amounts received during the fiscal year are used as a General Fund revenue source. The
Act also provides for payment of a majority of the PURTA revenues as a distribution to local taxing authorities during the
following fiscal year (normally in October). Such payments are appropriated in the following fiscal year and are, therefore,
not expendable or available during the fiscal year the related revenue is received. The other amounts included in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1999 relating to Workmen’s Compensation Claims, Litigation and
Arbitrage Rebate Tax, are not payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

In 1991, the Cormmonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authorities for the rental of five new
prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each lease provided for the Commonwealth to
pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation
issued certificates of participation to refund the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to
provide additional construction funding. As a result of the consolidated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments
equal to the finance corporation’s debt service payments. Both the original and the new leases provide that the
Commonwealth’s obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to provide for these
obligations. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using the new prison facilities. The finance
corporation holds nominal title to the facilities as security for the Commonwealth lease payments. When the certificates are
fully redeemed, at which time the lease agreement expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1999 the
Commonwealth has reported $653.5 million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general
fixed assets for the related prison facilities. :

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
glectorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $37.2 billion as ‘of September 1, 1999, with net debt
outstanding of $3.9 billion. ‘ '

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, the Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission (PTC) and the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Investment Authority, discretely presented proprietary fund component units, have pledged substantially all of
their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note
disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 (May 31, 1999 for the PTC) include bond discounts and deferred costs of
refunding of $52.5 million and $8.6 million, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA),
- discretely presented governmental fund component units, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1999 which are payable from
; the lease rentals of the projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding,

At June 30, 1999 the SPSBA reported $243 thousand in other general long-term obligations which represents a Hability for
compensated absences.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary
government and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1999 (May 31, 1999 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission) (amounts in thousands):

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Thzgautlzsgh
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Maturity Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Capital Facilities 3 437291 5 392883 5 344,442 § 282971 $ 260,712 $ 2,683,300 § 4,401,599
Disaster Relief. 6,820 6,833 6,869 6,904 - - 27,426
Land and Water Development................. 14,506 13,565 7,925 4,554 1,153 10,445 52,148
Nursing Home Loan Development. 643 596 549 550 - - 2,338
Project 70 Land Acquisition 785 - - - - - 785
Volunteer Cormpanies Loan ... .voveeememn 3,004 2,987 2,907 2,520 2,061 21,426 34,995
Vietmam Conflict Veterans ’
Compensation 2,601 478 482 487 491 - 4,539
Water Facilities Loan ....oceecememverecececaes 12,855 12,630 12,200 11,407 10,781 103,017 162,890
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization... 6,493 6,323 5,393 2,395 2,385 21,705 44,694
Permsylvania Infrastructure
Investrnent AUthOTILY v vemreresmsscssinsenne 28,188 . 26,614 25,956 24,730 24,469 237,053 367,010
Agricultural Conservation Easement
Purchase 8,233 8,137 7,776 71,309 7,221 70,451 109,127
P Local Criminal JUStice ....oourecermnrrenenecnnne 15,959 15,945 15,927 15,914 15,903 159,670 239,318
1 Keystone Recreation, Park and .
: Conservation 4,399 4,360 4,322 4,289 4,245 48,694 70,309
Refunding Bonds 204011 199.750 199.881 218.001 208.625 825760 1,856,028
Total Principal and Interest.................. 745,878 691,101 634,629 582,031 538,046 4,181,521 7,373,206
Eess: Interest Payments 266,528 243,756 221.595 201,573 181.415 1.004.725 2,119,592
479,350 447,345 413,034 380,458 356,631 3,176,796 5,253,614
Other General Long-Term Obligations... ___267253 __ 124725 __ 123398 __ 121260 __ 122105 _ 1.877.68% _ 2636439
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM

OBLIGATIONSACCOUNTGROUFP . § 746603 $ 572070 §_536432 $ S0L.727 3. 478736 054 4 3 7.8900053

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Other Bonds: ) .
D Pennsylvania Higher Educational
: Facilities AUthOTIY ..c..o.uvemeeremseneeeemaceenees $ 229688 § 233319 § 238237 $ 236,180 § 232,586 § 4395233  § 5,565,243
State Public School Building Authority.. 39.909 40,151 ____ 40582 _ 39292 38.165 300,563 498682
P Total Principal and Iterest. ....mu.meeee 269,597 273,470 278,819 275472 270,751 4,695,796 6,063,905
Less: Interest Payments .......o.ocoouonn.. 158001 ___ 157327 __ 152299 _ 147056 141,997 1514557 _2271237
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ..., 111,596 & 116143 126520 § 128416 § 128754 3,181.23 $ 3792668
PROPRIETARY FUNDS:
Revenue Bonds:
Pennsytvania Higher Education -
ASSISHANCE AZENCY wrvrvevsmrermsesmrenisssnsoneas $ 54348 § 336787 § 36613 § 36613 § 36613 § 1,070,598 $ 1,571,572
- Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency.. 257,852 224.569 223,824 223,108 221,369 4236355 5,387,077
(Rt Pennsylvania Industrial Development
* Authority . 43,749 43,006 42,525 42,399 42,243 327,852 541,774
. Pennsylvania Tumnpike Commission ...... 110,615 120,415 120,457 120,806 120,477 2,145,742 2,738,512
o Pennsylvania Infrastructure investment
; FXTL e 1, 22.802 22935 22.826 22,61 222 138.822 252288
‘ Total Principal and Interest................... 489,366 747,712 446,245 445,541 442,990 7,919,369 10,491,223
- Less: Interest Payments....... . 323401 313733 ___ 299960 _ 292510 283,708 3,248 667 4.762.069
- TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ........ 165.965 433.979 146,285 153,031 159192 _ 4670702 5729154
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS ............. §  277.561 550,122 $ 272.805 281447 $ 287946 § 7851941 59521872
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NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year 11
¢

of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net miniroum lease payments as o
of June 30, 1999 (amounts in thousands):
Prima overnment Discretelv Presented .
Component ¥/nits ‘ i
Master Lease Pennsylvania -
General Obligations Higher Education
. Long-Term  Prison Assistance College 2nd
Obligations Facilities  Equipment Agency University Funds i
Fiscal year ending June 30 P
2000 $ 7265 § 61,515 8 6,305 $ 6,207 3 33,933
o200 7,072 61,454 697 6,099 33,329
2002 6,870 61,387 - 6,498 32,608 i
2003 6,331 61,337 - . 52,730 31,315
2004 6,178 61,287 - - 31,035 !
Later years 74663 _643376 - = 490487
Total minimum lease payments 108,379 950,356 7,002 71,534 652,707 3
Less: amount representing estimated executory costs ) ‘;
included in total minimum lease payments.......oeveres 13.772 - - - - o
Net minimum Iease payments 94607 950,356 7,002 71,534 652,707
Less: amount representing METESE ..o vurrereseersrrissnsens 40444 _ 296876 247 18,504 272,782 )
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS .....ceccv... $ 54,163 $653.480 § 6,755 g 53.030 b 379.925 P };
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS ........... § 33600 '
At June 30, 1999 general fixed assets included $ 95.8 million of buildings and $2.8 million of equipment being procured by -y

capital leases. A total of $61.3 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed instaliment purchase
arrangements. .

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1999 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital

projects currently under construction for which a related public finrancing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued o
by the public financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets i
inchzde $51.6 million of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1999. o

The Commonwealth has entered into three lease arrangernents with a trustee for the refinancing of previously existing Ieases
and installment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment. These arrangements provide that the trustee
issue certificates of participation, the proceeds of which allow for immediate payment to Commonwealth equipment vendors.
This is not a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are
responsible for securing appropriations to make lease payments to the “trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund
periodic principal and interest payments to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use
of the leased equipment, the frustee holds legal title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the
certificates are fully funded, legal title vests with the Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1999, $40.8 million in general
fixed assets is being procured by these master lease arrangements. ::','

[

Conduit Debt

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At June 30, 1999 the PEDFA .
has $1,237.9 million of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore, ]
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are inclided in the accompanying financial statements,

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to emergy conservation and research.
Fees are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incwrred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by
the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity
served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $110.1 million in revenue bonds outstanding at Jume 30, 1999. The
Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the
accompanying financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Gevernment

In prior years, the Commonwealth defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of refunding
bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. At June 30, 1999,
$611.5 million of general obligation bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), governmental fund component units, issued
revenue bonds to advance and current refund $31.4 million and $75.3 million, respectively, of previously issued
revenue bonds as follows (amounts in thousands):

School Revenue Bonds School Revenue Bonds School Revenue Bonds
Northampton County Area Pittston Avrea School ‘Westmoreland County
Community College Distriet Community College
Category Series M of 1998 Series P of 1998 Series O of 1998
Issuing Authority SPSBA SPSBA SPSBA
Bond Type Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued 07-30-98 10-06-98 11-06-98
Refunding Bonds Principal 35,385 316,125 310,810
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.96% 4.74% 4.79%
Refunded Series School Revenue Bonds School Revenue Bonds School Revenue Bonds
Northampton County Area Pittston Area School ‘Westmoreland County
Conmnunity College District Comumunity College
Series of 1993 and 1994 Series A and E of 1993* Series F of 1995
Refimded Bonds Principal '$960/$3,990 $3,000/52,920 $10,530°
Interest Rate (Refimded) 5.72%/5.93% 5.22%/5.46% 5.51% - -
Payment to Escrow Agent $5,258"w 32,585%mx 11,065
Debt Service Savings (Loss) $16/593 $90/530 $225
Economic Gain (Loss) $16/534 §57/366 209
School Revenne Bonds Delaware Valley College of Valley Forge Military
Montgomery County Science and Agriculture Academy Foundation Project
Community College College Revenue Bonds Revenne Eonds
Category Series A 01999 Series of 1998 Series of 1998
Issuing Authority SPSBA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued 03-18-99 11-03-98 11-24-98
Refunding Bonds Principal $11,500 $13,500 33,500
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.64% 5.46% variable
Refunded Series School Revenue Bonds Delaware Valley College of  Valley Forge Military Academy
Mentgomery County Science and Agriculture Foundation Project”
Commuimity College College Revenue Bonds College Revenue Bonds
Series A of 1994 Series of 1994/1" and 2™ Series of 1997*  Series of 1992%
Refunded Bonds Principal $9,970 $6,975/£3,860 $920
Interest Rate (Refunded) 5.71% 7.09%/5.50% 6.88%
Payment to Escrow Agent 511,550 §$7,693/63,867 $534
Debt Service Savings (Loss) $323 ($5,189)%* 3601
Economic Gain $321 (£90)** $108

*  Current refunding.

**  Bonds refimded to extend maturities

*** Escrow for both seties combined.
“** No escrow established, as bonds were called immediately.
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NOTE L— Refunded Debt (continued)

University of Sciences

in Philadelphia Thomas Jefferson University
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Category Series 0T 1998 Series A of 1999
Issuing Authority PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Type Revenue Revenue
Date Issued 12-30-98 06-03-99
Refimding Bonds Principal £9,430 $66,010
Interest Rate (Refunding) 4.88% 5.06%
Refimded Series University of Sciences Thormas Jefferson University
in Philadelphia Revenue Bonds
. Revenue Bonds Series A of 1985+
Series of 1989
Refunded Bonds Principal $2,106 $61,590
Interest Rate (Refunded) 5.99 7.78%
Payment to Escrow Agent $2,159 364,494
Debt Service Savings (Loss) 3132 $3,168
Economic Gain (Loss) .... $146 $2,969
* Current refunding.

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were used
to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt
service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The SPSBA and the PHEFA reported advance and current refundings in their component unit financial statements
for the Lower Moreland Township School District, the West Perry School District, the Wallenpaupack Area School
District, the Saint Clair Area School District, the Tri-Valley School District, the Cheltenham Township School
district, the Shenendoah Valley School District, Chatham College, Susquehamma University and Eastern College,
which are not reported in the preceding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed from their General
Long-Term Obligations Account (Group; however, since the SPSBA and the PHEFA did not issue any new debt,
these were not advance or current refunding transactions of the SPSBA. or the PHEFA. Furthermore, there were no
debt service savings nor any economic gain or loss to the SPSBA. or the PHEFA.

At June 30, 1999, $842.9 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in their General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through zdvance refundings, for the PHEFA and the SPSBA.
Included are $758.6 million for the PHEFA and $84.3 million for the SPSBA.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), 2 proprietary fund
component unit, redeemed prior to maturity $45.8 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenne Bonds, Series Y, Z,
1990-28, 1990-29, 1991-30, 1991-31, 1992-33, 1994-38, 1995-45, 199647, 199648, 1996-50, 1996-51, 1996-52,
1996-53, 1997-34, 1997-56, 1997-57, 1997-58, 1997-59, 1997-60 and 1997-61 using morigage prepayments. In
addition, the PHFA. redeemed prior to maturity $118.2 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series
U, Y, Z, and 1990-28 using bond proceeds. The PHFA completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service
payments over the next 22 years by $89.3 million and to.obtain an economic gain of $234 thousand.

At June 30, 1999, $7.1 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements
of the PHFA, have been defeased through refundings.

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 1999, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a proprietary fund component
unit, issued $310.5 million in Series A Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Bonds and $228.4 million in Series B Oil
Franchise Tax Subordinate Bonds to advance refund the remaining $101.5Million of 1994 Series A Oil Franchise
Tax Revenue Bonds (1994 Bonds), with the remainder of the proceeds used for various construction projects. The
Net refunding bond proceeds of $115.8 million were deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. As 2 result, the bonds refunded are considered to be defeased and have been
removed from the PTC’s financial statements. The PTC recogmzed an economic loss of $15.7 million, which it will
defer over the remaining life of the 1994 Bonds.
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NOTE L— Refunded Debt (continued)

At May 31, 1999, $737 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements
of the PTC, have been defeased through refundings.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 the Penmsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST), a
proprietary fund component unit, issued $38 million in Series 1998 Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging from
4.00 to 5.00 percent to advance refund $36.7 million of previously issued revenue bonds with interest rates ranging
from 5.90 to 6.85 percent. The net refunding bond proceeds plus an additional $4.6 million were used to purchase
U.8. Government Securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased
and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the PENNVEST’s financial statements. Although the
advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred refunding loss of $3.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, the PENNVEST in effect reduced its agpregate debt service payments by approximately $4.5 million
over the next three years and obtained an economic gain of approximately $3 million.

At June 30, 1999, $128 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial staternents
of the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, a proprietary fund component unit, have been defeased
through refundings.

At June 30, 1999, $145.5 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial

statements of the State System of Higher Education, a college and university fimd component unit, have been
defeased through refundings.
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NOTE M-—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS - o

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and five Special Revenue Funds (Motor License,
State Lottery, Workmen’s Compensation Administration, Banking Department, and Milk Marketing). The
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget
and Actual (Budgetary Basis)}—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on
a budgetary basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals. O

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting (amounts in
thousands):

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds ad
BUDGETARY BASIS: _ N
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other USeS... . rmoririciiiesesmnsssssscsssnas g 182224 3 16,388 ‘ 1‘
Adjustments: "
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue ........ccvvcvevnerveresnrrersnnes 329,016 1,562,135 o
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related C
accounts payable and accrued liabilities......cocoeoreenemecenenne. {2,437,781) (1,993,994) '
To adjust encNDIANCES ..couereresversrsrrrreneacee 2,944 493 490.296
Net adjustients ........cooanrrerseeersrrrsssssssssissssssnsssssssmsnsns 835 728 58,437 _J
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under i
expenditures and other uses... rerseenes et rer - 49,304 -
TOTAL ALL FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources over !
expenditures and Other USES......cowecreremsmmmmrrsesssssseesrrsserseans $ 1017952 $ 124219 |

FET——
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NOTE N — SEGMENT INFORMATION

. The Commonwealth’s Primary Government has seven major Enterprise Funds that provide for a variety of loan programs to business
A and government organizations, workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development loans. The
z following is a summary of selected financial information related to these Enterprise Funds (amounts in thousands):

State Machinery
Small Workmen’s Volunteer Minority and Other Total
Tuition Business Insurance State Company Business Equipment Enterprise Enterprise
Payment First {Dec, 31, 1998) Stores L.pan Development Loan Funds Fupds
Operating revenues ... 541240 § 3,586 § 233,541 3 811940 % 2616 5 62 $ 217 $ 22,140 $ 1,117,856
Depreciation - - 499 3,132 - - .- 1,661 5,262
Operating income (108) ... 10,015 2,437 40,695 64,594 2,704 (310) 583 6,131 126,849
Operating ransfers out...ussimessinresnns.. - 668 - 51,485 - - - - 52,153
Net income (loss) 10,015 1,769 40,695 18,702 2,704 (310) 583 7.161 81,319
Increase {decrease) in contributed capital. - 14,500 - - 20,000 (5,000 ) 1,500 11,582 42,582
Acquisition and construction of
capital assets - - 77 2017 - - - 7,125 9.219
Net increase (decrease) in ¢asit .-.cvvecerennne. “5) 191 (119) 676 25 1) 56 37 820
Total assets 154,204 83,147 1,914,638 261,141 108,332 7,165 51,531 61,072 2,641,230
Bords and other long-term lizbilities
payable from operating tevenues ........... - - 1,291,212 - - - - - 1,291,212
Total fund equity.......comcmmrmmemmirsmsenns 23,556 76,068 182,156 77931 108,283 4,577 51,514 53,351 577,436
Net working capital....ceormreersecennee. 31,715 27,215 87,850 130,787 19,504 1,745 19,559 43,004 '331,379
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NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation, which includes indemnity and medical
benefits (employe disability), for its employes injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for
annuitant medical/hospital claims and for tort liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employe and
general torts. For property losses, the Commonwealth bas $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance
coverage up to $134 million per occurrence. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the
Department of Transportation (transportation claims). The Commonwealth has established various administrative
policies that are intended to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended Jume 30, 1999. No
settlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage during each of the past three fiscal years.

The accrued liabilities for employe disability and annuitant medical/hospital claims are determined by an actuary in
accordance with accepted actuarial principles. The accrued liability for employe disability was calculated including
the effects of changes in statutory benefits from Act 44 of 1993 and Act 57 in 1997. Accrued liabilities for tort and
transportation claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such
claims are not discounted. These liabilities include liabilities for allocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses
and include salvage and subrogation. Salvage and subrogation were not material for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1999. No accrued liability has been reported for property losses.

At June 30, 1999 the accrued liabilities which will be paid with current expendable available financial resources are
reported in the General Fund. Those labilities which will not be paid with current expendable available financial
resources at June 30, 1999 are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (GLTOAG). All
accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1999 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Motor
General License
Fund Fund GLTOAG Total
Employe disability.........coorvunneen $ 73,802 3 - $ 292,983 $ 366,785
Annnitant medical/hospital.......... 32,630 - - 32,630
Automobile fort ....eeoreeeeeceriacrncenes 2,698 - 14,042 16,740 :

Emnploye tOrt ....c.oeemeecsvsemirssenrasnees 2,521 - 25410 27,931
Geperal TOrT...covvreeeeeccnereerrrnnnennnns 1,242 - 34,689 35,931
Transportation......... - - 23557 222 395 245652
Totals “ $ 112,893 3 23,357 $_589519 3 725969

The following summary provides aggregated information on prior year reported self-insurance liabilities; incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30,
1999 (amounts in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1998 Clzims Payments 1999

’ Lizbitity [ Current Prior | [ Current Prior | Liability
Employe disability .....e---eveene $ 423,328 § 38,195 $(35549) $ 5,040 $ 54,149 $ 366,785
Amnuitant medical/hospital .. 33,452 227,291 .- 194,661 33,452 32,630
Automobile tort......ccoeeeerenene 13,710 884 4.354 590 1,618 16,740
Employe tort ..o eeeeicrnnannncn 23,100 982 4,951 95 1,007 27,931
General tort.....ccoceremrevecnnnnas 32,768 414 3,611 24 838 35,931
Transportation.....erreezeeceseen. 213.365 2.569 46470 408 16,044 245952
Totals cooveererreccccisreneneeannn $ 739723 $270335 $ 23837 $200.818 $107.108 § 725969




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—Seli-Insurance (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 1997 self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims
and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1998
{amounts in thousands):

June 36, Incurred June 30,
1997 Claims Payments 1998

Liability [ Current Prior | i Current Prior | Liability
Employe disability ............... $ 368,626 § 12,687 $103359 $ 7,209 $ 54135 $ 423,328
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 33,169 209,607 - 176,155 33,169 33,452
Automobile tort.......u........... 13,631 1,790 1,101 1,038 1,774 13,710
Employe 1ort ..cceueeereiemeene 21,130 1,566 2,133 668 1,061 23,100
1€5115 18 {0 ¢ S 35,267 518 (741) 71 2,205 32,768
Transportation........c.uucceenees 217.417 10.166 3.032 415 16.835 213,365
Totals .o $ 689240 §$236334 $108.884 $185556 $109.179 $ 739723

NOTE P—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1999 the Department of ‘Transportation and at May 31, 1999
the Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual commitments of
approximately $1,407.9 million and $462.6 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass transit
projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and general
obligation bond proceeds. In addition, the Commonwealth has a variety of contractual and other commitments for
future subsidies and purchases of goods and services for approximately $9.1 billion at June 30, 1999. Actual
expenditures are contingent upon approved spending authority and/or availability of financial resources.

Loan Commitments: At June 30, 1999 the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that
had not been disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZEncy ...oroceeosreiesessssasicsremenes 3 143
Pennsylvania Industrial Development AUthOrity..........coovevrvrememneee. 173
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ...........cc.even...... 244

Operating Lease Commitmzents: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component umits have
commitmaents to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1999 were as follows (amounts in thousands): :

Fiscal year ending June 30:
Primary Discretely Presented
Government  Component Units

2000.. heemrarssess et et s st sh e st st sb e nnne s $ 224,435 5 1,616
2001 ..o e e sasmnmaemenen s s e rers easasaens 104,550 . 1,363
2002...... tereememasnerisssstssessat et s eeasnse e bban 78,824 1,193
2003t et bt mr e nseaen 55,059 953
2009ttt e s 44,150 1,491
Later Years ... ercrrveeneresaens s messsesssastenenne 175399 140

Total Minimum Lease Payments..................... } 682,417 $ 6756

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 amounted to $299.1
miltion ($296.4 million for primary government, $2.7 million for discretely presented component units).

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of conmtracts, condemnation proceedings and other
alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities at June
30, 1999 with respect to torts as described in Note O, $3,317 thousand in the General Fund, $360 thousand in the
Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund and as other General Long-Term Obligations with respect to other
matters of litigation in the amount of $66,634 thousand for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is
probable.

65



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Additionally, the Commonwealth is currently involved in certain legal proceedings relative to a case concerning the
distribution of certain state funding in an approximate amount ranging from $200 million to $1 billion. Other cases
that the Commonwealth is vigorously contesting could range from approximately $69 to $457 million, zero to $206
million, $1 to $21 million, and zero to $1.1 billion of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenue
Funds, Capital Projects Funds and the Pension Trust Fund, respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could range
from $200 thousand to approximately $8.4 million of additional liabilities for the College and University Funds, and
could result in approximately $2.5 million of additional liabilities for the Governmental Funds.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings, for which accruals have not been made, it is the opinion of
the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the Commonwealth’s
financial position.

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government in the
form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in the general purpose
financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the
grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes.
Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the
grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these
audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth, The Commonwealth is currently involved in administrative and
legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various disaliowances and sanctions related to Federal
. Assistance Programs ranging from $32 to $194 million. The Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate
disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident students.
Total original principal for outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $14.7 billion at June 30, 1999.
Under the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankuptcy, and defanlt claims paid to lenders.
Pursuant to this agreement, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there is
compliance with various federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 75 percent to 100 percent depending
upon default rates in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the year ended June 30, 1999, PHEAA’s default
rate was in a range that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department. -

Lottery Prizes: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including immediate,
fump-sum cash prizes and certain large prizes which provide for periodic payments to winners for specific periods of
time (in some cases throughout the winners’ lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). At June 30, 1999, the
amount of fiture payments owed to prizewinners is $2 billion. To satisfy its financial obligation to these
prizewinners, the Fund purchases annuity contracts from isurance companies whereby the insurance companies
make periodic payments to prizewinners. Generally, in the event of insurance company default, the Fund is liable
for the related annuity payments.. However, certain prizewinners voluntarily assign their annuity rights to other
parties and receive lump-sum payments in return. In the event of insurance company default where annuity rights
have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners, the Fund is not liable for the related annuity payments. At June 30,
1999, the future payments of $252 million have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q-—CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate the
payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by healthcare providers practicing
in the Commonwealth. The Fund levies healthcare provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance premiums for
basic coverage, to pay claims and administrative expenses paid on behalf of healthcare providers during the prior
year. The actuarially computed Hability to the healthcare providers for claims outstanding at June 30, 1999 totals
$2,091.3 million ($1,597.4 million at present value based on the expected payment pattern and an assumed long-
term interest rate of 6 percent). The amount of expendable financial resources available to pay claims at June 30,
1999 is $170 million. This is reported as a fund liability. The remaining claims will be funded exclusively through
surcharge assessments in future years as claims are settled and paid; as a result, a financial lability for remaining
claims is not reported.

The Underground Storage Tank Indermification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees from
underground storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated with
cormrective actions or for bodily injury or property damage caused by tank leaks and other releases. Owners and
operators are assessed actuarially determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay claims. The Fund
actuary has estimated potential claims of $414.9 million at December 31, 1998; on a pro-rata basis, $369 million at
June 30, 1999. There are statutory limits on the extent of the Fund’s liability to participating owners and operators;
the Fund is not obligated beyond assets held at June 30, 1999. Owners and operators will be assessed for any claims
exceeding Fund assets and no financial lability is reported for those claims.

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System, permits participants $o
defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employes until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. .

Prior to December 22, 1998 all amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased
with the amounts, and all income attributable to these amounts were solely the property and rights of the
Commonwealth, subject only to the claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the
plan were equal to those of general creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of
the deferred account of each participant. The Commonwealth had no liability for losses under the plan but did have
the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. In accordance with the Small Business
Jobs Protection Act of 1996 (a federal law) the plan was amended effective December 21, 1998 to provide that all
plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and employes.

Of the $729 million in assets reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Expendable Trust fund, at December
31, 1998, $704 million relates to primary government employes and $22 million relates to employes of discretely
presented component units. The remaining balance of $3 million relates to organizations not included in the
Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S—JOINT VENTURE

The Commoenwealth and various labor unions representing Cormmonwealth employes participate in a2 joint venture,
the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare
benefits for active Commonwealth employes and is a third party administrator for Commonwealth annuitant
medical/hospital benefits. The Commonwealth is required to fund all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of
providing benefits; the unions are not required to make contributions. Collective bargaining agreements and
administrative policies establish contribution rates and/or amounts. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the
Commonwealth contributed over $583 million to fund benefits. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an
equity interest in the PEBTF. At June 30, 1999, the PEBTF reported total assets of $388 million, total liabilities and
benefit obligations of $114 million, and net assets available for benefits of $274 million. During the fiscal year, net
assets available for benefits increased by $28 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored on an ongoing
basis; fiancial stress is not evident.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

William K. Schantzenbach

Chief Financial Officer

Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43zd Street

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T-—BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

The General Assembly passes, and the Governor approves (or reduces or vetoes), individual appropriations as part
of the annual budget adoption process. Budgetary expenditure control occurs at the appropriation level; this is the
lowest level of legislative spending control. Encumbrances and expenditures within individual appropriations may
‘not exceed total amounts appropriated. Also, appropriation transfers between or within departments and any
supplemental appropriations require both legislative and gubermatorial approval. The legislatively adopted budget
for the General Fund includes $707 million in supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999. '

A separately available report, the “Status of Appropriations,” demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for

- the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This report includes a variety of detail information and
summaries related to individual appropriations. A second “Status of Appropriations” report (for Special Funds)
demonstrates compliance for the five budgeted Special Revenue funds: Motor License, State Lottery, Workmen’s
Compensation Administration, Banking Department and Milk Marketing. Both “Status” Teports are available from
the Office of the Budget. The Governor controls spending by using executive authorizations for Special Revenue
funds not controlled by legislatively adopted budgets.

Total actual expenditures for “Total State Programs” included in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances — Budget and Actual {Budgetary Basis) are
derived from the respective “Status of Appropriations” (Total Al Current State Ledgers) as follows (in thousands):

“Status” Total . Total Total Reported
Page Approved - Actual Actual Expenditure
Reference Approprations + Augmentations - Lapses = Amounts

General Fund totals 7 $ 19,011,510 31,669,226 $104,171  $20,576,565

less: tax refunds 7 (644.000) - - (644.000)
Amount reported $__18.367.510 $.1.6609.226 3104171 $19932.565

Special Revenue Funds:

Motor License 50 $ 2,704,387 3 814,685 $131,749 § 3,387,323
less: reductions ( 753.970) (777.803) (119.212) (1.412.563)
Amount reported 1,950,417 36,880 12.537 1.974.760

State Lottery 3 949,767 3,832 46,002 907,597

Workmen’s Compensation
Administration 250 43,261 149 11 43,399

Banking Department 89 9,768 - 220 9,548

Miik Marketing _ 94 2.660 - 16 2.644

Total Special
Revenue Funds . §__29355873 $___40.861 $_5878¢ 52937948

Toial actual expendifures for “Federal Programs™ for the General Fund are derived from the General Fund “Status,”
pkt page 219, page no. 219 “Summary of All Current Federal Ledgers by Character of Expenditure” as follows (in
thousands): Commitments of $1,296,310 and Expenditures of $7,992,962, for a total of $9,289,272.

Total actual expenditures for “Federal Programs,” Special Revenue funds, are derived from the Special Funds
“Status” as follows (in thousands): Motor License - $659,047 (calculated in footnote 3 below) and State Lottery -
$61,910 (sum of Commitments of $4,059 and Expenditures of $57,851, shown on page no.l4), for a total of
$720,957.

" Pkt page 7, page no. 7, “Summary of All Current State Ledgers by Character of Expenditure,” General
Fund “Status of Appropriations.”
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—Budgetary Compliznce (Continued) . i

2 Excludes the following appropriation symbols, beginning on page 51, Special Funds “Status of
Appropriations:” 010-003-102-98-1; 010-008-051-98-1; 010-008-053-98-1; 010-008-181-98-1; ¢10-003-
198-98-2; 010-038-230-98-2; 010-008-212-98-2; 010-008-214-98-2; 010-008-217-98-2; 010-008-218-98-
2; and 010-008-230-98-2 through 010-008-289-98-2.

*Consists of $775,925 in Year-to-Date “Total Federal Funds” on page 112 of “Report of Revenues and
Receipts” less $116,878 in Year-to-Date Federal Funds amounts for the following revenue codes (also on
page 112 of the “Reporr®): 010811-008051-101; 010811-008181-101; 010811-008181-106; 010811- ol
008181-108; 010811-008232-101; 010811-008284-101; 010811-008289-101; and 010811-008289-102. B

NOTE U—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On October 1, 1999, the Commonwealth issued $397 million of General Obligation Bonds, Second Series of 1999
with an interest rate of 5.4 percent. Bond proceeds will be used for the construction and acquisition of capital
facilities projects, to construct, rehabilitate and mmprove water supply, storm water control and sewage treatment (!
systems, and to pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. _ -

Discretely Presented Coinponent Units

On July 14, 1999 and September 15, 1999, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (FHFA), a proprietary fund —
component unit, issued $144.5 million and $149.8 million, respectively, of Single Family Mortgage Revenue _
Bonds, Series 1999-66 and 1999-67. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to refund certain of the PHFA’s -
outstanding Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds and to fund the purchase of new single family mortgage loans. -
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

Numerous Commonweaith computer programs which rely on or perform calculations using dates originally
inchuded two digits (rather than four) to identify the year. Asa result, it was not known whether the year 2000
would be correctly identified, treated as 1900 or treated as some other year. Miscalculations or other failures
resulting from incorrect date recognition would significantly disrupt Commonweaith operations. In 1996, the
Commonwealth adopted an aggressive action plan to ensure that its computer programs are year 2000 compliant and
to avoid disruptions to its operations.

As of June 30, 1999, the Commonwealth has reviewed its computer programs and has modified, validated/tested
and retumned to service 99.93% of all programs (including-essentially all programs affecting vital public services.)
The Commonwealth expects to remediate remaining programs by December 31, 1999. Extensive and rigorous Final
Readiness Testing (i.e., end-to-end testing with the computer operating with year 2000 dates) began in all
Commonwealth agencies under the Governor’s jurisdiction prior to July 1, 1999. Through June 30, very few
problems occurred and were all quickly rectified and retested. The Commonwealth expects to complete the repair or
replacement of personal computers, the identification and repair of potentially faulty embedded technologies (date-
sensitive computer chips in telecommunications, security and heating, ventilation and air conditioning equipment)
and contingency planning in state agencies by December 31, 1999. Further, the Commonwealth is continuing to
communicate with significant contractors, suppliers, vendors, and other affected parties to ensure that they have
taken appropriate measures to properly interface with the Commonwealth programs in the year 2000.

The Commonwealth believes that the efforts completed through June 30, 1999 and the measures planned to be taken
will fully address this matter. While there can be no guarantee that all of the Commonwealth’s vital or non-vital
computer programs will be entirely free of year 2000-related problems, no disruptions to normal operations are
expected. The amounts contractually committed at June 30, 1999 are not material to either the financial position or
the results of operations of the Commonwealth or any of its individual funds.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the operation of the Pennsylvania State Lottery which includes the payment of prizes to
lottery winmers, property tax and rent assistance to the elderly, mass transit fare subsidies, and prescription drug costs
incurred by the eligible elderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge design, construction, improvement, restoration and maintenance,
for the purchase of rights-of-way, for aviation activities and facilities, for transportation general government, licensing and
safety activities, for payment of subsidies for construction and maintenance of local roads, and for payment of Pennsylvania
State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. Insurance companies and self-insured businesses are
assessed a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these acts.

Banking Department Fund — to account for the administration of the Department of Banking and regulation of financial
institutions. Revenue is received from fees, assessments, charges and penalties collected or recovered from persons, firms,
cotporations or associations regulated by the Department of Banking.

Milk Marketing Fund — to account for the operation of the Milk Marketing Board and to serve as a depository for money
due to dairy farmers from underpayments by dealers. Revenue is received from license fees, fines, penalties and permits
relating to the milk industry.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — to account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of the
Commonwealth’s mass transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, a motor vehicle lease tax, and a
motor vehicle rental fee.

Pﬁarmaceutical Assistance Fund — to account for the payment of prescription drugs and insulin supplies for eligible
Commonwealth recipients who are at least 65 years old.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization stedies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid waste
is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection,
propagation, management and preservation of game and aquatic life.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Other — to account for programs related to conservation and protécﬁon of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellanecus
Commonwealth activities. This other category is an aggregation of thirty-five individual special revenue funds.

There are a total of forty-five individual special revenue funds.

75



e t——

: Y

ise'oo ¢

————— e o o
TEO'BPYE §  SET'izE eIGl § 1St $ 189's51 § ois'Pe  §  op9' $ €T § 690 §  ELI'PSIT § pEZ'GEE S AONYIVE ANNA
) ANV SALLITNAVIT TV.LCL
199°659°1 FiL'ote TLE'SLL pOL'SS 60E'ThI 868'ZF 8790t 5£9°] 78Tl 156°0¢ [T 60K's1e "HINVIVE GNNA TVIO0L
£ZL°E86 PEL'RE] £58'951 6LT'ls ur'icl GTE'6E 879°0% 909°1 T8I 8ee'9E €0E'E8 8S¥1IT paleudisapiin)
iz - - - - - - - - - . iz .
29'EIT - - - - M . - - - ‘eIz - sARASIH
‘pandasaitin)
$SL'1E £L8'FL - LE0°T L9l Fo0't - - - €19 - - AN
£81'09 #58'3S - - 629°1 - - - - - - - |quAJa00E SUBLT]
000t . 000 - - - - - - - - - SaJULADY
p0B'99¢ £55'pI 615'st 850'T il $09 - ot - - EE9b1E SLO'T UsaaUEIqUINouY
110} paatasay
) UL Uk
[ 1zs%06 120°%1 L80°T1 TLE91 65¥°CT 788t 010" 1z8'y 899'¢ S19'¢hp ¢e'sLl e SHLLITIEYVIT AVEOL
00L'IT 00412 - - - - - - - - - - ’ "3jqeAed sa101 nojjedionue puog
8059 - - - - LEE - - - - sLI'C - (st IR JMBO THOLJ SIJURAPY
POt TEH'EL 00t pog'T - - - G6L POI'Y - L81 858 P s aNEIADL PALISJAT
9Iges 90ET €1 SoT voL's [ - S £t €11 £9L°6E [AtAr4 TG UALHEAAOE 1a1)0 ©) ang
6z0'c . . - - P - - - - 679°C - - n paiodiios o) angg
SLY'Ib 008°LI 62 88¢ L86'1 I Loy [44 1L [11%4 (£ FAadl we'e - ‘BpUAE I3[0 0f an(]
808°LE - €60 - G63°¢ - - - - - vELOT 7806 sionedqo uswsaBe sseyaindan asiavy
861°1 - - - - - - - - - 861°1 - {qeAed spunja1 xe],
OSI'109 §  €8z'SE  § 9811 0§ o0 § L'l § €6l $ st 0§ em1 $ €0 §  91E't  §  Lpo'oSt § 188'961  § eneesonyIqu| persaoe pue ajqeded sinosay
) SBIRNIGeT
SHONYIVE NN ANV SILLITAYI]
T6RPT § SETLZE §  ewp'l6l §  Isk99 3 1E98sl § 699 S OISKE §  OIOT  §  EP9Ll 3 6lg0p $ slvsI'T $ peg'ese § SLASSY TVLIOL
= - = - " = - - - - - - rertes JOSSE a0
000'e - 000°E - - - - - - - - - SPUNJ JAHO ©) SIIUBAPY
wmh.Omd ?..-N.m - mﬂm.m - - - - - - wmn.ﬂm— _mm.n ....................:....:......:a-—_u_.:_n_u_acm ._.o—=° F—Oﬁ ang
or £ - - - - - - - - LE - G egun SUeAI0s 0oy angg
LA STS'1I oLtz 89¢1 - LLE'S 662°C - - i 0T6'c - 'SP JAI0 WD FR(]
145 .4 ol - - - - - - - - wor'e B 1910
£81°09 [ 2320 - - 629'1 - - - - - - - srnneelig] PUB S310N
896'8 1282 L9 f4%4 £29 b4 90t 6 15 i (/2 901 - TSI patudDy
£TEYI 9t - - - 10£'S - - Pis'y LL - S6E'F NeIFY
8r6'oLl . - - - . 092'4T - - . , 889'¢¥] - "saxeL,
Al '$ajqeataday
199°ST - - - - . - - - - - L9g'sp e e SIUWEIAU ULAL-Fuo]
T18°9¢E6°1 XA A LOT'P91 095'85 66E'95 £15°58 $hB'E Le9'e SPO'ET Q0s'0F 885°'CE8 BZE'POE st — suswgsaau; Aiesoduag
9zz'oe  § 8L $ 08 § . 99L § 0t $ I § - § - 3 £t § L $§ ouie s L £ "lse)
, BLESSY
0L nyg dnues|s [T°TT) Buj)34a0y UB)SSY [ET TR Bupaniey wounedeg  vopenguiupy 65083}y Asop0n
sBYS pue |eapnBdRuEd  uopeModsugl) P Bupjueg uopesueduiog 00N TT
snopiezaj sy ygng s Mawyiop
spui4 peyeBpng

(spuesnow y, uy passatdxy)

VINVATIASNNEd 40 HLTVIMNOWWOD

6661 0 2unp

Spuny INUIANY Jeadg

LATHS ADNVIVI ONINIGIIOD

o
~



A ——
——————

— e
———————

e e——kei
p———————————

rr———
e —

[

etreeerrrrre—

199'689'L &  vlL'9CC §  TLE'SLI §  v9ESSs §  GOTCP §  868CF  §  BE9OE $  Of%l 8  zi8Cl §  IS59F §  BSSTIL §  Gop'EIz g e 6661 ‘0 ANAC ‘SEINVTVE aNNa
(0s9'st) - 00s°L) - - E - - - E (os'ze) - "SHEISNVEL ALINOA " TYNaAISay
T62'5L8") 166'912 905°LLL £06'68 Z68ZEI L9r'9z Te9'Lt E6°l 8486 $00°Zr L6R'Y99 6LI'SEE . "8661 ‘0 INAF ‘SAINYTVE ANNA
6IT'PEl €26l 99€°s (6es't) LIF'S 1ep'91 966°T {Lot) b6’z (£50°5) 110%L fore'n SASN WIHLO ANV
SAUNLIANTIXA (HAAND) YTAO
SIOUNOS HAHLO UNY SANNIATYT
(ebL'son) - ILz'er (o001} 6Es'E (evs'e) 105'98¢ [§ETR] - - - (bsgiseD) (98'e87) (sasn}
SADUNOS DNIDNVYNIA YIHLO LAN
9£e's (]3] - - - - - - - - 1% - *suofiedge sseoand mawgiesu pue ases| fendey
(o19°1L¥) (915'02) (ooo'y) - {1z'v} - (8L - - - (ozzvn) ocs'cge) e s Sioysuey ugenadg
LET'SEE -6TS'Pr - 6£8'E 899 105°08% - - - - - - sy spsten) Sunersdg
¥st'6l ¥62'61 - - - - - - - - . . [ : paacoud puog
HSTASN) $ADUNOS ONIDNVNIE YHHLO
296'T€T (8p5'c0) D9E°61 (8208 096°ZI (oL0'0L7) LEL'L {£o%) Ph6'T (gs0's) $08'%1T 901°Z82 STUNLIANAIXT
(MFANN) HIAO SANNAATH
268'6L9'S SOR°LOE STS'P 1££'96 819°LE SE¥ILT 6L9°L81 £19'z oG 859'08 TLLSIT'E BIQPEY] et N LIGNEAXT TVLOL
mvv.uv - - - - - - - - P n..vv.:u - e hmz_..o —S_QNU
mmﬂ.nmﬁ.m - - - - - Qnm._ﬁm— - - - n.—m.mvw.ﬂ mO—.Nc— .::..:........:::..::::...:.:..::..::...:o_uﬂtOn_m:m.—h.
o' LOK's - - - - - - - - - - gy URSIsse pue Juaudojaaap 2HUOLOYY
£61°05T €TL'1L SZS'hp 1£€'96 819'LE - . - - - - - s SIIN0SDT RINIRY JO UOHEAIASUDD
B01°1 01l N . N . . . R R R R T
£95°32L SPR'TPI - - - 6EF'1LT - - - - - 6LTFIE 3LEf[aM pue 1fijeay alang
[\VZATS orE'sl - - B - - - - - - - -Auadoad pue suostad jo uonoajorg
SLS'064'1 TTH'E9 - - - - - £19°C 0p¥'6 85905 802°v2E PEOGEO' e UBLILAACE e1sLan)
. datimy
ISAUNLIGNAING
098'T16'S LS2'PBT 168°€9 £57°98 84505 69€'1 951'$61 90L'E PRET) $09°6H LESOEK'E FAR T I STONIATH TVLOL
PLISL 6SL°0T vo6's £L61 $6 - - 44 [T 151 188'9¢ SL1's " ElTe)
SOE'659'1 - - - - - - - - - - SOE'659°] e SHans A121j07]
HL'es sl 190°8 sol'e Igs's 695" 8£€"1 8zl ££9 £l 8p5°0r £8¢'s " SO JUALEA]
170'vee B6S°IL - $$8'81 - - - - 29b'L 1L ey Peo'LL SSLY s g0AIRS PUE S3J6S 10§ SHENRMID
TOE'IOT'T 590511 - $59°1 - - - - - - 6I11'2I6 o168 IeysinaaacEon
SOT'TL8 SLETLE SET'T $95'5p 56Tk - - 951'T $61% - PBLEPL £ e TTTTTSag) PUR SIS
TWTLER'E § 886SE  § 1€94v 001 $ - s - § si'vel § - 5 - § - § sotelv'1 § - saxe],
SSANNAATY
ey 18190 [CITETE) Bwag Auakany aauelsjssy R HTIT ] Bupieysey Juswpedag [T [ELTENY Aoy
311 pug |eapnoseunayy  uofepodsueit Al Bupyueg uopesuadiog 10J0) 1T
SnopIRIEY usi4 a|gng SUBLINIOMN
g spung payeBpng

(spuesnoy J, wy passaudxy)

VINVATASNNId JO HLTVIAMNOWRWOD

6661 ‘0€ 2unp papusy ava§ WIS A0,
SHONVIVE AN NI STONVHD ANV STINLIONTIXT ‘SHANTATH 40 INAWALVLS ONINITNOD

Spuny ANUIANY [erdadg

77



COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED

FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
_ For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Budgeted Special Revenue Funds

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thounsands)
State Lottery Motor License
Variance Variance
Favorable Favoratble
Budget Aetual {Unfavorable} Budget Actval {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds. - % - 5 - 3 LOILT20 5 1,03489 3 23,179
Lottery receipts 894,639 899,691 5,052 - - -
Licenses and fees - - - 740,730 755,431 14,701
Investrment income, 11,622 17,214 5,592 29,700 40,649 10,949
Fines, penalties and interest - - - 33,000 30,203 (2,797
Departmental service: 3,832 3,832 - 36,330 36,880 -
Miscellaneous. 5,176 9,145 2,969 26,740 23,827 (2,913)
TOTAL STATE FROGRAMS oo it 916,268 929,882 I3,6f3 1,878,770 1,921,880 43,119
Federal Programs 64,825 61,910 (2,915) 749,780 659,047 (50,733)
TOTAL REVENUES, 981,054 991,792 10,698 2,628,550 2,580,936 (47,614)
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General govermment. 299,872 280,183 19,689 164,752 163,982 70
Protection of persons 2nd PIOPETLY .. i mssssssssssinins - - - 290,718 288,549 2,169
Public health and welfare. 653,727 627,414 26,313 - - -
Public edycation - - - 1,556 1,182 374
Conservation of naturaf resotyge: - - - 1,000 966 34
Economic development and assiStance. .......cocveessmenneaes - - . . . _
Transportation - - - 1,529,271 1,520,081 9,190
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 953,599 907,597 46,002 1,987,297 1,974,760 12,537
Federal Programs 64,825 61,910 2,915 749,780 659,047 90,733
TOTAL EXPENDITURES, 1,018,424 969,507 48,917 2,737,077 2,633,807 103,270
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. {37,330) 22,285 59,615 (108,527) (52,871) 55,656
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: -
Prior year lapses. 7,941 7,941 - 33,848 33,348 -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES v -ernee 7,941 7,941 - 33,848 33,848 -
Revenues andd other sources over
(under) expenditures (29,389) 30,226 59,615 (74,679) (19,023) 55,656
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JULY 1, 1998, 272,602 272,602 - 108,477 108,477 -
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS), )
JUNE 30, 1999 243,213 5 302,828 % 59615 $ 33,798 % 39,454 § 55,656
(Continued)
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED
FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

Budgeted Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

For Fiscal Year Ended June 3 b, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds.

Lottery receipts

Licenses and fees
Investment income.
Fines, penalties and interest

Departmental services.
Misceilaneowr

.

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS e eercsscanme

Federal Programs

TOTAL REVENUES.

EXPENDITURES:

State Programs:
General government,
Protection of persons and ProPeTtY....v.c.wweeemsserrameeeenen
Public heaith and welfare
Public education
Conservation of natural resources.............
Economic development and assistance

Tramsportation

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS

Federal Programs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES,

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Prior year apses

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES eoovsnssncrres

Revenues and other sources over

(under) expenditures

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JULY 1, 1998.

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS),
JUNE 30, 1999,

Workmen's Compensation Administration Banking Department

Variance Variance

Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Budget Actual {Unfaverable)
$ 43,261 1 43,325 5 &4 5 - $ - 3 -
- - - 10,070 11,653 1,583
4,050 1,932 (2,118) 390 636 245
- 5 5 50 86 36
149 149 - - - -
950 453 (497) - 2 2
48,410 45,864 (2,546) 10,510 12,377 1,867
48,410 45,864 {2,546) 10,510 . 12,377 1,867
43,261 43,250 11 - - -
- - - 9,768 9,548 220
145 149 - - - -
43,410 43,399 n 9,768 9,548 220
43,410 43,399 11 5,768 9,548 220
5,000 2,465 {2,535) 742 2,829 2,087
54 54 - 64 64 -
54 34 - 64 64 -
5,054 2,519 (2,535) 806 2,893 2,087
35,634 35,634 - 8,573 8,573 -
$ 40688 § 38,153 % (2,535) -8 9379 § 11466 % 2,087
{Continued)
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED
'FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

Budgeted Special Revenue Funds (Continued) For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA flj
(Expressed in Thonsands) . fox
Milk Marketing Total T
Variance Variance o
Favorable Favorable ol
Budget Actual {Unfavorahle) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES: .
State Programs: o
Taxes, net of refunds $ - 8 -3 - § 1054981 $ 1,078,224 § 23243 o
Lottery receipts - - - 894,639 895,691 5,052
Licenses and fees. 2,167 2,158 ) 752,967 765,242 16,275 .
Investment income. 145 134 (i 45,907 60,565 14,658 {
Fines, penalties and interest 30 20 (10) 33,080 30,314 (2,766) :'
Departmental services - : - - 40,861 40,361 - *
Miscell 2 1 [$)) 33,868 33,428 (440)
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS. e omsccmcmsmmemarosmasn 2,344 2,313 31) 2,856,303 2,912,325 56,022
Federal Programs - - - 814,605 720,957 (93,648)
TOTAL REVENUES, 2,344 2,313 31) 3,670,908 3,633,282 (37,626) :
EXPENDITURES: i
State Programs:
G 1 government. - - - 507,885 487,415 20470
Protection of persons and PrOPETLY..vmmrirmmrieessraresasreens 2,650 2,644 16 303,146 300,741 2,405 R
Public health and welfare - - - 653,727 627,414 26,313 ;
Public education. - - - 1,556 1,182 374 —
Conservation of natural resource - - - 1,000 266 34
Economic development and asSiStANCE. ..o sesssssnnarns - - - 149 149 - :
Transporation - - - 1,529,271 1,520,081 " -9,190 !
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 2,660 2,644 16 2,996,734 2,937,948 58,786
Federal Programs - - - 814,605 720,957 93,648 .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,660 2,644 16 3,811,339 3,658,905 152,434
REVENUES OVER (UNDER} -
EXPENDITURES. (316) {331) (15) (140,431) (25,623) 114,808 e i
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: ' =y
Prior year lapses : 104 104 - 42,011 42,011 -
NET OTHER FINANCING SQURCES- —uccrciaisns 104 104 - 42,011 42,011 - : ‘!j

Revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures. 12) @27 15 (98,420) 16,388 114,308

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND : {
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS) ]
JULY 1, 1998 1,809 1,809 - 427,095 427,095 -

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGEYARY BASIS), ' o
JUNE 30, 1999. $ 1507 8 1,582 3 ° {15} $§ 328675 $ 443483 § 114,808 i
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Debt Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and investment income.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
mprovement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund and investment income.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and mterest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund, facility rental and investment income.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and small
business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization
Fund and investment income. :

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction and
improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities Loan
Fund, investment income and proceeds from the sale, lease or disposal of loan collateral.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund, the Land and Water Development Fund and investment income. :

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the
General Fund and investment income. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual debt service funds.

There are a total of fourteen individual debt service funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Debt Service Funds June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities ‘Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitakization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
ASSETS:
Cash 3 1 8 1 3 1 5 - 8 1 3 1 3 3 3
Cash with fiscat agents, 579 - 8,319 - - 382 180 9,960
Temporary investments. - - 378,606 104 - 16 8 378,734
Receivables, net:
Ag¢connts, - - 7,821 - - - - 7,821
Accrued interest. - - 54 - - - 7 61
Lease rental - - 2,489 - - - - 2,489
Due from other funds - - - 19 - 26 - 45
Due from component Unit......cueserencmcreenrersessecanes - 27,808 - - “ - - 27,808
TOTAL ASSETS 3 580 3 27809 % 397290 % 123 3 1 3 925 198 3 426926
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Matured debt principal and interest payable... 3 579 3 - 5 8319 § - 8 - 8 882 180§ 9960
Reverse repurchase agreement obligations. - - 9438 - - - - 9,438
Due to other funds. - - - - - - 15 15
Deferred revi - - 10,310 - - - - 10,310 -
Other liabilities. - - 356 - - - - 356
FTOTAL LIABILITIES ..erercscnscnssinsnoninsssssssss 579 - 28,423 - ~ 882 195 30,079
Fund balance:
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Debt service:
Retirement of general obligaton bonds............ 1 27,809 368,867 123 1 43 3 396,847
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ..ooeiccsscssssssians 1 27,809 368,867 123 1 43 3 396,847
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES S 580 3§ 27309 § 397290 § 123§ 1 § 925 198 § 426926
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsyivania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Faciities Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemptfion Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
REVENUES:
Investment income. 3 - 3 5 § 2250 % - 5 1 g 208 § 93 % 2,557
1ease rental principal and interest - 1,827 - - - - 1,827
Other. 5 - 159 - - - - 164
TOTAL REVENUES 5 ) 4,238 - 1 208 93 4,548
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service: :
Principal retirement. 5,505 15,350 381,270 4,550 65,605 12,090 18,305 443,675
Interest and fiseal charges. 2,132 13,624 218,697 2,104 6,377 2,607 17,126 262,667
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,637 28,974 599,967 6,654 12,982 14,697 35,431 706,342
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES rnveereesvrarmmeserrers (7,632) (28,969) {595,731) (6,654) (12,981) (14,489) (35,338) (701,794)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES): . .
Qperating transfers in 7,633 27,008 798,970 6,596 12,982 14,496 35,395 903,081
Operating transfers out - - - - - - (51) (1)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .urvrverssesmersessessases 7,633 27,009 798,970 6,596 12,982 14,496 35,304 £02,990
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER .
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES.ervrrverers 1 (1,960) 203,239 (58) 1 7 (34 201,196
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1998 - 29,763 165,628 181 - 36 37 195,651
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1999 3 1 3 27809 § 368,867 % 123 % 1 5 43 3 3 3 396,847

b d
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Capital Projects Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS . | x
DESCRIPTION ,

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other 4.
public organizations.

[P—

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for general obligation bond proceeds used to fund capital projects specifically itemized
and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties and multicounty A
aathorities for the repair, expansion, construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local comectional facilities or
multicounty regional prisen facilities, or for the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing )
programs.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for bond proceeds and a percentage of the state realty
transfer tax. The amounts are used to acquire, improve and expand Commonweaith and community parks, recreation !
facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves and wildlife habitats and other recreational areas and facilities. i

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for bond proceeds and other income used to provide grants to eligible i
entities for use in developing outdoor recreation areas and improvements to sewage treatment facilities.

There are a total of four individual capital projects funds. . f

86



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
ASSETS
L0 OSSR $ 14 3 1 $ - 5 1 3 16
Temporary investments 231,824 2,589 109,806 1,931 346,150
Receivables, net:
Accrued INTETeSt e reeeeerecmeeruemsenemsansvaeees 830 10 437 3 1,285
Due from other fumds. 13,329 - 4,302 - 17,631
TOTAL ASSETS b 245,997 3 2,600 S 114,545 3 1,940 § 365,082
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......ouueeereemsacanans s 84304 § 196 § 10602 8 - 8 95,096
Reverse repurchase agreement obligations. ...coeececrmvinvernns 4,659 - 2,737 - 7,396
Due to other funds. 61 - - 8 69
Due to other governments 15455 - - - 15,455
Bond anticipation notes payable...... .. omemsrimsmreecsensmeeeen 15,200 - - - 15,200
TOTAL LIABILITIES 119,679 190 13,339 8 133,216
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. 526,127 - 23,607 124 549,858
Unreserved:
Designated for:

Capital projects - 2,410 77,599 1,808 81,817
Undesignated deficit........... (399,809 - - - {399,809)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 126,318 2,410 101,206 1,932 231,866

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3 245997 % 2,600 3 1940 3 365,082
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Capital Projects Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA N
(Expressed in Thousands) ) [
Keystone :
Local Recreation, Land and “
Capital Criminal Park and Water ' ‘zf
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total !
REVENUES:
Taxes - - $ - 3 - § 45530 8 - § 45530 “}
Intergovernmental . - - - 30 30 B
Charges for sales and services. T 21,268 - - 5 21,273
Investment income....... - 9,219 153 5,294 - 14,666 Ty
(07111 SR 17,180 - - 17,180 '
TOTAL REVENUES 47,667 153 50,824 35 98,679
EXPENDITURES: : ;
General government 786 - - - 736 I
Protection of persons and property.. ..o eeeeeoeereessiiens T 1,697 - - 1,697 P
Conservation of natural resources 5,258 - 42,729 - 47,987 T
Economic development and assistance......o..wveeueeaeeeeenes 70,829 ' - - - 70,829 -
Transportation 142,122 - - - 142,122 )
Capital outlay. . 502,895 - - 46 502,941 : ;[
Debt service: o o
Interest and fiscal charges - - 2 - 2 _‘
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 721,890 1,697 42,731 46 766,364 ;
REVENUES UNPER ) L
EXPENDITURES. {674,223) {1,544) 8,093 (11) (667,685) |

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds 834,495 3,050 - - 837,545 -
NET OTHER FINANCING P
SOURCES (USES) 834,495 3,050 - . 837,545

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES'

UNDER EXPENIMTURES AND
OTHER USES 160,272 1,506 8,093 (11) 169,860
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1998.cccnimssrmssimasssnsancs (33,954} 904 93,113 1,943 62,006

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1999.

S 126,318 & 2410 3 101206 % 1932 % 231,866
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Enterprise Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a2 manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. :

Tuition Payment Fund — to account for the tuition account program, which provides for the advance purchase of college
tuition credits for the beneficiary to attend a college or university at a future time. Revenue is derived primarily from
application fees, tuition unit purchases ard investment income.

Small Business First Fund — to account for and provide loans to eligible small businesses for capital development projects
which will create or preserve employment opportunities and that will enhance business development in Pennsylvania.
Sources of revenue include loan principal and interest payments, transfers from the General Fund, Federal funds and
investment income.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for premiums paid for worker’s compensation insurance by employers who
are subscribers and to pay workers’ compensation claims and related expenses.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operations of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the liquor store system and enforcement of the Liquor Control Law.

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide low-interest and short-term loans, loan and bond
guarantees and other financial and technical assistance, to eligible minority business enterprises and for operating expenses of
the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments, transfers from the
General Fund and investment income.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans to finance machinery and equipment
purchases for eligible Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and vaiue added-capacity. Sources
of revenue include loan repayments, Gengral Fund appropriations and investment income.

Other -— to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers,
insurance to home owners in mining areas against damages resulting from mine subsidence and vocational rehabilitation
services and loans and grants issued to atiract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. This other category is an aggregation of six individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of thirteen individual enterprise funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Enterprise Funds June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
' State
Small Workmen's Volunteer Minority Machinery
Tuition Business Insurapce State Companies Business and Equipment
Payment First (Dee. 31, 1898) Stores Loan Development Loan Other Total
ASSETS:
Cash 3 106 3 553 % 1,146 §5 11476 3 205 % 27§ 328 % 156 % 13,997
Temporary investment 50,680 27,950 497,958 112,491 19,207 4,242 15,079 45,795 777,442
Long-term invesoment 102,275 - 1,378,293 - - - - - 1,480,568
Receivables, ner:
Accouns 12 - 7,651 1416 - - - 166 9,285
Accrued interest 1,131 251 17,189 486 141 64 169 ' 183 19,614
Notes and Joans. - 51,853 8,159 - 88,775 2,832 31,955 1,919 185,507
Due from other funds - 2,500 914 3608 - - - 4,200 7,931
Due from other govemments - - - - - - - 13 13
Inventory. - - - 121,403 - - - 153 121,556
Fixed asseis - - 12,471 54,900 - - - 21,821 89,192
Less: accumulated depreciation.....oweerecsenees - - (11,415) (41,756) - - - (13,393) (66,564)
Other assets, - - 2,222 417 - - - 50 2,689
TOTAL ASSETS $ 154204 3 83,147 31914638 S 261,141 § 108332 § 7,065 3 51,531 § 61072 § 2,641,230
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
' Liabilities:
| Accounts payable and accrued lisbilities...........  § 192 5 20 8 6434 § 99,627 $ - % 69 $ - §5 3966 § 110,308
: Tuition benefits payable 130,084 - - - - - - - 130,084
Obligations under securities lending. ........cccoeeeee. - - 406,703 - - - - Toal 406,703
Due 1 other funds 19 4 2,556 . 17,248 - 2,500 - 25 22,352
Due 10 other government 3 - - 335 - - - - 131 459
Deferred revenue........ - 4,055 13,186 - 49 19 - 3,593 25,902
Advances from other fUnNds......owrmeeummmmssmmererianee 350 3,000 2,600 66,000 - - - - 71,350
Other Liabilities. - - 5,391 - - - 17 6 5,414
Insurance loss liability. - - 1,201,212 - - - - - 1,291,212
TOTAL LIABILITIES woeevrsvrecrsstsresssarmrmsmsss 130,648 7,079 1,732,482 183,210° 49 2,588 17 7,721 2,063,794
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital - 71,068 - 2,294 80,416 35,660 46,700 15,449 251,587
Retained eamings (deficit):
Reserved - - 5 - - - - 5,387 5,392
Unreserved 23,556 5,000 182,151 75,637 27,867 {31,083) 4,814 32,515 320,457
: i TOTAL FUND EQUITY s it eeeeeecenreee 23,556 76,068 182,156 77,931 108,283 4,577 51,514 53,351 577,436
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY wresrreemmemvimeeeese. 3 154,204 § 83,147  § 1,914,638 § 261,141 $ 108332 § 7,065 $ 51,531 § 61072 § 2,641,230
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Enterprise Funds

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and service
Investment income.
Interest on notes and loans.
Qther.

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES....receever

QPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and service:
Interest
Deprpriarinn
Provision for uncollectible accounts. .. ...eeeeeseee
Other.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES crusvomee
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) e-vcecsrsssicss

NONQPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment ingome.
Qther revenues.
Other expenses.

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NETuw.e

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS.coeeccscamermconna-
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating transfers out.
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET.

NET INCOME (LOSS)irsisississscnssssiosance

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),
JULY 1, 1998.
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),
JUNE 30, 1999

92

State S
Small Workmen's Velunteer Minority  Machinery C
Tuition Business Insurance State Companies Business and Equipment A
Payment First {Dec. 31, 1998} Stores Loan Development Loan Qther Total
5 24861 % - % JL80% % 811833 § - % - 8 - & 20,589 3 929,007 .
16,378 978 161,672 - 1,072 362 938 1,519 182,919
- 2,608 - - 1,544 245 1,072 32 5,501 .
1 - 60 102 o 15 161 - 339 . 1‘
41,240 3,586 233,541 811,940 2,616 622 2,171 22,140 1,117,856
}
31,225 911 167,872 743,765 2 529 98 14,349 958,751
- - 15,843 - - - - - 15,843
- - 499 3,132 - - - 1,661 5292
- 238 9,814 449 (90) 169 1,490 ) 12,069 .
- - (1,182) - - 234 - - @48 ;
31,225 1,149 192,846 747,346 (83) 532 1,588 16,009 991,007 o
10,015 2,437 40,695 64,504 2,704 (310) 583 6,131 126849 i)
. - - 5,954 - - - 430 6,384
- - - - - - - 600 600
- - - (361) - - - - (361)
- - - 5,593 - - - 1,030 6,623
‘;,
10,015 2,437 40,695 70,187 2,704 (310) 583 7,161 133,472 i
- (668) - {51,485) - - - - (52,153) i f
- (658) - {51,485) - - - - (62,153) |
10,015 1,769 40,695 18,702 2,704 (310) 583 7,161 81,319
ol
13,541 3,231 141,461 56,935 25,163 (30,773) 4,231 30,741 244,530 i
$ 23,556 5000 $ 182156 § 75637 § 27867 § (31,083) § 4814 § 37902 § 325,849




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Enterprise Funds ' For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
State
Smail ‘Workmen's Volunteer Minority  Machinery
Tuition Business Insurance State Companies  Business and Equipment
Payment First {Bec. 31, 1998) Stores Loan Development Loan Other Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating income g 1005 § 2437 5 40695 3 64594 3§ 2704 S (310) $ 583§ 6131 % 126,849
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
10 net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation C - - 499 3,132 - - - 1,665 3,292
Net amortization. - - - - - - - - . -
Provision for uncollectible account - 238 9814 449 (50) 169 1,490 [¢)] 12,069
Nonoperating rev - - - - - - - 600 600
Reclassification of investment iNCOmE....vrmersercreecercasenes (16,378) (978) (161,672) B (1,072) {362) . (938) {1,519) (182,919)
Change in assets and babilities: .
Receivable: , (601) (133) 5970 (710} (7.487) (282) (1,318) (330) (4,891)
Pue from other funds, - £2,500) (220) (8) - - - (2,248) (4,976)
Due from other governments, - - - - - - - 1 1
Inventory. - - - 5,641 - - - 80 5,721
Other assets - - (1,649) (68) - - - (503 (1,767)
Accounts paysble and accrued Habilities . ereenceoce.. 17 29 {597) 12,649 - (83) @) (23) 11,981
Due to other funds. (16) w (4,243) (2,312) - 2,496 ) (183) (4,766)
Due to other go - - - 27 - - - 4 31
Deferred re [43] (16) {1,587 - 4 (€3] - 1,906 301
In loss Liability. - - (84,145} - - - - - (84,145)
Tuition benefits payabh 25,39¢ - - - - - - . 25,390
Securities lending program obligABOnS. . cooree e cerecens - - 119,494 - - - - - 119,494
Other liabilities - - 2317 - - - ® 2 (2,324)
Total adjusments 8,411 (3,370} (120,653) 18,300 (8,645) 1,933 (734) (100) (104,508)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. 18,426 (933) (79,958) 82,894 (5,941) 1,623 (201) 6,031 21,941
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL '
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments under advances from other fands ......oeeercereneee (100) - - - - - - - (100}
Operating ransfers out - (668) - (51,485) - - - - {52,153)
Increase o contributed capital - - - - - - - 11,530 11,530
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. (100} {668) - (51,485) - - - 11,530 {40,723)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in contributed capital - 14,500 - - 20,000 - 1,500 52 36,052
Decrease in contributed capital. - - - - - - (5,000) - - (5,000}
Acquisition aud construction of capital 28568 o iceuveremresenns - - (7 2,017) - - - (7,125) (9.219)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES —mconscsconaesiens - 14,500 N {2,017) 20,000 (5,000) 1,500 (7,073) 21,833
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (£,286,040) (25753)  (1,375,580)  (582,342) (30,877 (1,623) (11,518) (33808)  (8,347.539)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investiments..... . 6,258,354 12,079 1,331,842 547,672 15,7179 4,639 9,345 21,427 8201,137
Investment i 9,315 966 123,654 5,954 1,064 360 930 1,928 144,171
NET CASH PROVIGED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES. (18371) (12,708) 79,916 (28,716} (14,034) 3376 {1,243) (10,451) (2,231)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH e ... {45) 191 (1i9) 676 25 [¢)] 56 37 820
CASH, JULY 1, 1998 151 362 1,265 10,800 180 28 272 119 13,177
CASH, JUNE 30, 1995. 3 106 % 553§ 1,46 3 1147 3 205 § 27 8 328 186 § 13997

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments dnring the fiscal year.
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Internal Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION |

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department

or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions. Revenue
is derived from reimbursements from Commonwealth agencies who use Fund services or products.

o
;_}

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods and services by inmates in the institutions of the
Department of Corrections, government agencies and government-aided organizations.

There are a total of two individual intermal service funds.

[
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Internal Service Funds June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchasing Manuafacturing Total
ASSETS
L0712 OV U S SRRSO UTO OV $ 117 (] 293 $ 410
Temporary IMVESANENS. ... ..cuoiiieevecrmrerecaseseresersesesesesmsssssssssssnssesssssssossemnons 12,805 6,147 18,952
Receivables, net:
ACCOTIMS <o rreerrrrerneesiaesstesscresrssssarssssssesmmesm e sesssssessses essnssns samtenssan 34 - 34
ACCTUSA INEETESL. ... e veceascreccieecemerrererresersesesessners somessessmsonsssassessansssemansameeane 56 22 78
Due from other fUnds.. ..ottt ceereneensssnsesneseens 9,441 3,913 13,354
Due fTom COMPONENE UMILS......cceesererirrrrrasrrerressaesesessesesmemmmsassensensssssessssnsas 614 2 616
Due from other GOVEIMMEDTS. ....cvveireverrereeseeereesressssrssssessssssssbesecsssasseneseens 128 628 756
IOV EIOTY et ecen e ere st eeemerermvesrsasarennene 1,134 11,998 13,132
FEREA B85S i rrerenr e ctrn e e emc s se sttt s et eeemenremsnne s eane e s neaenenane 61,223 24,290 85,513
Less: accurpulated depreciation.........ueeececeeeeere e rrecsesesenes perasrarssessresssres (29,894) (13,015) (42,909)
TOTAL ASSETS 3 55,658 3 34,278 $ 89,936
LIABILITTES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabitities: .
Accounts payable and accrued HabiliHes. .....oveveveeeeeeeereeeee e 5 6,863 $ 5,720 3 12,583
Due t0 Other fUNAS......ccoeeee et esssesssss sttt e e e 679 90 769
Die 10 COMPOBENT UNILS. ...occeeececeeeeaereretsns et st stetamememesnmem see snersesrnas 4 - 4
Due to other SOVEITIRIENLS. .......coveeeeicesearresenesecssiresecmene e semsaesresssersasesens 16 34 50
Deferzed TEVEDUE ... et eere ettt s e eencrenanvsnsassess s saseramaaen - 3 3
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,562 5,347 13,409
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital........ovcreereeeescrvenecnciemesssesernessessssess sesemmsasmmssssressmsssnsars 9,187 - 9,187
Retained earnings:
UBTESEIVE. c.eeeenmrrceerm e reee sttt bt e e eerasesmasesssee sesassseremesemeeesmres s seen 38,909 28,431 67,340
TOTAL FUND EQUITY. 48,096 28,431 76,527
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 55,658 $ 34,278 5 £9,936
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Internal Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
i 1
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA i
(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchasing Manufacturing Total \[
o
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services............ ereruesenmesananateeantrateate et ot teesann v nneaan 3 155,397 $ 34,395 3 189,792 | }
OHBET...eerreeremeiesasmcssssresssasmns e sesssas sassssnssensaressvass - - 24 24
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 155,397 34,419 189,816 ;
OPERATING EXPENSES: ] _!
Cost of sales and services........ouvereee- ereeemraeeseteteeetabameaeeesmean et tenena 146,100 32,069 178,169 . |
Depreciation.....ccuversseess vennesesmammeseeassomeesssssssesesssssmesermeerraseares 8,042 1,265 9307
Provision for uncollectible accounts. reesseesseeseresanesassanes - 2 2 .
b
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 154,142 33,336 187,478 |
OPERATING INCOME 1,255 1,083 2,338 3
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): . .
IDVESNENE MCOMIE. ..-vevvvcerrssemssrosrerassseserssssrresssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssanns 761 241 ' 1002
Other revenues....omeeeeeen teererersrrassessastarasasasusssressesenissseeTraeassne s reesare 12 - 122 !
Other expenses emteeeesaeremnmetfederomessiscassississeisesiesssetiesestrassstestentsaresssstnan (136) (192) (328)
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET. . 637 49 686
NET INCOME 1,892 1,132 304 Y
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1998 37,006 27,299 64,305
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER IN 11 - 11 L
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1999 5 38,909 $ V 28,431 s 67,340 L
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Internal Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
. Purchasing Manufacturing Total
P CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
Operating income $ 1,255 3 1,083 § 2338
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation eeeeeeresseshessieetestiestsistessnseesstesaresseesneesnronstasnree 8,042 1,265 9,307
Provision for tmcollectible CCOURLS.....ccouemrrreerrcresses e st sessseretesmeemeesceemnmes - 2 2
INODOPETALNG TEVENUES. c.coceccremrmsrecarssesesseserssesssssnsstsssmrmssnvasssssssssssssasssssersssssane 12 - 12
NODOPETANE EXPEISES. ..voneuessssasesisanmareseertraaserertrsssassessasesresmsssansssseessamsnssss - (70) (70)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
RECEIVADIES. ..ot csrre st s neras e ss s s steteme e seme e ee e ereaee s e ensennes 30 101 131
Due from other funds.. emtesseeesseusesanestesateterabtee tateenbban brntanns e smnnennnenr (2,621) 584 (2,037
Due from component Units........ueereesseeesesrenses teesernsanannes . - 11 4 15
Due from other GOVEINMMENIS........cveeeerrrererreseresereersssssnssssesmemssssesseassssssssnsns (15) 499) (514)
IIIVEIEOTY et s sisssssssssitsist st rcncnsn s nsnsnsnssssansssss e e sa e sessms e samsssrssssnsmsnsans 289 116 405
Other a588E8....-ceeeereesrreecssecisssssessrsmesrsramserresenes eteeseeeneessranasan . - 1 1
Accounts payable and accrued Labilities...........oovvernererreessessresssessrssssssmrmsnes (1,226) 413 13)
Due to other funds...... wresreseasereensereeenansastresases 274 23 297
Due to comPponent URIHS.......cvceuisseisieiassreaetssa e e e eenessesssseerensssssssssesssnnas 4 - 4
Due 0 other ZOVEIDIEDLS. ..cuvmreeemreeeserereracesessescsacenrrensrerers . 1 3 4
Defermed TEVEIUE. ... ceeireemeemeraemcemceeesssreinsaesssssesssass st semermesenensramsenneseseassassnnn (90) 3 Rty
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 4,711 1,946 6,657 .
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES....cccrecacerseoes 5,966 3,029 8,995
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital asSets.......cocoeeeeeseeeseereerrrsreeeeeeeenene (12,998) {1,241} (14,239)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets........... - eteremecamrannrasrnnans 923 - 923
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (12,075) (1,241) (13,316)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments reseatstestta bbb b n s smir s s m e s e ss s ataae sasa ins (60,622) (21,223) (81,845)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of INVeSIMEntS. cueewveeemeeeeee e 65,988 19,267 85,255
Investment inCoOme........ccceveerneveres 755 238 993
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 6,121 (1,718} 4,403
NET INCREASE IN CASH 12 70 82
CASH, JULY, 1, 1998 ' 105 223 328
CASH, JUNE 30, 1999 S w7 3 28 5 40

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and agency funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trusiee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and agency funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer taxes and for the payment of unemployment
compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to transfer and receive monies from the Federal Unemployment Trust Fund.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to individuals who
are insured by an insolvent insurance company and for the administrative costs to administer the program. Funds are derived from
an annual assessment on all insurance carriers authorized to transact and write workmen’s compensation insurance in the
Commonwealth.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses over
$100,000 to a lifetime aggregate of $1 million to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original Catastrophic
Loss Trust Fund (no longer in existence). Revenue is derived from surcharges on certain motor vehicle moving violations and
investment income.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are deferring a
portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund — to account for the payment of claims arising from defauliting members of self-insurance pooling
arrangements under the Workers’ Compensation Act. Revenue is derived from assessments on self-insurers.

Real Estate Recovery Fund — to account for reimbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgments against any person licensed
by the Real Estate Commission. Revenue is derived from fees paid by licensees and interest income from investments.

PENSION TRUST FUND

State Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members of the
State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

'INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

INVEST Program For Local Governments — to pool and invest amounts owned by local governments and school districts.

AGENCY FUNDS .
Uuder.-ground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect and administer funds for a program to provide claim payments to
owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a lizbility for taking corrective action, for bodily injury or for
property damage caused by a release from underground storage tanks.

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
policyholders and stockholders and payment of administrative expenses. '

Agency Custodial Accounts — to account for the assets of patients, inmates and other non-Commonwealth funds for which the
Comrmonwealth is the account custodian.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premium tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance companies

conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities must pay these monies
to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to account for foreign (out-of-state) casualty insurance cdmpany tax revenue, which is distributed
to mumnicipalities to help defray municipal, police and fire pension fund costs.

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to pay judgments, awards, or settlements in medical malpractice claims
which exceed basic limits of coverage provided in professional liability insurance policies. Revenue is derived from annual
participant surcharges.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the Federal
Government. This other category is an aggregation of six individual agency funds.

There are a total of six individual expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund, one investment trust fund and twelve individual
agency funds.
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. COMBINING BALANCE SHEET |
Trust and Agency Funds A : June 30, 1999

- COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Expendable Pension Investment Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash b 18 b - b - p 7,210 8 7,228
Cash with fi5cal 28eNtS. ueemrereceererrereeceeeerecen e veesersueras 2,677,078 - - 8,925 2,686,003
Temporary investmenis 561,168 729,864 836,543 842,925 2,970,500
Long-term investments 1,023,956 24,550,673 - 76,310 25,650,939
Receivables, net:
Taxes 308,401 - - - 308,401
Accounts........... 8,927 ; ) - - 174,878 183,805
ACCTUEH TNTRIEST .. cnemeeevacrvrrrrsmnrseasssssssmsenseeens semeres sseesessmsmrane 7459 101,915 734 3,690 113,798
LoanS. et eeers e e eeres s . - - - 3,582 3,582
Investment proceeds - 152,462 - - 152,462
Other. 54 190 - - 244
Due from other funds....... 44,730 3919 - 29,933 78,582 -
Due from component units 250 7,106 - - 7,356
~ Due from other governments... 15,589 4,852 - - 20,441
T B8EEIS e meeeeceeme et e certrnva s e rssssss s sss st teememn s srme e seeeen 901 - - 151 439,460 440,512
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,648,531 $ 25,550,981 $ 837,428 $ 1,586,913 $ 32,623,853
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: :
Accounts payable and accrued ligbilities.....umeseseeeoeaeecs $ 122,447 § 21,002 S 3,726 $ 19,813 3 166,988
Tax refunds payabie . 3,855 - - - 3,855
Investmment purchases payabie - 603,637 - - 603,637
Obligations under securities lending 344,715 802,958 - - 1,147,673
Due to other funds 42873 - 26 - 717 43,616
' Due to other governments 3,457 - - 235,889 239,346
; Deferred revenue, - - - 67 67
Other liabilities......... - - - 1,330,427 1,330,427
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 517,347 1,427.623 3,726 1,586,913 3,535,609
" Fund Balance:

: Reserved for:

Encumbrances 6,780 - - - 6,780
Pension benefits. - 24,123,358 - - 24,123,358
Deferred compensation 728,308 - - ' - 728,308
Other. - - 833,702 - 833,702

Unreserved:
Designated for: :
Other. 2,565 - - - 2,565
Undesignated - 3,393,531 - - - 3,393,531
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 4,131,184 24,123,358 833,702 - 29,088,244
i TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE .occoveeoeeeee. 3 4,648,531 $ 25,550,981 $ 837,428 $ 1,586,913 $ 32,623,853
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Expendable Trust Funds June 30, 1999 »

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) }
Workmen's L‘
Compensation Catastrophic Deferred ;
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits Compensation Self-Insurance  Real Estate T
Compenszation Trust Continuation (December 31,1998)  Guarzoty Recovery Total : i
ASSETS
Cash $ - 8 6 8 - 8 2 s - 5 - 8 18 :
Cash with fiscal agents 2,677,078 - - - - - 2,677,072 1
Temporary i 200 490,361 - 27263 38,774 3,547 1,023 561,168 o
Laong-term investments - 333,940 - 690,016 - - 1,023,956
Receivables, net: Tl
Taxes : 308,401 - - - - - 308,401 i
A 2,189 - 6,738 - - - 8,927 i
Accrued i 12 6,972 109 348 14 4 7,459
Orher. - - - 54 - “ 54
Due from other funds 2,189 42,541 - - - . 44,730 |
Drue from companent units 250 - - - - - 250 e
Due from other govemr 15,589 - - - - - 15,589
Onther assets, - 901 - - - - 201 : i
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3005508 ¢ 874731 § 34110 3 729,194 S 3561 5 1,027 5 4,648,531 S
i |
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES -
Liabilities: [
Accounts payable and d liabilities. $ 639635 § 35977 § 16677 § 823 5 6 8 1§ 122447 E
Tax refunds payabl 3,835 - - - - - 3,855 :
Obligations under securities 164N ...reevsreecereceres - 344,715 - - - - 344,715
Due to other funds - 252 42,558 63 - - 42,873
Due to other go 3457 - - - - - 3457
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 76,275 380,944 59,235 836 6 1 517,347
: |
Fund Balarce: E
Reserved for:
Encumb - 6,780 - - - - 6,780 i
Deferred compensation - - - 728,308 - - 728,508 o
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Other. - - - - 2,565 - 2,565 P
Undesignated (deficit) 2,929,633 437,007 (25,125) - 950 1,026 3,393,531 o
B i’
TOTAL FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT).uousvoreeee 2,929,633 493,787 (25,125) 728,308 3,555 1,026 4,131,184
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ¥ ~
FUND BALANCE $ 3,005908 § 874731 % 34110 § 729,194 § 3561 § 1,027 § 4648531

1
|
|
|
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
- AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES | ‘
. Expendable Trust Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thonsands)
‘Workmen's
Compensation Catastrophic Deferred
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits Compensation  Self-Insarance Real Estate
Compensation Trust Continnation {December 31,1998) Guaranty Recovery Total
REVENUES:
| Taxes 3 4,824 § - % - 5 - 5 - 8 - 5 4,824
Unemployment taxes. ..o e rrerrrsminsmsssans 1,459,773 - - - - - 1,459,773
Licenses and fees. - 41,864 39,209 - 41 38 81,152
Intergovernmental 49,338 - - - - - 49,336
INVESINENT MCOIIE.cuvvrs v esarsssenmsssesarensesesncs 164,873 35,040 1,180 112,048 200 52 313,393
Other. . 362 - 2 89,400 - - 89,764
TOTAL REVENUES auieeeversessrnsns 1,675,168 76,904 46,391 201,448 241 90 1,998,242
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government.... - 4,133 1,210 17,877 - - 23,220
Protection of persons and propenty........... - 41,728 28,500 - 822 80 71,130
Public health and welfare........c.cccveeeerrrenr . 1,503,639 - - - - - 1,503,639
Debt service:

Principal retrement.......c.oecoveeercoverenemsens - 11,394 - - - - 11,394
TOTAL EXPENDITURES...c.cccninirians 1,503,639 57,255 29,710 17,877 822 80 1,609,383
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES. ..ovrrvecervrarssnsmees 175,529 19,649 10,681 183,571 {581) 10 388,859
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT),
AS RESTATED, JULY 1, 1998 rerennn. 2,754,104 474,138 (35,806) 544,737 4,136 1,016 3,742,325
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT),
: JUNE 30, 1999 3 2,929,633 § 493,787 § (25,125) § 728,308 $ 3555 %5 1,026 § 4,131,184
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
Julv 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
INDEMNIFICATION FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 712 $ 49,130 3 49,709 $ 133
Temporary investments 359,744 33,924 29,052 364,616
Receivables, net:
L0ans..coceeuenes - 3,582 - 3,582
Accrued interest..... , 1,708 19,347 19,564 1,401 j
TOTAL ASSETS 3 362,164 % 105,983 $ 98,325 $ 369,822
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued lizbilities. 5 3,985 8 8,533 5 3,985 b3 8,533
Due to other funds.. 57 28 57 28 :
Due 1o other govemnments 1 2 1 2 :
Other liabilities... 358,121 37,694 34,556 361,259 .
TOTAL LIABILITIES . § 362,164 8 46,257 s 38,599 b3 369,822 v
STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND ‘%
ASSETS : .
Cash... 3 1 3 103,284 3 103,284 $ 1 o
Cash with fiscal agents 9,254 8,925 9,254 .~ 8925 : ,
Temporary ifivestnents 126,011 69,051 107,992 87,070 o
Long-term investments 87,551 - 11,253 76,298
Receivables, net: T
Accounts 183,791 - 17,043 166,748 ;
ACETUEA TNLETESL.1vvererersressresresessssrssassnsesersssssssescemsscemomssssssssss esssess 1,337 670 1,337 670 o
Due from other funds 47 .- 247 47 247 )
Othier assets 338,634 96,017 - sa651 |
TOTAL ASSETS 3 746626 % 278,194  § 250210 § 774,610 o
LIABILITIES
Other liabiities... $ 746626 S 2798 S - § 774610
TOTAL LIABILITIES s 746,626 3 27,984 3 - 3 774,610
AGENCY CUSTODIAL ACCOUNTS
ASSETS
Cash $ 3,745 $ 52,192 3 52,642 $ 3,295
Temporary investments. 14,097 4,604 4,298 14,403
Long-term investments 16 - 4 12
Receivables, net:
Accounts 3,554 6,098 4,725 4,927
Other assets, 4,959 4,801 4,951 4,809
TOTAL ASSETS g 26,371 5 67,695 $ 66,620 3 27,446
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. $ 5,104 3 5,512 $ 5,562 5 5,054
Other liabilities 21,267 47,813 46,688 22,392
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 26,371 3 53,325 $ 52,250 3 27,446
(Continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds (continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance .
ul 1 Additions Deductions June 38, 1999
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
Cash. o $ 1 3 111,854 $ 111,854 3 1
Temporary investments. 53,436 58,512 58,614 53,334
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest 264 235 264 235
TOTAL ASSETS ) 53,701 3 170,601 $ - 170,732 g 53,570
LIABILITIES
Due 10 other fUNS......ovverersee s ne e resesnssm s ssesesrs sereene $ . 264 $ 235 3 264 3 235
Due to other governments i 53,367 53,238 53,293 53,312
. Other liabilities.... . 70 23 70 23
: TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 53,701 3 53,496 $ 53,627 5 53,570
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
Cash . $ 1 $ 267,730 S 267,731 3 -
Temporary investrments 123,844 132,823 135,643 121,024,
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest.... 603 3,590 3,705 488
Diue from other fUnAS. ... et snsssset st i seemecene 289 290 289 290
TOTAL ASSETS "8 124,737 $ 404,433 $ 407,368 3 121,802
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds 3 - $ 1 3 - 3 1
Due to other governments 124,574 131,524 134,350 121,748
Other liabilities. 163 53 163 53
TOTAL LIABILITEES $ 124,737 g 131,578 $ 134,513 $ 121,802
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS :
Cash g 1,027 3 616,127 $ 615,249 $ 1,905
Temporary investments ; 139,996 336,370 305,811 170,555
Receivables, net: . .
Accounts. 2,630 3,198 2,630 3,198
Accrued interest. 645 8,958 8,922 681
Due from other funds 12 - 12 -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 144,310 _$ 964,653 $ 932,624 g 176,339
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities......overereemssearesessnsreecenas $ 5,072 3 6,226 % 5,072 3 6,226
Due to other funds 399 57 399 57
Due to other governments....... 11 12 11 12
Deferred revenue. - 67 - 67
Other liabilities 138,828 315,081 283,932 169,977
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 144,310 3 321,443 $ 289,414 g 176,339
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds (continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

mro TS

Balance Balance
July 1. 1998 Additions Beductions June 3{. 1999 .
OTHER FUNDS 7;
ASSETS :
10T~ VOO SUU OO ¥ 1,112 3 552,208 $ 551,445 $ 1,875
Temporary investments 27,374 479269 474,720 31,923 '.
Receivables, net: : J
Taxes 7 - 7 -
ACCOUNLS. - e eocecerremcaemrammoeemesremesanecemeasaanas casnarereans - 5 - 5
Accrued interest 132 617 624 125
Due from other funds 31,238 29,396 31238 29,396
TOTAL ASSETS 3 59,863 5 1,061,495 3 1,058,034 3 63,324
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities... ..o $ 1,165 3 - s 1,165 $ -
Due to other funds 205 356 205 396
Due to other govemnments . 56,414 517,039 512,638 60,815 N
Other Hiabilties. .vmurrrevveer e 2,079 57 23 2,113 i
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 59,863 § 517,492 3 514,031 $ 63,324
TOTAL — ALL FUNDS - a
ASSETS 5
Cash...... $ 6,559 3 1,752,525 § 1,751,914 $ 7,210
Cash with fiscal agents 9,254 8,925 9,254 8,925 ?
Temporary investments 844,502 1,114,553 1,116,130 842,925 T
Long-term investments 87,567 - 11,257 76,310 :
Receivables, net:
Taxes 7 - 7 - :
Accounts 189,975 9,301 24,398 174,378 L
Accrued interest 4,689 33417 34,416 3,690
Loans.... - 3,582 - 3,582 o
Due from other funds 31,586 29,933 31,586 29,933 O
Other assets 343,593 100.818 4,951 439,460 t
“TOTAL ASSETS 3 1,517,772 3 3,053,054 8 2,983,913 $ 1,586,913
LIABILITIES - - ;
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 15,326 s 20,271 b 15,784 $ 19,813
Due 10 other funds 925 717 925 717 P
Due to other governments. 234,367 701,815 700,293 235,889 .
Deferred revenue - 67 - 67 '
Other HabDIItES. .coccrreensransssisnsirtecrs sevstmssemserenssassssesnsressmssasmresseanasan 1,267,154 428,705 365,432 1,330,427
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 1,517,772 $ 1,151,575 s 1,082,434 k3 1,586,913 ’ }
_—— re—— ———— i
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General Fixed Assets
Account Group

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP =
DESCRIPTION .

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for gemeral government purposes. These include all fixed assets except those
accounted for in proprietary and pension trust funds.

-
j
A

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS |
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance .
July 1, June 30, ‘
1998 Additions Retirements 1999
CATEGORY =
i
|01 TS SO OOU VOO $ 255,207 $ 2313 $ 174 $ 257946
BUIlGINES.vvvvvevesreresneesessnsnasssemssssrssesseses 3,040,935 48,508 23,747 3,065,696 -
Improvements other than buildings....... 256,431 10,844 1,277 265,998 P
Machinery and eqUIPIMETLL ..oevererernsrerees 552,065 75.730 21,468 606,327 ;
4,105,238 137,395 46,666 4,195,967
CODSITUCHION i1l PrOGIESS -vvrrvrerrvesveerse 403,146 307,476 _ 56271 654351
Total General Fixed Assets.............. $.4.508.334 $ 444871 $102.937 $ 4.850318 E
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE r
Acquired before July I, 1986............... $ 1,915,629 3 - $ 34,312 $ 1,881,317 .
a
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from: |
General fund 868,985 38,472 5,010 902,447
General obligation bonds.........evevreenee 950,729 52,966 1,765 1,601,930 .
Federal Grants .........oov.oumrmsressseserns . 35957 2,997 473 38,481
Special revenue funds 322,150 41,448 5,106 358,492 i
Local funds 31 - - 31
Donations....ececceeeceenes ecenenabeensas 11,563 1,512 - 13,075 .
Confiscations 194 - : - 194
Total sources 4,105,238 137,395 46,666 4,195,967
CONSITUCHON i} PIOZTESS cvvrveveesrasssssreee 403,146 307,476 56271 654.351 :
Total Investrnent in -
General Fixed Assets ....ocoeceerne $ 4508384 § 444 871 $102937 485031

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired before July 1, 1986 are not available.
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SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION :
June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
- . Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION
General government .......... - 3 9439 § 517,018 $ 25565 % 43,793 $ 595815
Protection of persons and property .....c...oeceeeeeenenc. 16,631 1,347,960 152,996 82,524 1,600,111
Public health and welfare .........ccccouveverernceeceereecnnns 2,756 463,648 16,732 94523 577,659
Public edUCAtiON ....cceeereecrrenreemrasisnse e et e memns 17,427 625,138 51,275 2,648 696,488
Conservation of natural reSoUrces. ... cocvmeeeeeeseernens 209,064 62,538 13,251 31,732 316,583
Economic development and assistance..........cceen... - - - 333 333
Transportation . 2,629 49394 6,179 330,774 408976
Totals Allocated To
FURCHONS oovemneecre e sersavnseesessrasmssesenes $ 257946 3§ 3065696 5265998 $606.327 4,195,967
CONSITUCHON i) PIOBIESS cvvvvvresrsersereessranesmsssensasasens 654,351

Total General Fixed ASSEtS oouremmeemeeemseniorennans © $ 4850318

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
: For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30,
1998 Additions Retirements In Out 1999

General government .........ccoceerveverens . 3 554474 s 6340 $ 40347 § 76,717 3 1369 $ 595815
Protection of persons and property ......... 1,568,85% 33,651 1,682 586 1,303 1,600,111
Public health and welfare ..........cccoemn-.n. 615,952 28,627 1,691 285 65,514 577,659
Public education 676,690 20,153 58 73 370 696,488
Conservation of natural resources........... 305,360 11,923 310 149 537 316,585
Economic development and assistance... 333 - - - - 333
Transportation —.383570 36,701 2,578 - 8.7 408976
4,105,238 137,395 46,666 77,810 77,810 4195967

Constriction in Progress.......oe.eeceeeens 403,14 307.476 56.271 - - 654,351
Total General Fixed Assets............ 4508 384 444871 $ 102937 § 77810 $ 77810 $.4.850318
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA * TABLE2
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

I——— (Expressed in Thousands) ———[
For The
Fiscal Year

Ended June 30 Net Bonded Debt Population Debi Per Capita
1989 $ 4,705,202 11,866 3 397
1990 4,633,507 11,895 350
1991 4,787,512 11,946 401
1992 ' 4,873,542 11,989 407

. 1993 5,040,938 12,026 419

1994 5,100,012 12,040 423
1995 5,040,662 12,039 418
1996 5,061,530 12,034 420
1997 4,841,729 12,011 403
1998 4,841,324 12,001 403

SOURCE: Population Information - U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TABLE 3
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

— {Expressed in Thousands) ——-|

Debt Service
For The Requirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
nded June 30 General Fund Expendituresm_ %%
1990 $ 450,752 $ 15,137,774 298
1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 521,875 : 19,540,459 2.67
1993 497,045 19,986,749 2.49
1994 512,094 21,060,058 243
1995 525,389 22467672 2.34
i 1996 551,133 23,480,336 235
I 1997 649,759 23,384,414 2.78
- 1998 624,642 24,891 340 251
1999 761,572 26,624,901 2.36

 Excludes encumbrances included in “Total Expenditures” in the Statement of Revemues, Expenditures and
Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN TABLE 4

As of September 1, 1999
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYEVANIA

Average annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five

L FTSTer:) T o SRS $§ 21,241,970,890
Constitutional factor ....ccvceiiceerisserseserers s sneses p. 1.75
Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the

approval of the electors.... e 37,173,449,058
Less outstanding net debt (non-electorate approved)........... 3882412712
"Legal debt margin ...ccceencincsienssciirmesssscmes e saensssenns $ _33.291.036.346

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution,
which provides: .

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the
provisions of this section.

{1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or
natural disaster, or to implement unissued authority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

{2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i} issue tax anticipation notes
having a matugity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the
same fiscal year, and (ii) incur debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures
within the term of the criginal debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if
the question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the eleciors and approved by a
majority of those voting on the question.

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a
capital budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-
quarters times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified
by the Auditor General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt
incurred under clauses (1) and (2)(1), or debt incurred under clause (2)(if} if the original debt would not be
so considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the
law authorizing such debt.

The figures above are absj:racted from a certification of the Auditor General dated September 1, 1999.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

TABLE 5

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ®

(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal ‘
Year Direct Net Revenue — Debt Service Requirements
; ; |
Ended Gross Operating Available for
May 31 Revenues _ _Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1990 5 252,373 § 113,546 § 138,827 3 123,940 § 73,05 $ 196,991 0.70
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,945 0.94
1992 312,079 113,217 198,862 7.450 76,628 84,078 2.37
1993 329,452 134,844 194,608 11,395 65,600 77,195 2.52
1994 344,617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2.51
1995 375,754 146,325 229,429 15,715 72,548 88,263 2.60
1996 389,774 162,150 227,624 23,900 73,644 99,544 2.29
1997 398,897 158,705 240,192 22,845 74,462 57,307 247
1998 410,266 165,763 244,503 28,240 72274 100,514 243
1999 441,235 190,179 251,056 29,085 86,483 115,568 2.17
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ®©
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue — Debt Service Requirements .-.-——___[
Ended Gross Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1950 3 30422 b 1,997 b 28,425 5 8,900 A 9,873 b 18,773 1.51
1951 28,963 2,055 26,508 8,440 11,015 19,455 1.38
1992 24,592 1,994 22,598 10,645 18,920 29,565 0.76
1993 25,204 2,368 22,336 10,645 18,595 29,240 0.78
1994 29,802 2,138 27,664 23,085 19,116 42,201 0.66
1995 30,806 2,864 27,942 4,335 20,123 24,458 1.14
1996 30,487 2,898 27,589 10,695 19,747 30,442 0.91
1997 32,963 2,865 30,098 12,955 22,314 35,269 0.85
1998 35,967 2,861 33,106 19,380 22,852 42,232 0.78
1999 30,227 3,187 27,040 20,660 21,845 42,505 0.64
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue — Debt Service Requirements ————ry
Ended Gross Operating Available for
_June3¢ Revenues Expenses  _DebtService Principal Interest @ Total verage
1990 $ 199,101 5 9,133 § 189,968 $ 21,568 5 157,104 3 178672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15
1992 205,991 8,496 198.495 28,118 172,146 200,264 0.99
1993 © 200,268 9,803 190,465 27.410 166,480 193,880 0.98
1994 194,025 13,325 180,700 29,426 143,904 173,330 1.05
1995 186,023 16,095 179,928 51,406 139,621 191,027 0.94
1996 208,048 16,979 191,069 40,839 146,452 187,291 1.02
1957 222,736 16,748 205,988 39,463 157,989 197,452 1.04
1998 247,841 17,931 229,910 43,558 172,268 215,826 1.06
1999 237,346 19,544 217,302 54,438 175,337 229,775 0.95

® Excludes interest on notes payable.

® Discretely Presented Component Uit
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

TABLE 6

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

I——— (Expressed in Thousands) ——_—I
United States

Calendar Year

1989
1950
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

1998

246,820
249,398
252,106
255,011
257,753
260,289
262,765
265,190
264,744
270,298

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census

STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS

Pennsylvania

11,866
11,895
11,946
11,989
12,026
12,040
12,039
12,034
12,011
12,001

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

4.80
4.80
4.70
470
4.66
4.63
4.58
4.54
4.49
4.44

TABLE 7

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

I—-—— (Expressed in Thousands) —l

Calendar Year

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

Demand Deposits

$ 6481900

6,453,740
6,308,495
7,150,024
7,620,397
6,952,868
7,124,441
4,233,735
4,764,449
4,581,076

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking

118

Time and
Savings Deposits

$ 53565427
50,542,812
52,112,591
51,434,858
54,334,637
49,674,200
51,766,777
37,254,292
40,036,785

35,885,048




sy 6P s o'

01z9 6ELD SET'L voy'L
Pop 1€l 855°6T1 80L'971 006421
PLO'LET L6TOEL £F6'EE] POEZEL

op s £s 6'¢
SLT e £1¢ £FE
199°¢ £L9°S 065's S6F'S
9£6's $86°S £06'S BER'S
8661 L1661 [r14 5661

19

966'L
090°¢Tl
950°1¢€1

9
09¢

§ot's
978's

69

0r6's
092°0Z1
00Z°671

'L
91¥

oLy's
688'S

s'L

£19'6
61811
S0I°8Z]

§L
ot

ovr's
988°s

Anoag yawAodiug Jo neaing ‘Ansnpu] pue toqe Jo juawiiedacy BluEAL SIS HUNOS

89
8798

SELLIL
AN A

69
Loy

61’
978°s

TeoT

o5
LYO'L

£6L°811
0r8°sz1

'S
cig
OLY'S
l6L's

0681

€S
£28'

ThELll
698'€TI

Sy
T4

T65°'S
LS8's

686T

L e b s Sley

.................................................. “—CUEhC_QEOﬂD

e ruatiiojdg

............. 3010] J0QE| UBI[IALD
SALVLS QILINN

DT LTI PIITS, L PP L Ty P TP PP PPN ....nx__ Uuﬂ.m w
............. :.............-.....................uﬂDEhO.—QEQF—D
......... ..-......-.-.....o........:....:...........uﬂﬂeanuﬁqgm
............. .......-.......................UU.—O& .—ODN— —.—ﬁ_:._wmo

VINVATASNNAL

(syuaana g ylaaxq
SpuysnoNy ), uj passadxy)
VINVATASNNAd 40 HLTVAMNOWWOD

SAVBL AOPUIIN)) UL ISUT PU} 4O
8 I'TdV.L

SHLVLS G4LINA THL OL ATAVAINOD VINVATASNNAd
HLVH INFWAOTdIWHANN ANV INHAAOTJWAND ‘INAWAOTINA INAAISTH




TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES .
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME .
ays Co
| (Millions of Dollars) I I_._._ (Doilars)—l : ;
Calendar - : .
Year United States Pennsylvania Y% United States Pennsylvania % l
1989 4,485,191 216,982 4.80 18,172 18,286 100.60
1990 4,786,293 230,894 - 4.80 19,191 19,410 101.10
1991 4,963,545 239,478 4.80 19,689 20,047 101.80
1992 5,260,922 252,224 4.80 20,631 21,038 102.00 A
1993 5,469,485 260,109 4.80 21,220 21,635 102.00
1994 5,741,050 269,002 4.70 22,056 22,343 101.30 e
1995 6,060,138 280,305 4.60 23,059 23,268 100.90
1996 6,408,990 295,349 4.60 24,164 24,533 101.50 E
1997 6,770,709 308,640 4.60 25,288 25,670 101.50 i
1908 7,276,800 321,540 4.40 26,412 26,792 101.40
N
SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis P
!
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10

For the Calendar Year 1998

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

EMPLOYER ) RANK
Wal-Mart Stores, INC....uoveeeeeeieieeeeeeeeeecaere e e e ee e sseeens 1
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania ......................... 2
Pennsylvania State UIVErsity «.coeeveeereererceiovenveeeeereeeeeeeeene 3
US AIrways, INC. . ccueereeeeeeeeee et eserenns 4
K-Mart COrporation. ........ceveeeceereeerremremeeresesssemssessscssenesnenns 5
United Parcel Services, INC. vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn 6
Mellon Bank, NA. .. ....cneermneiaeinesreeceie s seseesesee e 7
Weis Markets, INC. coveeeeieeeeeieeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e enseens 8
First Union COrporation........eeeovreeresversersseessssncresonssesssonnes 9
Sears Roebuck and Company .........coovvveveeeeeeeveeeeeeeeevennnn, 10
Bell ALIantic. .. ..o oo ereee et et eee e een 11
PNC Bank, NA ..t srs et sssne e seseenens 12
Giant Food Stores, INC... vovevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13
University of Pittsburgh.......coeevveeeeieiieeeeeeeeeceeer e 14
AMP, InCOTpOrated .......ccocceveeerenineerrerreeeeeaes et v 15
May Department Stores COMpPany. .....eooeeceeeveeveccerrvesreerennas 16
J C Penney Company, INC.......couvreoereveeeeereeeeiecnceeecveeseneens 17
Merck & CoL, INC. . ci et et ee e ee e s en e 18
Acme Markets, INC. . . cevcveeeeeececeeereresseeeeseneeenessessee s soes 19
Hershey Foods Corporation. .. ........eeeeeemeveecereceresneseenenene. 20
Westinghouse Electric Corp... v.oevenermereeeecre e 21
Highmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield..........cccoeovveeeeeeceeeeennne. 22
Lucent Technologies, INC. ......cveeoeivveeremeececreeeeees e 23
Giant Eagle, INC. «.oeucoeeeeeeeete et evve e 24
University of Pitisburgh Medical Center........ccocovervneen....... 25
PECO Energy COmpany ........c..cocueeeeeeerensioneecssseeeesesesesens 26
The Prudential Insurance Co. of America.......coueeenennn.n..... 27
General Electric COmMPAnY ..........ocvcveeeurremreeceseseeeensseensene 28
PA Power & Light Co..eereiecieieerieteeere e ceeceeeeeseseee e e e 29
USX COIPOTALION ...c.cuceereeeernrtaeemenrreerseseseesaces e e seeseenesesens 30

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN . TABLE 11
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. Healthcare Services Group, Inc.

Albert Abela Co. - Hershey Foods Corporation n
Alcoa, Inc. Ikon Office Solutions, Inc. S ’
Allegheny Teledyne  ~ Interstate Hotels Corp. ]
Amkor Technology, Inc. Mellon Bank Corp. 2
Amerisource Health Nova Care, Inc. |
Aramark Corp. ' Pierce Leahy Co. |
Armstrong World Industries, Inc. PNC Financial Corporation

Asplundh Tree Expert Co. PPG Industries, Inc.

Bayer, Inc. ' PECO Energy

Bell Atlantic Corporation Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.

Bethlehem Steel Corporation Pep Boys

CDI Corporation Rite Aid Corporation

Centocor Rohm and Haas Company

Charming Shoppes, Inc. Samt-Gobain Corp.

Cigna Corporation ' SKI USA, Inc.

Comcast Corporation SmithKline Beecham Corp.

Conrail Sunoco o
Crown Cork and Seal Company Technitrol, Inc. o
Day & Zimmerman, Inc. Teleflex, Inc. .
DSM Engineering Plastic Prod. Unisource Worldwide, Inc. g
Exide Corporation UNISYS Corporation .
Gannett Fleming, Inc. Universal Health Services, Inc. -
General Nutrition : USX Corporation o
Genesis Health Ventures, Inc. Vishay Intertechnology, Inc. N
H. J. Heinz Company Weis Markeis, Incorporated .
Harsco Corporation Wesco International j
Hawa, Inc. Yuasa-Exide, Inc.

SQURCE: Fortune, April 1998 and Ward's Business Directory.
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

June 30, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution
Form of Government

Miles of State Highway

Land Area — in square miles

State Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of State Police

Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
Community Colleges):

Number of campuses in state

Number of educators

Number of students

Recreation:

Number of State Parks
Area of State Parks
Area of State Forests

December 12, 1787
Legislative-Executive-Judicial
40,163

44,888

90
4,042

234
22,338
636,928

116
282,700 Acres
2,100,113 Acres

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning
Penmsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services
Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Bureau of Forestry
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